
 

- 1 - 

WORCESTERSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCILS AND COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES  

 
MEETING OF THE WORCESTERSHIRE SHARED SERVICES JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

THURSDAY 27TH JUNE 2013 AT 5.30 P.M. 
 

THE COMMITTEE ROOM, THE COUNCIL HOUSE,  
BURCOT LANE, BROMSGROVE 

 

 

MEMBERS: Bromsgrove District Council: Councillor C. B. Taylor 
Bromsgrove District Council: Councillor M. A. Bullivant 
Malvern Hills District Council: Councillor Mrs. B. Behan 
Malvern Hills District Council: Councillor D. Hughes 
Redditch Borough Council: Councillor J. Fisher 
Redditch Borough Council: Councillor B. Clayton 
Worcester City Council: Councillor Mrs. L. Denham 
Worcester City Council: Councillor R. Berry 
Worcestershire County Council: Councillor Mrs. L. Hodgson 
Worcestershire County Council: Councillor A. Blagg  
Wychavon District Council: Councillor R. Davis 
Wychavon District Council: Councillor K. Jennings 
Wyre Forest District Council: Councillor M. Hart 
Wyre Forest District Council: Councillor P. Harrison 
 

 
 

AGENDA 

 
1. Election of Chairman  

 
2. Election of Vice-Chairman  

 
3. To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitutes  

 
4. Declarations of Interest  

 
5. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Worcestershire 

Shared Services Joint Committee held on 21st February 2013 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

6. Worcester City Pilot for revised Service Delivery (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

7. Worcestershire Regulatory Services Budget Monitoring April 2012 - March 
2013 (Pages 9 - 30) 
 



 

- 2 - 

8. Worcestershire Regulatory Services Annual Report 2013 / 2014 (Pages 31 - 
72) 
 

9. Worcestershire LEP/WRS Charter Action Plan (Pages 73 - 84) 
 

10. Worcestershire Regulatory Services Contribution to Worcestershire Health 
and Well Being Strategy (Pages 85 - 110) 
 

11. To consider any other business, details of which have been notified to the 
Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services prior to the 
commencement of the meeting and which the Chairman considers to be of so 
urgent a nature that it cannot wait until the next meeting  
 
 
 

 
 
 

K. DICKS 
Chief Executive  

The Council House 
Burcot Lane 
BROMSGROVE 
Worcestershire 
B60 1AA 
 
19th June 2013 
 



 

 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 

 

MEETING OF THE WORCESTERSHIRE SHARED SERVICES JOINT COMMITTEE 

 

THURSDAY, 21ST FEBRUARY 2013 AT 4.33 P.M. 

 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors M. Hart (Chairman), D. Thain (Vice-Chairman), C. B. Taylor 
(during Minute No's part of 38/12 to 42/12), M. A. Bullivant, 
Mrs. B. Behan, D. Hughes, M. Braley, P. Mould, Mrs. L. Hodgson, 
K. Jennings and P. Harrison 
 

 Observers:   Ruth Mullen, Corporate Director – Service Delivery, 
Worcester City Council and Mr. I. Pumfrey, Head of Customer Services, 
Malvern Hills District Council   
 

 Invitees: Mr. D. Trafford, Key Account Manager, Idox 
 

 Officers: Mr. S. Jorden, Ms. C. Flanagan, Mr. M. Kay, Mr. S. Wilkes, 
Mr. M. Thomas, Ms. S. Morgan and Mrs. P. Ross 
 

 
 

35/12 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors J. Riaz, Worcester City 
Council, A. N. Blagg, Worcestershire County Council and Mrs. E. Stokes, 
Wychavon District Council. 
 

36/12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were received. 
 

37/12 MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Worcestershire Shared Services Joint 
Committee held on 22nd November 2012 were submitted. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

38/12 ICT IMPLEMENTATION - HIGHLIGHT, PRESENTATION FROM MARTIN 

THOMAS, PROJECT MANAGER  

 
The Joint Committee received a presentation from Mr. M. Thomas, Project 
Manager in respect of the ICT Implementation – Highlight.  The presentation 
provided an overview of the ICT project.  Mr. Thomas informed Members that 
the ICT project had started in September 2012 and was moving at a rapid 
pace.  Project Governance was in place with fortnightly Project Board 
meetings and weekly checkpoint meetings being held.  After looking at the 
amount of resources involved from Worcestershire Regulatory Services 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee 
21st February 2013 

 

(WRS) officers, and mitigating the risks; it was agreed that data scoping would 
be transferred to Idox.  WRS had liaised with key agencies in respect of 
training required and a core team would be trained in order to deliver training.  
Mr. Thomas highlighted to the Committee that all risks were being monitored 
and mitigated and the overall project status was Green.      
 
The Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services responded to Members’ 
questions with regard to the mobile devices to be used and remote printing 
facilities.  Members were informed that a preferred supplier for the mobile 
hand held devices had been sourced, and that the devices would be 
purchased on a business based need and not on personal requirements.  
Each hand held device would be linked to a document management system, 
which would enable users to retrieve any cleansed historical data stored, send 
emails, letters or reports to customers or request printed documents to be 
forwarded to customers. 
 
The Chairman thanked Mr. Thomas for his presentation.  
 
(A copy of the presentation is attached at Appendix 1 for information). 
 

39/12 WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES PERFORMANCE DATA - 

QUARTER 3, 2012/2013  

 
Members were asked to note the Performance Data  - Quarter 3, 2012 / 2013 
report produced by officers who were currently working in Worcestershire 
Regulatory Services experimental Intelligence Unit.   
 
The Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) informed Members 
that officers would appreciate feedback on the performance report as to the 
usefulness of the information provided and if Members required any further 
information to be included in future performance reports.  The Head of WRS 
highlighted that producing the report, from such a wide range of systems had 
been time consuming, but once a single database was operational it would be 
more straight forward. 
 
Mr. S. Wilkes, Business Manager, WRS introduced the report and in doing so 
informed Members that performance remained at an acceptable level during 
this time.  The report highlighted performance in a range of areas with district 
specific information where possible.  The report included the Top 5 consumer 
complaint categories for each partner authority.  The Business Manager 
(WRS) responded to Members’ questions in respect of the planning 
information detailed in the report for each partner authority; and explained that 
the information provided was a reflection of the support provided to planning 
teams and not the number of planning applications.  Planning teams could 
request from WRS a whole range of information dependant on the complexity 
of individual planning applications, for example noise, vibration, land 
contamination and air quality.   
 
In response to Councillor K. Jennings, the Business Manager (WRS) informed 
the Committee that he would look to include in future performance reports, the 

Page 2



Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee 
21st February 2013 

 

number of new cases received and incidents dealt with, therefore providing 
Members with a comparison on previous quarters. 
 
Following further discussion, and with Members aware that performance data 
currently had to be extracted from nine different databases, officers agreed to 
scope the following information being included in future performance reports: 
 

• Licensing Information and taxi data 

• Number of food hygiene and safety inspections per district 

• Detailed information on where good / bad premises were located within a 
district 

 
RESOLVED that, subject to officers scoping the additional information to be 
included in future reports, as detailed in the preamble above, the 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services, Performance Data - Quarter 3, 
2012/2013 be noted. 
 

40/12 IDOX AND WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES - 

PRESENTATION FROM DAVE TRAFFORD, KEY ACCOUNT MANAGER  

 
The Joint Committee received a presentation from Mr. D. Trafford, Key 
Account Manager, Idox, suppliers of the Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
integrated IT solution.   
 
Mr. Trafford informed the Committee that Idox was a provider of software 
solutions to local government who currently provided and supported software 
solutions for approximately 320 local authorities throughout the United 
Kingdom.   
 
The presentation provided Members with information on ‘What Worcestershire 
Regulatory Services brings’ and ‘What Idox brings’ to the partnership 
relationship.  Mr. Trafford highlighted that during an initial meeting in May 
2012, officers from Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) had explained 
and detailed the ‘Systems Thinking’ approach, which had taken place within 
the service, and this had struck a chord with Idox who had been impressed 
with the innovation shown by WRS.  All WRS staff worked well with lots of 
intense activity.  The IT Solution was not just a traditional Environmental 
Heath, Trading Standards or Licensing system; it was a system that was 
flexible and able to support both customers and staff.  A fully integrated 
solution with the ability to share data with other organisations and able to 
support a multi–skilled, mobile workforce. 
 
Mr. Trafford responded to Members’ questions and in doing so informed the 
Committee that a high percentage of the delivery and cost of developing the 
innovative solution was being meet by Idox, however WRS would receive 
some recompense in providing the IT Solution to other local authorities.   
 
The Chairman thanked Mr. Trafford for his presentation.  
 
(A copy of the presentation is attached at Appendix 2 for information). 
 

Page 3



Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee 
21st February 2013 

 

 
41/12 WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES SERVICE PLAN 2013 / 

2014  

 
The Committee considered a report that outlined the way in which the 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services activities linked to National and Local 
Priorities taken from the relevant Sustainable Community Strategies. 
 
The Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services (WRS) introduced the report 
and in doing so informed the Committee that under the Worcestershire Shared 
Services Partnership, Service Level Agreement; WRS would normally produce 
a three year service plan, for adoption by all partner authorities.  Since the 
operating environment was undergoing rapid change and the financial 
situation beyond 2014 was so uncertain, the Management Board had agreed 
for a one year service plan to be produced.  
 
Mr. M. Kay, Business Manager, WRS, informed the Committee that the WRS 
Service Plan 2013/2014 provided a clear picture of the challenges ahead and 
included an Executive Summary.  The streamlined suite of outcomes and 
measures, as detailed in the service plan, were a departure from the usual 
Local Government performance indicators, this new approach reflected what 
was important to the customer and had been developed through the 
Management Board and Joint Committee. 
 
The Head of WRS responded to Councillor K. Jennings in respect of item 6, 
Finance, as detailed in the service plan, and agreed to provide further details 
to the next meeting of the Joint Committee, with regard to the potential of a 
one year pilot of modified service standards for Worcester City Council.    
 
The Head of WRS informed the Committee that the Business Continuity, as 
detailed in the report, would be presented to the Joint Committee during early 
2013. 
 
Further discussion followed with regard to Audit Arrangements, joint scrutiny 
arrangements, as detailed on page 32 of the report.  Wychavon District 
Council’s, Scrutiny Committee had proposed a joint scrutiny of Worcestershire 
Regulatory Services.  All of the shared service partner authorities with the 
exception of Worcestershire County Council had agreed to participate in the 
proposed joint scrutiny.  The Head of WRS was tasked to provide the following 
information to the next meeting of the Joint Committee in respect of the 
proposed joint scrutiny of WRS:- 
 

• The agreed Terms of Reference for any proposed joint scrutiny 
arrangement of Worcestershire Regulatory Services; and   

• The Joint Committee’s involvement in any proposed joint scrutiny 
arrangement of Worcestershire Regulatory Services. 

 
RESOLVED: 

(a) that the Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services be tasked to 
 provide further details to the next meeting of the Joint Committee, with 

Page 4



Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee 
21st February 2013 

 

 regard to the potential of a one year pilot of modified service standards 
 for Worcester City Council; and 
(b) that the Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services be tasked to 

provide the information, as detailed in the preamble above, in respect of 
the proposed joint scrutiny arrangements of Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services to the next meeting of the Joint Committee; and  

(c) that the Worcestershire Regulatory Services, Service Plan, 2013/2014 
be approved. 

 
42/12 WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES FINANCIAL MONITORING 

APRIL - NOVEMBER 2012  

 
The Committee were asked to consider a report which detailed the financial 
position for the period April to November 2012. 
 
The Financial Services Manager introduced the report and in doing so 
informed Members of the revenue monitoring current underspend of £164,000 
and a predicted year end saving of £193,000; and the reasons for the 
underspend.  Member’s attention was drawn to page 66 of the agenda and the 
revised charging for 2013/2014.  It had been anticipated that a review of 
charging would be undertaken by April 2013.  Officers continued to work 
through the options and variable methods of reallocating costs and it was 
proposed that a formal review would be completed by June 2013. 
 
RESOLVED: 

(a) that an extension until June 2013 of the basis of charging, be 
approved; and 

(b) that the financial position for the period April to November 2012 be 
noted. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 5.47 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

Chairman 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

 

Joint Committee 27
th
 June 2013 

 

Title:        Worcester City Pilot for revised Service Delivery 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
 
 
 
Introduction 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
That the report be noted and a further report be brought 
forward at the completion of the 3 month pilot detailing 
projected cost savings (if any) and any other associated 
issues raised by the introduction on the changes.  
 
 
The joint Committee at their meeting on 22

nd
 November 

2012 agreed to sanction a pilot of amended service delivery 
for Worcester City with the objective of saving £40,000 
during the financial year 2013/14. 
 
 
 
 
Work was started to see what areas of work would be 
suitable for such a pilot and at a meeting with Worcester City 
Officers on 30

th
 January a suite of costed alternatives was 

suggested. 
It was made clear at this meeting that certain areas of work 
would not be suitable for the pilot and that nothing within the 
pilot should result in more work for Worcester City. 
 
Further work was carried out and Worcester were offered a 
“menu” of alternatives and this resulted in a meeting on 8

th
 

March when it was agreed to use planning consultations and 
some areas of nuisance (air pollution and accumulations) as 
the basis of the pilot. The aim was to reduce the number of 
planning applications Worcester City refered to WRS and 
promote self help to reduce the level of nuisance complaints 
being dealt with. 
Written confirmation of these proposals was sent to 
Worcester City on 22

nd
 March. On 19

th
 April Worcester City 

Council reported that they could not proceed with the current 
proposal to reduce planning consultations and that an 
alternative needed to be found. 
Final agreement was reached on May 29

th
 and amounted to 

a 3 month pilot to: 
 

a) Reduce the number of planning consultations 
currently 150-200 per year by planning officers at 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Worcester screening referrals. 
b) 3 areas on nuisance, (air pollution, drainage and 

accumulations of rubbish) not be dealt with at first 
contact but complainants be referred to Worcester 
City website and encouraged to self help. 

 
It is proposed that with respect to nuisance complaints 
falling into the above categories complainants will be 
directed to the Worcester City web site and encouraged to 
self help i.e. approach persons causing nuisance and asking 
them to desist. To help with this templates of letters etc. will 
be placed on the website and the hope is that this will 
reduce the number of investigations WRs will have to carry 
out. 
If the self help channel is found not to have provided a 
solution then if a further approach is made to WRS then it 
would be dealt with and investigated. 
 
 
Monthly meetings to assess progress will be held and the 
pilot looked at after 3 months to see if it has achieved the 
purpose of reducing Worcester City costs and if so, by how 
much. 

Contact point 
 

Steve Jorden 
Tel: 01527-881466 
email: s.jorden@worcsregservices.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 

 

 

Page 8



 

 

 

Joint Committee 

27
th
   June 2013 

 
WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES BUDGET MONITORING 2012/13  

  

Recommendation 
 

It is recommended that the Joint Committee: 
 

1.1 note the financial position for the period April 2012 –              
March 2013 

 
1.2 approve the refund of the 2012/13 underspend of £349k 

to the participating Councils, to be allocated on the % 
basis as detailed in the Business Case 2010/11. The 
total of £349k will be repaid in 2013/14 and equates to: 

 

 Council  
% 

Share  Refund of savings 

   £’000 

     

Bromsgrove  11.05% 39 

Malvern Hills  9.58% 33 

Redditch  11.31% 39 

City of Worcester 11.11% 39 

Wychavon  16.55% 58 

Wyre Forest  10.82% 38 

Worcestershire  29.58% 103 

  349 
 

1.3 Approve the Annual Return to include the Accounting 
Statements for the Joint Committee for the period 1st 
April 2012 – 31st March 2013. 

 
1.4 Note the Internal Audit Manager assurance statement for 

the financial year 2012/13 at Appendix 4. 
 

Contribution to 
Priorities 
 

The robust financial management arrangements ensure the 
priorities of the service can be delivered effectively. 

Introduction/Summary 
 

This report presents the financial position for Worcestershire 
Regulatory Services for the period April 2012 – March 2013 
together with the information required to enable members to 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



 

agree the formal annual return to be submitted to the External 
Auditors. The financial statements included in the Appendices 
include: 

• Annual Revenue 2012/13 final position  

• Annual Return 2012/13 

• Annual and Projected Financial position of the ICT 
Information Management System. 

The report also requests Members consider the savings that 
have accrued during the year and the proposal to return the 
savings realised from 2012/13. 

Background  
 

The approved  budget for 2012/13 was £5.626m. This was 
increased to £5.661m to reflect the additional training reserve 
allocation of £35k as agreed in June 2012 and reflected a 
£347k reduction on the 2011/12 budget. 
 
During the financial year a monthly financial report has been 
presented to the Management Board with a quarterly report 
considered by the Joint Committee. 
 
The costs associated with the service include annual revenue 
and those relating to the ICT Management Information system . 
A detailed Revenue Monitoring Statement for the period April – 
March 2012/13 is attached at Appendix 1 and Appendix 5 
details the expenditure on the management information system.  
 
At the end of each financial year the accounts are closed and 
the Annual Return is prepared to enable the accounts to be 
audited. This document is a prescribed form which has to be 
completed and approved by the Joint Committee. 
 
The accounts for 2012/13 will be audited by Grant Thornton 
(External Auditors) in August 2013. 
 
 

Report Revenue Monitoring 
 
The revenue monitoring statement for 2012/13 is included at 
Appendix 1. 
 
The final position of savings in relation to revenue costs is 
£349k. This underspend is mainly due to : 

• Vacancies as a result of the recruitment to new posts 
(£245k). There was 1 post at a senior level not filled 
during the year.  

• Reduced spend on premises and transport costs due to 
the savings realised from the move to Wyatt House 
together with officers working more efficiently in the use 
of their vehicles (£83k) 

• Net additional income generated from charges for 
additional works and grant received (£20k) 

Page 10



 

 
Due to the level of the underspend together with the financial 
cuts that the participating Councils are faced with in the future, 
officers propose that the Joint Committee approve the refund of 
the 2012/13 savings of £349k back to the participating Councils 
in 2013/14. 
 
It is proposed that the £349k is refunded in 2013/14 to the 
Councils based on the agreed % share as detailed in the Legal 
Agreement.. 
 
The total refund to each participating Council would be: 
 

 Council  % 
Share  

Refund of savings 

   £’000 

     

Bromsgrove  11.05% 39 

Malvern Hills  9.58% 33 

Redditch  11.31% 39 

City of Worcester 11.11% 39 

Wychavon  16.55% 58 

Wyre Forest  10.82% 38 

Worcestershire  29.58% 103 

349 

 
 
As members are aware the costs associated with severance 
that may result from future restructures were identified in the 
Business Case and factored into the funds to be released from 
participating Councils to ensure the service could be 
restructured to deliver future savings. There has been a 
requirement to fund £96k in 2012/13 for costs associated with 
redundancies within the service.  
 
Appendix 1 also details the grants received by Regulatory 
Services for specific projects which would not have formed part 
of the original budget and therefore are shown separately. 
 
Annual Return 2012/13 
 
As in 2011/12, Worcestershire Regulatory Services Joint 
Committee has been classified as a small relevant body by the 
Audit Commission as the income is less than £6.5m. As a result 
of this classification the requirement of the formal accounting 
statements for 2012/13 is limited to the return as detailed in 
Appendix 2.  For a small organisation, as defined, the Annual 
Return replaces the need to produce a lengthy Statement of 
Accounts which members will be aware are provided for the 
District and County Councils. 

To enable Members and auditors to compare the revenue 
monitoring statement 2012/13 with the Annual Return a 
schedule has been included at Appendix 3 to detail, where 

Page 11



 

appropriate, how the Annual Return is completed. 

The main variations between the return for 2011/12 and 
2012/13 are: 

• Reductions in balances brought forward due to refunds 
being made to participating Councils 

• Reductions in all payments (Line 6) due to savings made 
across the service 

• Increase in assets (Line 9) due to ongoing expenditure 
on the information management system 

• Borrowings ( Line 10), this reflects the costs associated 
with the finance leases payable on the vans  

The Governance Statement and Annual Internal Audit report 
form part of the Annual Return and a separate assurance 
statement from the Internal Audit Manager is included at 
Appendix 4. The assurance statement relates to the systems in 
place at Bromsgrove District Council as the host Council for 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services. 

 
ICT System costs 2012/13 
 
Following the appointment of IDOX for the new system a review 
of the costs included within the original business case was 
undertaken to ensure that the relevant expenditure is allocated 
to the project. 
 
Appendix 5 details the anticipated expenditure for the one off 
costs associated with the implementation of the project.  As 
previously reported there is a saving of £282k from the costs 
originally included in the business case.  
 
Implementation costs during 2012/13 amounted to £270k this 
was mainly due to the hardware and data cleansing associated 
costs. It is anticipated that the majority of expenditure on the 
project will be in 2013/14. The schedule at Appendix 5 details 
the actual 2012/13 spend and that estimated during the project 
period.  
 
The £270k for 2012/13 have been met by the grant received 
form the Regional Improvement and Efficiency Agency (£128k) 
with a share of contributions from the participating Councils 
(£142k) as shown.   
 
In addition to the one off costs there will be annual revenue 
costs resulting from the software, license charges and service 
maintenance with the new system. These costs are currently 
estimated at £79k pa and it is anticipated that funding for these 
costs will only be required from participating councils for two 
years.   
 

Page 12



 

 
Cost Apportionment 
 
Over the last few months officers, including S151 officers from 
each Authority have been reviewing the cost allocation basis 
with the aim to revise the charging mechanism to reflect a more 
activity based costing position. 
 
It was hoped that this would be brought to this meeting however 
the data required to evidence the activity based costing has 
taken a period of time to collate, to ensure it accurately reflects 
the service provision. In addition a zero based review of all 
costs has been undertaken to ensure that costs incurred by the 
service also reflect service delivery.  It is therefore proposed 
that the two elements, cost apportionment and revised budget 
be presented to the next meeting of this Committee. 
 

Financial Implications 
 

None other than those stated in the report 

Sustainability 
 

None as a direct result of this report 

Contact Points 
 

Jayne Pickering – 01527-881400 
 

Background Papers 
 

Detailed financial business case  

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 1
2
 M

o
n
th
s
 t
o
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

F
u
ll
 y
e
a
r 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
  

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 

M
a
r 
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

D
ir
e
c
t 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s

S
a
la
ry

4
,1
2
4
 

3
,7
9
1
 

-3
3
3
 

 U
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 V
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
, 

S
e
c
o
n
d
m
e
n
ts
, 
L
o
n
g
 T
e
rm

 S
ic
k
, 
M
a
te
rn
it
y
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff

3
 

8
6
 

8
4
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 s
ta
ff
 r
e
c
ru
it
e
d
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

/ 
v
a
c
a
n
c
ie
s
 -
 D
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 r
e
c
ru
it
in
g
 t
o
 l
e
v
e
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
d

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t

0
0

0

S
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

2
9

7

T
ra
in
in
g

2
2

-0
 

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e

1
9

1
7

-2
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s

4
,1
5
0

3
,9
0
5

-2
4
5
 

P
re
m
is
e
s

R
e
n
t

8
8
 

7
0
 

-1
8
 

R
o
o
m
 H
ir
e

3
1

-2
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
s

3
5

3
4

-1
 

C
le
a
n
in
g

1
0

7
-3
 

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

4
1

-3
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
h
a
rg
e
s

1
7

9
-8
 

S
e
c
u
re
 S
to
ra
g
e

1
7

1
7

0

U
ti
lit
ie
s

1
8

7
-1
1
 

W
a
te
r 
&
 S
e
w
e
ra
g
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

2
2

-0
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
P
re
m
is
e
s

1
9
4

1
4
8

-4
6
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

V
e
h
ic
le
 H
ir
e

1
2

1
0

-1
 

V
e
h
ic
le
 F
u
e
l 

7
7

-0
 

T
y
re
s

0
0

0

R
o
a
d
 F
u
n
d
 T
a
x

1
1

-0
 

V
e
h
ic
le
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e

3
4

0

V
e
h
ic
le
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e

2
2

0

C
a
r 
L
e
a
s
e

7
4

-3
 

C
a
r 
A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
s

1
8
3
 

1
5
0
 

-3
3
 

P
u
b
lic
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

0
0

0

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

2
1
5

1
7
8

-3
7
 

S
u
p
p
li
e
s
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 &
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t

4
6
 

6
9
 

2
3
 

T
e
s
t 
P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
s

1
2
 

1
 

-1
1
 

C
lo
th
e
s
, 
u
n
if
o
rm

s
 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
d
ry

5
 

2
 

-3
 

P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 &
 P
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
 

2
7
 

3
0
 

3

C
R
B
 C
h
e
c
k
s
 (
ta
x
i)

2
8
 

2
9
 

1

Page 15



R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 1
2
 M

o
n
th
s
 t
o
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

F
u
ll
 y
e
a
r 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
  

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 

M
a
r 
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

D
ir
e
c
t 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s

1
0
 

1
0
 

1

P
o
s
ta
g
e
 

1
2
 

9
 

-3
 

IC
T

6
9
 

1
0
4
 

3
5

L
e
g
a
l 
C
o
s
ts

7
 

1
 

-6
 

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
s

4
1
 

3
3
 

-8
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 &
 S
e
m
in
a
rs

6
0
 

4
2
 

-1
8
 

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
in
g
 &
 S
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e

0
 

1
 

1

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e

2
0
 

3
3
 

1
3

M
is
c
e
lla
n
e
o
u
s
 E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s

1
 

2
 

1

T
h
ir
d
 P
a
rt
y
 P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

  
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s

2
5
0

2
5
0

0

  
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 H
u
b

5
0
 

5
0
 

0
 

  
A
u
d
it

1
0
 

5
 

-5
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
S
u
p
p
li
e
s
 &
 S
e
rv
ic
e

6
4
7

6
7
0

2
2

Page 16



R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 1
2
 M

o
n
th
s
 t
o
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

F
u
ll
 y
e
a
r 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
  

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 

M
a
r 
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

D
ir
e
c
t 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs

D
o
g
 W

a
rd
e
n
 

1
4
5

1
4
1

-4
 

P
e
s
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l

4
0

5
5

1
5

In
c
o
m
e
 o
f 
£
1
7
k
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 f
ro
m
 S
e
v
e
rn
 T
re
n
t 

fo
r 
S
e
w
e
r 
B
a
it
in
g
, 
o
ff
s
e
t 
in
 I
n
c
o
m
e
 

A
n
a
ly
ti
c
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 T
ra
d
in
g
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s

9
5

9
7

2

T
ra
d
in
g
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s

8
8

0

L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
 

1
4

1
2

-2
 

O
th
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
/c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

1
8
 

0
 

-1
8
 

W
a
te
r 
S
a
fe
ty

5
8

3

F
o
o
d
 S
a
fe
ty

8
2

-5
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 S
a
fe
ty

2
4

3

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n

3
3
 

6
9
 

3
6
 

B
e
re
a
v
e
m
e
n
t 
/ 
W
o
rk
s
 i
n
 D
e
fa
u
lt
 t
o
 b
e
 

c
h
a
rg
e
d
 t
o
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

T
a
x
i 
T
e
s
ts

3
1

3
4

3

G
ra
n
ts
 /
 S
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s

1
4

1
3

-1
 

A
d
v
e
rt
is
n
g
 

1
1

2
-8
 

P
u
b
lic
it
y
 &
 P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
s

2
0

-2
 

C
R
B
 C
h
e
c
k
s

0
0

0

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l

4
2
3

4
4
7

2
5

In
c
o
m
e

C
a
r 
L
e
a
s
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 /
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

C
o
u
rs
e
s
 /
 B
e
re
a
v
e
m
e
n
t 
/ 
W
o
rk
s
 i
n
 

D
e
fa
u
lt
 /
 S
e
w
e
r 
B
a
it
in
g
 e
tc

-3
 

-6
1
 

-5
9
 

In
c
o
m
e
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 t
o
 o
ff
s
e
t 
c
o
s
ts
 a
s
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

a
b
o
v
e

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l

-3
 

-6
1
 

-5
9
 

T
o
ta
l

5
,6
2
6

5
,2
8
6

-3
4
0
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 

3
5
 

2
6
 

-9
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l

3
5

2
6

-9
 

T
o
ta
l

5
,6
6
1

5
,3
1
2

-3
4
9
 

1
2
-1
3
 U
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 r
e
fu
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs

£
'0
0
0

%

B
ro
m
s
g
ro
v
e

3
9
 

1
1
.0
5
 

M
a
lv
e
rn
 H
ill
s

3
3
 

9
.5
8
 

R
e
d
d
it
c
h

3
9
 

1
1
.3
1
 

W
o
rc
s
 C
it
y

3
9
 

1
1
.1
1
 

W
y
c
h
a
v
o
n

5
8
 

1
6
.5
5
 

W
y
re
 F
o
re
s
t

3
8
 

1
0
.8
2
 

W
o
rc
s
 C
o
u
n
ty

1
0
3
 

2
9
.5
8
 

T
o
ta
l 
R
e
fu
n
d

3
4
9
 

1
0
0
.0
0
 

Page 17



R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1

 1
2
 M

o
n
th
s
 t
o
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

F
u
ll
 y
e
a
r 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
  

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 t
o
 

M
a
r 
1
3

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e

D
ir
e
c
t 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

£
'0
0
0

G
ra
n
t 
F
u
n
d
e
d
 S
p
e
n
d

S
p
e
n
d
 1
2
-1
3

£
'0
0
0

R
e
m
a
in
in
g
 

B
a
la
n
c
e
 

£
'0
0
0

F
u
n
d
e
d
 B
y

C
o
m
m
e
n
ts

N
u
tr
it
io
n
 F
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le

2
 

1
6
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 

T
ru
s
t

U
n
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
ll 
B
e
in
g

1
 

4
7
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 C
a
re
 

T
ru
s
t

C
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l

D
E
F
R
A
 G
ra
n
t 
- 
S
m
a
llw

o
o
d
 C
a
d
m
iu
m

2
 

0
 D
E
F
R
A

C
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l

D
E
F
R
A
 G
ra
n
t 
- 
M
a
rl
p
o
o
l 
D
ri
v
e

3
0
 

0
 D
E
F
R
A

C
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l

F
o

o
d
 

H
y

1
7
 

0
 F
o
o
d
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 

G
ra
n
t 
c
la
im
e
d
 a
ft
e
r 
c
o
m
p
le
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t

W
o
rc
s
 W

o
rk
s
 W

e
ll

2
 

6
 P
u
b
lic
 H
e
a
lt
h
 

D
e
p
t

U
n
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l

C
a
n
n
y
 C
a
te
ri
n
g

1
3
 

0
 C
C
G
 

U
n
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l

R
IE
P

4
4
 

2
2
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
&
 

E
ff
ic
ie
n
c
y
 W

e
s
t 

M
id
la
n
d
s

C
o
n
d
it
io
n
a
l

G
ra
n
t 
In
c
o
m
e

-1
1
0
 

T
o
ta
l

0
9
2

Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



A
P
P
E
N
D
IX
 3

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
tu
rn
 R
e
c
o
n
c
il
ia
ti
o
n
 -
 2
0
1
2
-1
3

£
N
o
te
s
:

S
ta
ff
 C
o
s
ts

  
E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

3
,9
0
4
,6
4
9

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  
- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t

  
R
e
d
u
n
d
a
n
c
y
 

3
6
,5
6
7

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
s
 f
ro
m
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs

  
P
e
n
s
io
n
 S
tr
a
in
 

5
9
,4
4
7

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
fu
n
d
s
 f
ro
m
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs

  
F
o
o
d
 H
y
g
ie
n
e
 R
a
ti
n
g
 S
y
s
te
m
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

1
3
,9
9
2

G
ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g

  
C
a
n
n
y
 C
a
te
ri
n
g
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

1
2
,4
9
8

G
ra
n
t 
fu
n
d
in
g

T
o
ta
l

4
,0
2
7
,1
5
3

A
ll
 O
th
e
r 
P
a
y
m
e
n
ts

  
P
re
m
is
e
s

1
4
8
,1
9
4

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  
- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t

  
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt

1
7
7
,7
0
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  
- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t

  
S
u
p
p
lie
s
 &
 S
e
rv
ic
e

6
9
5
,5
5
6

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  
- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 

  
C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs

4
4
7
,7
4
9

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
  
- 
R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t

  
R
e
v
 T
ra
n
s
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 F
u
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 R
IE
P

4
3
,9
6
0

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

  
H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 W

e
ll 
B
e
in
g
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

9
1
7

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

  
M
a
rl
p
o
o
l 
D
ri
v
e
 -
 D
e
fr
a
 G
ra
n
t

2
9
,8
8
0

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

  
S
m
a
llw

o
o
d
 C
a
d
m
in
u
m
 -
 D
e
fr
a
 G
ra
n
t

2
,1
6
4

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

  
N
u
tr
it
io
n
 F
o
r 
O
ld
e
r 
P
e
o
p
le
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

1
,5
0
0

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

  
F
o
o
d
 H
y
g
ie
n
e
 R
a
ti
n
g
 S
y
s
te
m
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

2
,9
9
4

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

  
C
a
n
n
y
 C
a
te
ri
n
g
 I
n
it
ia
ti
v
e

9
3
2

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

  
W
o
rc
s
 W

o
rk
s
 W

e
ll 
In
it
ia
ti
v
e

2
,1
0
7

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 1
 -
 G
ra
n
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

T
o
ta
l

1
,5
5
3
,6
5
5

T
o
ta
l 
A
s
s
e
ts

Page 25



IC
T
 P
ro
je
c
t 

3
4
1
,5
0
0

4
 D
o
g
 W

a
rd
e
n
 V
a
n
s

3
8
,0
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
A
s
s
e
ts

3
7
9
,5
0
0

T
o
ta
l 
B
o
rr
o
w
in
g
s

F
in
a
n
c
e
 L
e
a
s
e
 -
 4
 D
o
g
 W

a
rd
e
n
 V
a
n
s

3
8
,0
0
0

R
e
-P
a
id
 2
0
1
2
-1
3

-5
,4
9
5
 

O
u
ts
ta
n
d
in
g
 C
a
p
it
a
l 
B
a
la
n
c
e

3
2
,5
0
5

Page 26



 

APPENDIX 4 
 
 
 
Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Services Manager’s Opinion on the 
Effectiveness of the System of Internal Control at Bromsgrove District 

Council (the Council) for the Year Ended 31st March 2013 
 
 
1. Audit Opinion 
 

1.1 The internal audit of Bromsgrove District Council’s systems and 
operations during 2012/13 was conducted in accordance with the 
Internal Audit Annual plan which was approved by the Audit Board on 
29th March 2012.  

 
1.2 The Internal Audit function was set up as a shared service in 2010/11 

and hosted by Worcester City, for 5 district councils.  The shared service 
operates in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and the CIPFA Code of Practice 2006 
and objectively reviews on a continuous basis the extent to which the 
internal control environment supports and promotes the achievement of 
the Council’s objectives and contributes to the proper, economic and 
effective use of resources. 
 

1.3 The Internal Audit Plan for 2012/2013 was risk based (assessing audit 
and assurance factors, materiality risk, impact of failure, system risk, 
resource risk  fraud risk, and external risk) using a predefined scoring 
system.  It included: 

 
o a number of core systems which were designed to suitably 

assist the external auditor to reach their ‘opinion’ other 
corporate systems for example governance and  

o a number of operational systems, for example parks and open 
spaces, markets and cemeteries, were looked at to maintain 
and improve its control systems and risk management 
processes or reinforce its oversight of such systems. 

 
1.4 The 2012/13 internal audit plan was delivered in full providing sufficient 

coverage for the Service Manager to form an overall opinion.  
 
1.5 Based on the audits performed in accordance with the approved plan, 

the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Services Manager has 
concluded that the internal control arrangements during 2012/13 
effectively managed the principal risks identified in the audit plan and 
can be reasonably relied upon to ensure that the Council’s corporate 
objectives have been met. 

 

Page 27



 

1.6 In relation to the twenty one reviews that have been undertaken, 
seventeen audits have been finalised and four are nearing completion at 
draft report stage.  Risk management has been re-launched during 
2012/13 with a Corporate Risk Register being formulated and training 
being provided.  Further work is required to embed this throughout the 
organisation with the outcomes being monitored by the Risk 
Management Group.   

 
1.7 As part of the process of assessing the Council’s control environment, 

senior officers within the Council are required to complete an annual 
“Internal Control Assurance Statement” to confirm that the controls in the 
areas for which they are responsible are operating effectively. Officers 
were required to acknowledge their responsibilities for establishing and 
maintaining adequate and effective systems of internal control in the 
services for which they are responsible and confirming that those 
controls were operating effectively except where reported otherwise. No 
areas of significant risk have been identified. Any concerns raised by 
managers will be assessed and addressed by the Authorities Corporate 
Management Team. 
 

1.8 The majority of the completed audits have been allocated an audit 
assurance of either moderate or above meaning that there is generally a 
sound system of internal control in place, no significant control issues 
have been encountered and no material losses have been identified 
during a time of continuing significant transformation and change. 

 
 
Andy Bromage 
Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Services Manager 
June 2013 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



ICT MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM PROJECT 2012/13 - 2013/14 BUDGET  APPENDIX 5

Capital Asset/ Investment description Budget - 

12/13                          

£'000

Spend - 12/13                          

£'000

Budget - 13/14                          

£'000

Revenue

System 

Budget 

2014/15 & 

2015/16

£'000

ICT  - Capital

Software Licences (break down into individual modules if appropriate) 0 96 

Software 46 46 4 

Mobile Working Devices 0 120 

Hardware required including implementation (e.g. servers onsite or 

hosted - please describe)

69 69 41 

Modifications and software customisation 0 14 

Systems integration and interface development (cost per interface if 

possible on separate lines)

0 10 

Data Cleansing / Transfer 111 111 218 

Sub-Total Capital 226 226 503 

ICT  - Revenue (one off only) 

Project Management / Hosting 44 44 86 

Training for end users 0 19 

Sub-Total Revenue 44 44 105 

Annual Software License etc 

Software Licences 12 12 

Other Licences 8 8 

Hosting Costs 59 59 

Sub-Total Annual software license etc 0 0 79 79 

TOTAL FUNDING REQUIRED 270 270 687 79 

RIEP Funding to be drawn down 128 128 22 

TOTAL TO BE FUNDED BY PARTNERS 142 142 665 79 

Partner Transformation Project Contributions - Based on Business 

Case at Budget

Total 

Contribution     

12-13                            

£'000

Total 

Contribution 13-

14                                   

£'000

Annual Revenue 

Funding 

Requirement 

2014/15              

£'000

Partner 

Savings                 

%

Partner Contribution                 

%

Bromsgrove 16 73 9 31 11.05%

Worcs City 16 74 9 31 11.11%

Worcs County 42 197 23 83 29.58%

Malvern Hills 14 64 8 27 9.58%

Redditch 16 75 9 32 11.31%

Wychavon 24 110 13 47 16.55%

Wyre Forest 15 72 9 31 10.82%

Total 142 665 79 282 100.00%

£

Budget as per Business Case 1,538

Funded by:-

Spend 2010/11 - Funded by partners 101

Spend 2011/12 - Funded by RIEP 119

Spend 2012/13 - Funded by Partners 142

Spend 2012/13 - Funded by RIEP 128

Annual Revenue Funding Requirement 2014/15 & 15/16 79

Funding Requirement From Partners 13/14 665

RIEP Funding to be drawn down 22

Total Project 1,256

SAVINGS FROM ORIGINAL BUSINESS CASE 282

\\svsan008\moderngovdata\AgendaItemDocs\6\8\0\AI00014086\$p15botnz.xls

Page 29



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

Date  27 June 2013 

 

WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES 

ANNUAL REPORT 
 

Recommendation 
 

To receive the report and forward a copy to the Chief 
Executive of each member authority. 
 

Contribution to 
Priorities 
 

Not applicable. 

Background Under the Worcestershire Shared Services Partnership 
Service Level Agreement Worcestershire Regulatory 
Services is required to submit to the Joint Committee an 
annual report that covers the performance of the shared 
service and provides a summary of the finances.  The report 
covers the period from 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013.  If 
agreed the report will then be forwarded to each Chief 
Executive of each member authority. 

Report Under Clause 12 of Part 1 of the Shared Services 
Partnership Agreement the Joint Committee is required to 
receive a report at its annual meeting which will be held no 
later than 30 June 2013.  The report covers the period from 
1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013 and provides a look back 
over the last 12 months of operation. 
 
Also in accordance with Service Level Agreement the 
annual report is co-signed by the Head of Worcestershire 
Regulatory Services and the Lead Financial Officer for the 
Host. 
 
The report covers the performance of the Service for that 
period, however individual councils capture and report on 
difference performance measures, therefore it is difficult to 
make comparisons across the Service.  It also gives a 
summary of the financial position, the key achievements and 
covers issues relating to Human Resources, Risk 
Management, Equality and Diversity and discusses the 
Service’s approach to Business Transformation. 

Agenda Item 8

Page 31



 
 
  

 

Financial Implications 
 

The financial implications are contained within the annual 
report. 
 

Sustainability Not applicable. 
 

Contact Points 
 

Steve Jorden, Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
Tel: 01527-881466, 
email: s.jorden@worcsregservices.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 

Worcestershire Shared Service Partnership Service Level 
Agreement. 
 

 

Page 32



 

 

A
N
N
U
A
L
 R
E
P
O
R
T
 

 

2
0
1
3
/1
4
 

   

 

M
ak
in
g
  W

o
rc
es
te
rs
h
ir
e 
a 
h
ea
lt
h
y,
 s
af
e 
an

d
 a
 f
ai
r 
p
la
c
e 
to
 li
ve
 w
h
er
e
 b
u
si
n
es
se
s 
ca
n
 t
h
ri
ve
. 

Page 33



 2

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
ag

e 
 In
tr
od
uc
tio
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 3
 

 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 5
 

 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an
ag
em

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 6
 

 K
ey
 A
ch
ie
ve
m
en
ts
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 8
 

 O
th
er
 H
ig
hl
ig
ht
s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 9
 

 F
in
an
ci
al
 M
an
ag
em

en
t I
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
14
 

 H
um

an
 R
es
ou
rc
es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
15
 

 A
cc
om

m
od
at
io
n 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
16
 

 B
us
in
es
s 
T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

16
 

 R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
17
 

 E
qu
al
ity
  a
nd
 D
iv
er
si
ty
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
17
 

 N
ex
t S

te
ps
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

17
 

 A
pp
en
di
x 
1 
– 
C
ur
re
nt
 S
tr
uc
tu
re
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
19
 

A
pp
en
di
x 
2 
– 
R
is
k 
Lo
g 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
20
 

A
pp
en
di
x 
3–
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
fo
r 
20
12
/1
3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

23
 

A
pp
en
di
x 
4 
– 
R
ev
en
ue
 O
ut
-t
ur
n 
20
11
/1
2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

24
 

A
pp
en
di
x 
5 
– 
A
gr
ee
d 
W
R
S
 b
ud
ge
t 2
01
2/
13
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

29
 

A
pp
en
di
x 
6 
– 
A
ct
iv
ity
 D
at
a 
by
 in
di
vi
du
al
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
31
 

Page 34



 3

In
tr
o
d
u
ct
io
n
 

 T
hi
s 
A
nn
ua
l R

ep
or
t h
as
 b
ee
n 
pr
od
uc
ed
 fo
r 
th
e 
Jo
in
t C

om
m
itt
ee
 in
 a
cc
or
da
nc
e 
w
ith
 c
la
us
e 
12
 o
f P

ar
t 1
 o
f t
he
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 S
ha
re
d 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 A
gr
ee
m
en
t. 

T
he
 r
ep
or
t c
ov
er
s 
th
e 
pr
og
re
ss
 o
f W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
(W

R
S
) 
fo
r 
th
e 
pe
rio
d 
fr
om

 th
e 
1s

t  A
pr
il 
20
12
 u
p 
to
 th
e 
31

s
t  M

ar
ch
 2
01
3 
an
d 
re
po
rt
s 
op
er
at
io
na
l 

ac
tiv
ity
 b
y 
th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 s
er
vi
ce
 e
le
m
en
ts
 fo
r 
th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 y
ea
r.
 T
he
 r
ep
or
t s
um

m
ar
is
es
 th
e 
ke
y 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 d
at
a 
fo
r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
an
d 
a 
su
m
m
ar
y 
of
 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 p
os
iti
on
. 

 T
hi
s 
ye
ar
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
ve
ry
 m
uc
h 
on
e 
of
 e
m
be
dd
in
g 
th
e 
re
su
lts
 fr
om

 o
ur
 e
ar
ly
 w
or
k 
on
 tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
an
d 
co
nt
in
ui
ng
 to
 e
xp
lo
re
 o
pt
io
ns
 to
 r
ed
uc
e 
fu
tu
re
 fi
na
nc
ia
l 

pr
es
su
re
s 
on
 th
e 
bu
dg
et
. S

ta
ff 
ha
ve
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
to
 w
or
k 
fle
xi
bl
y 
an
d 
us
e 
m
ob
ile
 w
or
ki
ng
 p
at
te
rn
s 
so
 th
at
 w
e 
co
nt
in
ue
 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 c
ou
nt
y-
w
id
e 
co
ve
ra
ge
 fo
r 
al
l a
ct
iv
iti
es
 

w
ith
 a
 lo
ca
l p
re
se
nc
e 
be
in
g 
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d 
at
 to
uc
hd
ow

n 
po
in
ts
 fo
r 
lic
en
si
ng
 s
ur
ge
rie
s.
  

 A
 m
aj
or
 s
te
p 
fo
rw
ar
d 
fo
r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
in
 th
is
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
pe
rio
d 
ha
s 
be
en
 th
e 
pr
oc
ur
em

en
t p
ro
ce
ss
 a
nd
 fi
na
l a
pp
oi
nt
m
en
t o
f a
 m
aj
or
 s
up
pl
ie
r 
(I
D
O
X
) 
fo
r 
th
e 
su
pp
ly
 a
nd
 

im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
IT
 p
la
tfo
rm

. W
ith
 a
 g
o 
liv
e 
da
te
 p
la
nn
ed
 fo
r 
ea
rly
 a
ut
um

n 
20
13
, a
 te
am

 o
f 1
0 
W
R
S
 s
ta
ff 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
he
av
ily
 in
vo
lv
ed
 in
 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t, 
bu
ild
in
g 

th
e 
sy
st
em

, u
nd
er
ta
ki
ng
 th
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 th
e 
su
pp
lie
r 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 
sy
st
em

 is
 c
on
fig
ur
ed
 to
 s
ui
t o
ur
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
 n
ee
ds
. 

 D
ue
 to
 th
e 
in
cr
ea
si
ng
 a
nd
 v
ar
ie
d 
bu
dg
et
 p
re
ss
ur
es
 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
ar
e 
fa
ci
ng
 w
e 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
bu
sy
 d
ev
el
op
in
g 
ou
r 
st
ra
te
gy
 to
 m
ee
t t
hi
s 
po
te
nt
ia
l d
iv
er
si
ty
 in
 d
em

an
ds
. O

ur
 

st
ra
te
gy
 c
on
si
st
s 
of
 th
re
e 
st
ra
nd
s,
 w
or
k 
to
 a
ttr
ac
t a
dd
iti
on
al
 p
ar
tn
er
s,
 e
xp
lo
rin
g 
op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 to
 g
en
er
at
e 
in
co
m
e 
an
d 
ex
pl
or
in
g 
th
e 
vi
ab
ili
ty
 o
f a
 jo
in
t v
en
tu
re
 w
ith
 a
 

pr
iv
at
e 
co
m
pa
ny
 

 T
he
 W

or
ce
st
er
 R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
bu
dg
et
 is
 fi
xe
d 
at
 £
5,
62
6,
00
0 
fo
r 
ne
xt
 y
ea
r 
bu
t t
he
 s
er
vi
ce
 w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 to
 e
xp
lo
re
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
to
 g
en
er
at
e 
in
co
m
e,
 in
cl
ud
in
g 

in
cr
ea
si
ng
 th
e 
sc
op
e 
of
 W

R
S
 to
 ta
ke
 o
n 
ot
he
r 
pa
rt
ne
rs
. A

ny
 p
ro
po
sa
ls
 w
ill
 b
e 
ba
ck
ed
 u
p 
by
 a
 fu
ll 
bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 
an
d 
re
po
rt
ed
 to
 th
e 
M
an
ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 a
nd
 J
oi
nt
 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 fo
r 
di
sc
us
si
on
. A

s 
yo
u 
w
ill
 s
ee
 fr
om

 th
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
w
e 
ha
ve
 e
xc
ee
de
d 
th
e 
sa
vi
ng
s 
in
di
ca
te
d 
in
 th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 b
us
in
es
s 
ca
se
 (
23
%
 a
g
ai
n
st
 1
7.
5%

).
 

W
e 
do
 h
ow

ev
er
 u
nd
er
st
an
d 
th
at
, w

ith
 th
e 
ch
al
le
ng
in
g 
fin
an
ci
al
 s
itu
at
io
n 
co
nt
in
ui
ng
, p
ar
tn
er
s 
ha
ve
 to
ld
 u
s 
th
at
 fu
rt
he
r 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 s
av
in
gs
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 a
re
 li
ke
ly
, a
nd
 

ac
ce
pt
in
g 
th
is
 m
ay
 le
ad
 to
 c
ut
s 
in
 s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y.
 A
 ‘m

at
rix
 o
f o
pt
io
ns
, b
as
ed
 o
n 
a 
ze
ro
 b
as
ed
 b
ud
ge
t i
s 
cu
rr
en
tly
 b
ei
ng
 d
ev
el
op
ed
. T

hi
s 
m
at
rix
 w
ill
 d
et
ai
l t
he
 c
os
t o
f 

th
e 
va
rio
us
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
s 
an
d 
pr
ov
id
e 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 w
ith
 a
 r
is
k 
ba
se
d,
 fu
lly
 c
os
te
d 
m
en
u 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 to
 fu
tu
re
 s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y.
 In
 a
dd
iti
on
 a
n 
in
fo
rm

al
 r
eq
ue
st
 

w
as
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
fr
om

 W
or
ce
st
er
 C
ity
 to
 d
ev
el
op
 a
 p
ilo
t t
ha
t w

ou
ld
 fi
nd
 a
n 
ex
tr
a 
£4
0k
 (
6%

 o
f 
co

n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
).
 W

e 
w
ill
 lo
ok
 a
t w

ha
t a
 r
an
ge
 o
f p
ot
en
tia
l c
os
t r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 c
ou
ld
 

m
ea
n 
fo
r 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 
an
d 
w
ha
t t
he
 p
ot
en
tia
l i
m
pa
ct
 a
nd
 r
is
ks
 th
ey
 r
ep
re
se
nt
 b
ot
h 
fo
r 
W
or
ce
st
er
 C
ity
 a
nd
 th
e 
lo
ca
l c
om

m
un
ity
.  

 W
e 
ha
ve
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
to
 r
ed
es
ig
n 
se
rv
ic
es
 to
 d
riv
e 
ou
t w

as
te
 o
f t
he
 s
ys
te
m
. T

he
 a
pp
lic
at
io
n 
of
 th
e 
‘S
ys
te
m
s 
T
hi
nk
in
g’
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 r
ed
es
ig
n 
ha
s 
be
en
 a
n 
on
go
in
g 

th
em

e 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
 a
nd
 th
is
 w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 a
s 
th
is
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
to
 c
ha
ng
e 
is
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
co
nc
ep
t o
f c
on
tin
uo
us
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t. 
O
ur
 fo
cu
s 
w
ill
 h
ow

ev
er
 r
em

ai
n 
on
 

co
nt
rib
ut
in
g 
to
 o
ur
 th
re
e 
st
ra
te
gi
c 
pr
io
rit
ie
s,
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 fr
om

 o
ur
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
ow

n 
pr
io
rit
ie
s:
 

 

•
 

S
up
po
rt
in
g 
th
e 
lo
ca
l e
co
no
m
y 

•
 

Im
pr
ov
in
g 
H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 W

el
l b
ei
ng
 

•
 

T
ac
kl
in
g 
an
d 
P
re
ve
nt
in
g 
C
rim

e 
an
d 
D
is
or
de
r 

 

Page 35



 4

In
 d
el
iv
er
in
g 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
se
 th
er
e 
is
 r
ec
og
ni
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
G
ov
er
nm

en
ts
 d
em

an
ds
 fo
r 
im
pr
ov
ed
 p
ub
lic
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
an
d 
pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
ly
, i
n 
re
la
tio
n 
to
 r
eg
ul
at
io
n,
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
th
e 

bu
rd
en
s 
on
 b
us
in
es
s 
to
 a
llo
w
 g
ro
w
th
. W

e 
w
ill
 s
up
po
rt
 le
gi
tim

at
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 a
nd
, a
t t
he
 s
am

e 
tim

e,
 ta
ck
le
 r
og
ue
s 
an
d 
cr
im
in
al
s 
to
 p
ro
te
ct
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
, p
ar
tic
ul
ar
ly
 th
e 

vu
ln
er
ab
le
 a
nd
 h
on
es
t t
ra
de
rs
.  

C
en
tr
al
 to
 th
is
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
is
 th
e 
av
ai
la
bi
lit
y 
of
 a
cc
ur
at
e 
da
ta
 a
nd
 in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
sh
ar
in
g.
 W

ith
 th
is
 in
 m
in
d 
an
 in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
un
it 
w
as
 s
et
 u
p 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
 in
 

or
de
r 
to
 c
oo
rd
in
at
e 
an
d 
an
al
ys
e 
in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
ob
ta
in
ed
 b
y 
W
R
S
 a
nd
 fr
om

 e
xt
er
na
l a
ge
nc
ie
s.
 T
he
 m
ai
n 
ai
m
s 
of
 th
e 
un
it 
ar
e 
to
 r
ec
or
d 
an
d 
an
al
ys
e 
da
ta
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 ta
rg
et
 

W
R
S
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 m
or
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y 
an
d 
to
 fo
rg
e 
lin
ks
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 e
nf
or
ce
m
en
t a
ge
nc
ie
s 
an
d 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 to
 s
ha
re
 in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
an
d 
ta
rg
et
 e
nf
or
ce
m
en
t a
ct
io
n.
 W

e 
w
ill
 lo
ok
 to
 

de
ve
lo
p 
ta
sk
in
g 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
on
e 
th
is
 is
 e
m
be
dd
ed
. 

 T
he
 u
ni
t h
as
 m
ad
e 
gr
ea
t s
tr
id
es
 fo
rw
ar
d 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
. A

n 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
re
la
tio
ns
hi
p 
ha
s 
be
en
 s
et
 u
p 
be
tw
ee
n 
W
R
S
 a
nd
 W

es
t M

er
ci
a 
P
ol
ic
e 
fo
rc
e 
in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
w
hi
ch
 h
as
 

re
su
lte
d 
in
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
sh
ar
in
g 
an
d 
th
e 
ar
re
st
 o
f r
og
ue
 tr
ad
er
s 
th
is
 y
ea
r.
 T
he
 u
ni
t h
as
 a
ls
o 
pr
ov
id
ed
 in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
to
 o
th
er
 tr
ad
in
g 
st
an
da
rd
s 
au
th
or
iti
es
 a
ss
is
tin
g 

th
em

 w
ith
 c
rim

in
al
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
es
 to
 th
e 
re
gi
on
al
 in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
da
ta
ba
se
. W

ith
 th
is
 in
 m
in
d 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
ha
s 
es
ta
bl
is
he
d 
an
 In
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
U
ni
t. 
 

 W
e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 to
 fi
nd
 w
ay
s 
of
 h
ea
rin
g 
ou
r 
va
rio
us
 c
us
to
m
er
’s
 v
oi
ce
s 
an
d 
re
sp
on
d 
ac
co
rd
in
gl
y,
 a
lth
ou
gh
 a
s 
ou
r 
re
so
ur
ce
s 
sh
rin
k,
 th
e 
re
m
ai
nd
er
 w
ill
 b
e 
fo
cu
se
d 
on
 th
e 

m
os
t s
ig
ni
fic
an
t p
ro
bl
em

s 
us
in
g 
in
te
lli
ge
nc
e,
 s
o 
it 
w
ill
 b
ec
om

e 
in
cr
ea
si
ng
ly
 d
iff
ic
ul
t t
o 
ad
dr
es
s 
in
di
vi
du
al
 w
an
ts
 o
r 
ne
ed
s.
 

                    __
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
_ 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
__
_ 

S
te
ve
 J
or
de
n 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Ja
yn
e 
P
ic
ke
rin
g 

Page 36



 5

H
ea
d 
of
 R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Le
ad
 F
in
an
ci
al
 O
ffi
ce
r

Page 37



 6

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 h
as
 r
em

ai
ne
d 
po
si
tiv
e 
de
sp
ite
 th
e 
di
ffi
cu
lti
es
 e
nc
ou
nt
er
ed
 tr
yi
ng
 to
 e
xt
ra
ct
 a
cc
ur
at
e 
da
ta
 fr
om

 2
0+
 le
ga
cy
 s
ys
te
m
s 
bu
t t
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
m
uc
h 
im
pr
ov
ed
 o
nc
e 
th
e 

ne
w
 IT

 s
ys
te
m
 is
 u
p 
an
d 
ru
nn
in
g 
in
 th
e 
au
tu
m
n 
20
13
. O

ur
 k
ey
 m
ea
su
re
s 
ar
e 
ar
ou
nd
 c
us
to
m
er
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
an
d 
th
e 
po
si
tiv
e 
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
of
 b
us
in
es
se
s.
 T
he
 v
as
t m

aj
or
ity
 

of
 h
ig
he
r 
ris
k 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 h
av
e 
be
en
 s
ub
je
ct
 to
 in
sp
ec
tio
n 
or
 s
om

e 
ot
he
r 
fo
rm

 o
f s
ui
ta
bl
e 
in
te
rv
en
tio
n 
an
d 
th
e 
ke
y 
pr
io
rit
ie
s 
of
 e
ac
h 
pa
rt
ne
r 
co
un
ci
l h
av
e 
be
en
 fu
lfi
lle
d.
 

B
us
in
es
s 
an
d 
co
ns
um

er
 s
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
ha
ve
 r
em

ai
ne
d 
at
 h
ig
h 
le
ve
ls
 in
sp
ite
 o
f t
he
 m
an
y 
is
su
es
 w
e 
ha
ve
 h
ad
 w
ith
 c
om

m
un
ic
at
io
n 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
. 

 M
ea
su

re
 

F
ig
u
re
 

C
o
m
m
en

ta
ry
 

1.
 
B
us
in
es
s 
sa
tis
fa
ct
io
n 
 

 
88
%
 

R
es
po
nd
en
ts
 a
sk
ed
 if
 th
ey
 a
re
 s
at
is
fie
d 
w
ith
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 

2.
 
C
lie
nt
 S
at
is
fa
ct
io
n 
 

82
%
 

R
es
po
nd
en
ts
 a
sk
ed
 if
 th
ey
 a
re
 s
at
is
fie
d 
w
ith
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
pr
ov
id
ed
 

3.
 
Im
pr
ov
ed
 C
us
to
m
er
 C
on
fid
en
ce
  

 

85
%
 

77
%
 

B
ot
h 
cu
st
om

er
 g
ro
up
s 
w
er
e 
as
ke
d 
if,
 fo
llo
w
in
g 
co
nt
ac
t w

ith
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e,
 th
ey
 fe
lt 
be
tte
r 
eq
ui
pp
ed
 to
 d
ea
l w

ith
 

fu
tu
re
 p
ro
bl
em

s 
th
em

se
lv
es
 

4.
 P
ro
po
rt
io
n 
of
 b
us
in
es
s 
br
oa
dl
y 
co
m
pl
ia
nt
 (
of
 

th
os
e 
in
sp
ec
te
d 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
pe
rio
d)
  

94
.4
%
 

 

E
H
/T
S
 F
oo
d 
S
af
et
y 
fu
nc
tio
n.
 (
D
is
tr
ic
t f
ig
ur
es
 w
ill
 b
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
on
ce
 L
A
E
M
S
 r
et
ur
n 
is
 c
on
fir
m
ed
 b
y 

F
S
A
.)
 

 

5.
 P
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
of
 fo
od
 p
re
m
is
es
 s
co
rin
g 
0,
1,
or
 2
 

st
ar
 a
t 1

s
t  A
pr
il 
ea
ch
 y
ea
r 
(t
he
 p
oo
re
st
 p
er
fo
rm

er
s)
 

5.
6%

 
T
hi
s 
m
ea
ns
 th
at
 9
4.
4%

 o
f b
us
in
es
se
s 
ar
e 
ro
ut
in
el
y 
pr
od
uc
in
g 
sa
fe
 fo
od
. 

6.
 P
er
ce
nt
ag
e 
of
 p
re
m
is
es
 s
el
lin
g 
al
co
ho
l t
o 

ch
ild
re
n 
 

0%
 

T
he
 is
su
e 
of
 d
ire
ct
 s
al
es
 o
f a
lc
oh
ol
 fr
om

 s
ho
ps
 to
 c
hi
ld
re
n 
ha
s 
ve
ry
 m
uc
h 
di
m
in
is
he
d 
in
 r
ec
en
t y
ea
rs
 d
ue
 to
 

im
pr
ov
ed
 b
us
in
es
s 
sy
st
em

s,
 b
et
te
r 
st
af
f t
ra
in
in
g 
an
d 
th
e 
hi
st
or
ic
al
 in
te
rv
en
tio
ns
 o
f t
he
 s
er
vi
ce
. U

nd
er
ag
e 

dr
in
ki
ng
 is
 s
til
l a
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t i
ss
ue
 b
ut
 th
er
e 
ar
e 
ot
he
r 
av
en
ue
s 
fo
r 
ac
ce
ss
 w
hi
ch
 n
ee
d 
to
 b
e 
ta
ck
le
d.
 

7.
 N
o.
 n
oi
se
 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
re
ce
iv
ed
 p
er
 1
00
0 

po
pu
la
tio
n 
 

3.
88
 

T
hi
s 
is
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
a 
co
un
ty
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
of
 5
66
,0
00
. U

si
ng
 a
 s
im
ila
r 
fig
ur
e 
fo
r 
po
pu
la
tio
n,
 la
st
 y
ea
r’s
 r
at
e 
w
as
 4
.2
0 

(w
e 
re
po
rt
ed
 4
.2
9 
ba
se
d 
on
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 
of
 5
55
,0
00
.)
  

8.
 c
os
t o
f e
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l h
ea
lth
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 p
er
 h
ea
d 

of
 p
op
ul
at
io
n 

£5
.8
9 

T
hi
s 
co
ve
rs
 a
ll 
fo
rm

er
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 
fu
nc
tio
ns
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
F
oo
d 
S
af
et
y,
 H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y 
at
 W

or
k,
 P
ol
lu
tio
n 

C
on
tr
ol
, D

og
 W

ar
de
n,
 P
es
t C

on
tr
ol
 b
ut
 E
X
C
L
U
D
E
S
 L
ic
en
si
ng
.  
 

9.
 c
os
t o
f t
ra
di
ng
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 p
er
 h
ea
d 
of
 

po
pu
la
tio
n 

£2
.9
0 

T
hi
s 
in
cl
ud
es
 a
ll 
fo
rm

er
 C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il 
fu
nc
tio
ns
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
W
ei
gh
ts
 a
nd
 M
ea
su
re
s,
 F
oo
d 
an
d 
A
gr
ic
ul
tu
ra
l 

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
, P

ro
du
ct
 S
af
et
y,
 F
ai
r 
T
ra
di
ng
, A

ni
m
al
 H
ea
lth
, P

et
ro
le
um

 a
nd
 E
xp
lo
si
ve
s 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
an
d 
ac
co
un
ts
 fo
r 

T
S
 in
co
m
e 
co
nt
rib
ut
ed
 d
ire
ct
ly
 to
 th
e 
C
ou
nt
y.
  

10
. %

 o
f a
pp
lic
an
ts
 fo
r 
dr
iv
er
 li
ce
nc
es
 r
ej
ec
te
d 
as
 

no
t f
it 
an
d 
pr
op
er
 

0.
01
%
 

O
f t
ho
se
 d
riv
er
s 
w
ho
 a
pp
lie
d 
ei
th
er
 fo
r 
ne
w
 li
ce
ns
es
 o
r 
re
ne
w
al
 o
f l
ic
en
se
s,
 o
nl
y 
0.
01
%
 w
er
e 
de
em

ed
 to
 b
e 

un
fit
 to
 b
e 
gi
ve
n 
or
 to
 r
et
ai
n 
th
ei
r 
lic
en
se
s 

Page 38



 7

11
. %

 o
f v
eh
ic
le
s 
fo
un
d 
to
 b
e 
de
fe
ct
iv
e 
w
hi
ls
t i
n 

se
rv
ic
e 

7.
06
%
 

T
hi
s 
is
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
to
ta
l n
um

be
r 
of
 v
eh
ic
le
s 
in
 o
pe
ra
tio
n 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
co
un
ty
 r
at
he
r 
th
an
 ju
st
 o
n 
th
e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 

th
at
 fa
ile
d 
of
 th
os
e 
th
at
 w
er
e 
st
op
pe
d 

12
. S

ta
ff 
si
ck
ne
ss
 a
bs
en
ce
 a
t p
ub
lic
 s
ec
to
r 

av
er
ag
e 
or
 b
et
te
r 

9.
5 
da
ys
/ 

pe
rs
on
 

A
na
ly
si
s 
ha
s 
sh
ow

n 
th
at
 m
or
e 
th
an
 2
/3
 o
f t
hi
s 
is
 lo
ng
 te
rm

 s
ic
kn
es
s.
 A
 n
um

be
r 
of
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 h
av
e 
su
ffe
re
d 

se
rio
us
 il
ln
es
s 
or
 b
ee
n 
in
vo
lv
ed
 in
 s
er
io
us
 a
cc
id
en
ts
 th
is
 y
ea
r.
 

13
. A

ir 
qu
al
ity
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
s 
pu
t i
n 
pl
ac
e 
w
he
re
 

ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t 

C
om

pl
et
ed
 

T
he
 c
ou
nt
y 
w
id
e 
ai
r 
qu
al
ity
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 w
as
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
du
rin
g 
20
12
/1
3 
an
d 
w
as
 p
ut
 o
ut
 to
 p
ub
lic
 c
on
su
lta
tio
n 
in
 

A
pr
il 
20
13
, w

ith
 th
e 
pe
rio
d 
en
di
ng
 in
 J
un
e 
20
13
. 

14
. R

ev
ie
w
 o
f r
eg
is
te
r 
of
 u
ns
ol
ic
ite
d 
co
m
pl
im
en
ts
 

an
d 
co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
 

U
ns
ol
ic
ite
d 

C
om

pl
im
en
ts
 

36
   

 (2
4)
C
om

pl
ai
nt
s 

47
   
 (
70
) 

F
ig
ur
es
 in
 (
 )
 a
re
 p
re
vi
ou
s 
ye
ar
’s
 fi
gu
re
s 

  F
ai
lu
re
 to
 r
ep
ly
 in
 a
 ti
m
el
y 
fa
sh
io
n.
 

F
ai
lu
re
 to
 r
es
ol
ve
. 

V
ar
io
us
 is
su
es
 a
ro
un
d 
th
e 
co
lle
ct
io
n 
of
 d
og
s 
fr
om

 k
en
ne
ls
. 

 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

S
tr
on
g 
m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 is
 v
ita
l t
o 
th
e 
su
cc
es
s 
of
 th
is
 s
er
vi
ce
, e
ns
ur
in
g 
th
at
 c
us
to
m
er
s 
ar
e 
sa
tis
fie
d 
an
d 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 a
re
 r
ea
ss
ur
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 th
e 

se
rv
ic
e 
on
 th
ei
r 
be
ha
lf.
 W

hi
ls
t e
ve
ry
on
e 
m
us
t a
cc
ep
t r
es
po
ns
ib
ili
ty
 fo
r 
m
an
ag
in
g 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
, t
he
 W

R
S
 le
ad
er
sh
ip
 te
am

 is
 c
om

m
itt
ed
 to
 d
riv
in
g 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 fo
rw
ar
d 

so
 th
at
 a
 h
ig
h 
st
an
da
rd
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y 
ca
n 
be
 m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d.
 

 F
or
tn
ig
ht
ly
 le
ad
er
sh
ip
 te
am

 m
ee
tin
gs
 a
re
 u
se
d 
to
 r
ev
ie
w
 d
at
a 
on
 th
e 
sy
st
em

 a
nd
 to
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
 a
ny
 is
su
es
 o
f c
on
ce
rn
; s
en
io
r 
pr
ac
tit
io
ne
rs
 (
4t
h
 ti
er
 m
an
ag
er
s)
 a
re
 n
ow

 
in
vi
te
d 
to
 a
tte
nd
 th
es
e 
m
ee
tin
gs
 o
n 
a 
m
on
th
ly
 b
as
is
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
a 
tw
o 
w
ay
 fl
ow

 o
f i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
be
tw
ee
n 
th
e 
le
ad
er
sh
ip
 te
am

 a
nd
 s
ta
ff.
 T
hi
s 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
t w

as
 in
tr
od
uc
ed
 

at
 th
e 
be
he
st
 o
f s
en
io
r 
pr
ac
tit
io
ne
rs
 a
nd
 is
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
el
l. 
T
he
 L
ea
de
rs
hi
p 
T
ea
m
 a
ls
o 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
 fo
ru
m
 to
 r
ai
se
 a
ny
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ov
er
 g
en
er
al
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 is
su
es
 s
o 
th
at
 

ea
rly
 in
te
rv
en
tio
ns
 c
an
 b
e 
pu
t i
n 
pl
ac
e 
as
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
.  

 O
ffi
ce
rs
 r
ec
ei
ve
 tw

o 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 r
ev
ie
w
s 
pe
r 
an
nu
m
 th
ro
ug
h 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 fo
rm

al
 P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 D
ev
el
op
m
en
t R

ev
ie
w
 (
P
D
R
) 
sy
st
em

. T
he
 a
nn
ua
l d
et
ai
le
d 
re
vi
ew

 a
nd
 6
 

m
on
th
ly
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
ch
ec
k 
is
 d
es
ig
ne
d 
to
 id
en
tif
y 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 n
ee
ds
 a
nd
 ta
lk
 a
bo
ut
 h
ow

 s
ta
ff 
co
nt
rib
ut
e 
m
or
e 
w
id
el
y 
to
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 k
ey
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
se
rv
ic
e 

de
liv
er
y.
 A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
hi
s 
pr
oc
es
s 
w
e 
ut
ili
se
d 
th
e 
B
et
te
r 
R
eg
ul
at
io
n 
D
el
iv
er
y 
O
ffi
ce
 (
B
R
D
O
) 
R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t N

ee
ds
 A
ss
es
sm

en
t (
R
D
N
A
) 
to
ol
ki
t, 
w
hi
ch
 is
 a
im
ed
 

at
 s
up
po
rt
in
g 
re
gu
la
to
ry
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 in
 id
en
tif
yi
ng
 a
nd
 m
ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 th
ei
r 
co
m
pe
te
nc
e 
ac
ro
ss
 a
ll 
ar
ea
s 
of
 r
eg
ul
at
or
y 
w
or
k.
 T
hi
s 
se
lf 
as
se
ss
m
en
t t
oo
l i
s 
us
ed
 to
 in
fo
rm

 o
ur
 

tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
an
d 
en
su
re
 th
at
 s
ta
ff 
re
m
ai
n 
co
m
pe
te
nt
 to
 d
o 
th
e 
jo
b 
re
qu
ire
d 
of
 th
em

. 
 W
ith
 th
e 
on
-g
oi
ng
 im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 o
ur
 IT

 p
la
tfo
rm

, w
e 
w
ill
 s
oo
n 
be
 in
 a
 p
os
iti
on
 to
 r
ep
or
t t
o 
Jo
in
t C

om
m
itt
ee
 o
n 
ou
r 
ou
tc
om

e 
m
ea
su
re
s.
 Im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
ne
w
 

sy
st
em

 is
 p
la
nn
ed
 fo
r 
ea
rly
 A
ut
um

n 
20
13
 b
ut
 th
er
e 
w
ill
 s
til
l b
e 
w
or
k 
to
 d
o 
on
 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t t
o 
en
su
re
 th
at
 th
e 
si
ng
le
 s
ys
te
m
 b
ec
om

es
 fu
lly
 e
m
be
dd
ed
. T

he
 J
oi
nt
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 

ha
s 
sh
ow

n 
gr
ea
t p
at
ie
nc
e 
an
d,
 o
nc
e 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
is
 c
om

pl
et
e,
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
se
 n
ew

 m
ea
su
re
s 
(a
lo
ng
 w
ith
 a
ct
iv
ity
 le
ve
ls
 fo
r 
ea
ch
 p
ar
tn
er
) 
w
ill
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t 

Page 39



 8

on
 a
 q
ua
rt
er
ly
 b
as
is
, a
lth
ou
gh
 s
om

e 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
po
rt
ed
 a
nn
ua
lly
 d
ue
 to
 th
ei
r 
na
tu
re
. R

ep
or
ts
 w
ill
 g
o 
to
 th
e 
Jo
in
t C

om
m
itt
ee
 a
nd
 M
an
ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
, w

ith
 d
at
a 
br
ok
en
 

do
w
n 
in
to
 in
di
vi
du
al
 C
ou
nc
ils
 a
re
as
 w
he
re
 th
is
 is
 r
el
ev
an
t  

 T
he
 2
01
3/
14
 S
er
vi
ce
 p
la
n 
ap
pr
ov
ed
 b
y 
Jo
in
t C

om
m
itt
ee
 in
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
13
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
s 
th
e 
m
ea
su
re
s 
re
la
tin
g 
to
 o
ut
co
m
es
 (
as
 s
ho
w
n 
ab
ov
e)
. S

ta
ff 
ha
ve
 w
or
ke
d 
ha
rd
 to
 

en
su
re
 th
at
 th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
da
ta
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
pr
od
uc
ed
, w

he
re
ve
r 
po
ss
ib
le
, t
o 
en
su
re
 m
em

be
rs
 a
re
 in
fo
rm

ed
 a
bo
ut
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e’
s 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 o
ve
r 
th
e 
pr
ec
ed
in
g 
12
 

m
on
th
s.
  I
nt
el
lig
en
ce
 r
ep
or
ts
 d
et
ai
lin
g 
ac
tiv
ity
 d
at
a 
fo
r 
ea
ch
 o
f t
he
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
ar
e 
no
w
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
fo
r 
ea
ch
 jo
in
t c
om

m
itt
ee
 m
ee
tin
g 
an
d 
ge
ne
ra
lly
 r
ef
le
ct
 a
ct
iv
ity
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 

pr
ev
io
us
 q
ua
rt
er
. T

he
se
 r
ep
or
ts
 a
re
 a
ls
o 
us
ed
 in
te
rn
al
ly
 a
nd
 a
re
 p
ro
du
ce
d 
to
 il
lu
st
ra
te
 th
e 
ac
tiv
ity
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
pr
ev
io
us
 q
ua
rt
er
 a
nd
 th
is
 is
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
in
 b
ot
h 

ta
bu
la
r 
an
d 
m
ap
 fo
rm

at
. T

he
se
 in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
re
po
rt
s 
al
so
 e
na
bl
e 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
to
 id
en
tif
y 
ho
t s
po
ts
 fo
r 
ce
rt
ai
n 
ca
te
go
rie
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
no
is
e 
co
m
pl
ai
nt
s 
an
d 
to
 h
el
p 
ef
fic
ie
nt
ly
 

m
ar
sh
al
 a
nd
 d
ep
lo
y 
re
so
ur
ce
s.
  

 T
he
re
 a
re
 a
 w
id
e 
ra
ng
e 
of
 b
od
ie
s 
to
 w
hi
ch
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
m
us
t r
ep
or
t d
at
a 
(e
.g
. F

oo
d 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 A
ge
nc
y,
 D
ep
ar
tm
en
t o
f t
he
 E
nv
iro
nm

en
t, 
F
oo
d 
an
d 
R
ur
al
 A
ffa
irs
, H

ea
lth
 

an
d 
S
af
et
y 
E
xe
cu
tiv
e,
 D
ep
ar
tm
en
t f
or
 B
us
in
es
s,
 In
no
va
tio
n 
an
d 
S
ki
lls
, e
tc
) 
A
ll 
st
at
ut
or
y 
re
po
rt
s 
w
er
e 
su
bm

itt
ed
 s
o 
as
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 W

R
S
 c
on
tin
ue
s 
to
 m
ee
t i
ts
 

pa
rt
ne
r’s
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
, h
ow

ev
er
, w

he
re
 p
ra
ct
ic
ab
le
, o
nl
y 
on
e 
re
tu
rn
 fo
r 
W
R
S
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
pr
ov
id
ed
 s
o 
as
 to
 s
av
e 
bo
th
 ti
m
e 
an
d 
m
on
ey
. T

he
 m
aj
or
ity
 o
f b
od
ie
s 
ar
e 

ac
ce
pt
in
g 
of
 th
is
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
an
d 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
ar
e 
re
vi
ew

in
g 
th
e 
re
tu
rn
s 
w
e 
ar
e 
as
ke
d 
to
 m
ak
e 
so
 th
at
 th
e 
vo
lu
m
e 
of
 d
at
a 
ca
n 
be
 r
ed
uc
ed
, l
es
se
ni
ng
 th
e 
bu
rd
en
. W

e 
ha
ve
 

an
d 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 to
 c
ha
lle
ng
e 
th
es
e 
re
po
rt
in
g 
bo
di
es
 o
n 
th
e 
na
tu
re
 o
f t
he
 d
at
a 
th
at
 th
ey
 a
re
 d
em

an
di
ng
 a
nd
 to
 q
ue
st
io
n 
th
e 
ne
ce
ss
ity
 fo
r 
th
e 
le
ve
l o
f d
et
ai
l b
ei
ng
 

re
qu
es
te
d,
 a
ga
in
 to
 d
riv
e 
do
w
n 
co
st
s 
an
d 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
bu
rd
en
s 
on
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 W

e 
co
nt
in
ue
d 
to
 k
ee
p 
th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 g
ov
er
nm

en
t b
od
ie
s 
in
fo
rm

ed
 o
f o
ur
 d
iff
er
en
t a
pp
ro
ac
he
s 

an
d 
co
nt
in
ue
d 
to
 r
ec
ei
ve
 th
ei
r 
su
pp
or
t a
nd
 u
nd
er
st
an
di
ng
.  

A
u
d
it
s 
 

T
w
o 
au
di
ts
 h
av
e 
ta
ke
n 
pl
ac
e 
w
ith
 r
eg
ar
ds
 to
 li
ce
ns
in
g 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
, o
ne
 b
y 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 
an
d 
th
e 
ot
he
r 
by
 W

yc
ha
vo
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il.
 

 
a.
 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il.
 

W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 
ca
rr
ie
s 
ou
t l
ic
en
si
ng
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 o
n 
be
ha
lf 
of
 th
e 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 b
ut
 li
ce
ns
in
g 
is
 r
es
er
ve
d,
 m
ea
ni
ng
 th
at
 in
co
m
e 
go
es
 to
 th
e 
pa
rt
ne
r 
an
d 

po
lic
y 
an
d 
re
gu
la
to
ry
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 a
re
 s
til
l m

ad
e 
by
 th
e 
re
le
va
nt
 li
ce
ns
in
g 
co
m
m
itt
ee
s.
 In
co
m
e 
is
 c
ol
le
ct
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
fin
an
ce
 d
ep
ar
tm
en
ts
 a
t t
he
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
an
d 
fe
es
 a
re
 s
et
 b
y 

ea
ch
 o
f t
he
 d
is
tr
ic
ts
. 

 T
he
 d
ra
ft 
au
di
t r
ep
or
t g
av
e 
lim

ite
d 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
in
 th
e 
lic
en
si
ng
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 a
re
as
 th
at
 b
ot
h 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 C
ou
nc
il 
an
d 
W
R
S
 n
ee
d 
to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

a)
 
F
or
m
al
 p
ro
ce
du
re
s 
ne
ed
 to
 b
e 
im
pl
em

en
te
d 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
no
n 
pa
ym

en
ts
 a
re
 c
ha
se
d 
an
d 
co
lle
ct
ed
. 

b)
 
R
ec
on
ci
lia
tio
n 
ne
ed
s 
to
 ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
al
l d
ue
 m
on
ie
s 
ar
e 
co
lle
ct
ed
. 

c)
 
A
 fo
rm

al
 p
ro
ce
du
re
 n
ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
ag
re
ed
 to
 im

pl
em

en
t f
ee
 in
cr
ea
se
s 

d)
 
A
 fo
rm

al
 p
ro
ce
du
re
 n
ee
ds
 to
 b
e 
ag
re
ed
 to
 r
ec
on
ci
le
 d
eb
to
r 
an
d 
lic
en
si
ng
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

e)
 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t n
ee
ds
 to
 ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 to
 s
ee
 li
ce
nc
e 
de
ad
lin
es
 a
re
 m
et
 

f)
 

C
he
qu
es
 a
re
 n
ot
 a
lw
ay
s 
re
m
ov
ed
 fr
om

 li
ce
nc
es
 b
ef
or
e 
ar
riv
in
g 
at
 W

R
S
 

 W
or
k 
is
 a
lre
ad
y 
un
de
rw
ay
 to
 fo
rm

al
is
e 
pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 w
he
re
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 a
nd
 th
e 
ne
w
 W

R
S
 IT

 s
ys
te
m
 w
ill
 im

pr
ov
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 m
ak
e 
re
co
nc
ili
at
io
n 
m
uc
h 

ea
si
er
. 

Page 40



 9

 
b.
 
W
yc
ha
vo
n 
D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 

T
he
 d
ra
ft 
au
di
t r
ep
or
t g
av
e 
lim

ite
d 
as
su
ra
nc
e 
in
 th
e 
lic
en
si
ng
 s
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed
 s
om

e 
ar
ea
s 
w
he
re
 b
ot
h 
W
R
S
 a
nd
 W

yc
ha
vo
n 
ne
ed
 to
 a
dd
re
ss
 

 
a)
 
A
 fo
rm

al
 p
ro
ce
du
re
 is
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
lic
en
si
ng
 d
eb
to
rs
 p
ay
 

b)
 
R
ec
on
ci
lia
tio
n 
ne
ed
s 
to
 ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
al
l l
ic
en
si
ng
 in
co
m
e 
du
e 
is
 p
ai
d 

c)
 
P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t n
ee
ds
 to
 ta
ke
 p
la
ce
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
lic
en
si
ng
 d
ea
dl
in
es
 a
re
 m
et
 

 It 
is
 in
te
re
st
in
g 
to
 n
ot
e 
th
e 
va
ria
tio
n 
in
 r
ec
om

m
en
da
tio
ns
 fr
om

 th
e 
tw
o 
au
di
ts
 o
f w

ha
t i
s 
es
se
nt
ia
lly
 th
e 
sa
m
e 
pr
oc
es
s.
 W

or
k 
is
 a
lre
ad
y 
un
de
rw
ay
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 fo
rm

al
 

pr
oc
ed
ur
es
 a
re
 p
ut
 in
 p
la
ce
 w
he
re
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 a
nd
 th
e 
ne
w
 W

R
S
 IT

 s
ys
te
m
 w
ill
 im

pr
ov
e 
fin
an
ci
al
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 m
ak
e 
re
co
nc
ili
at
io
n 
ea
si
er
. 

 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 D
is
tr
ic
t C

ou
nc
il 
w
as
 a
ls
o 
au
di
te
d 
by
 th
e 
O
ffi
ce
 o
f t
he
 S
ur
ve
ill
an
ce
 C
om

m
is
si
on
er
 in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 it
s 
us
e 
of
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 g
ov
er
ne
d 
by
 th
e 
R
eg
ul
at
io
n 
of
 

In
ve
st
ig
at
or
y 
P
ow

er
s 
A
ct
 2
00
0 
(R
IP
A
.)
 M
os
t o
f t
he
 w
or
k 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 fa
lls
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
 r
em

it,
 w
ith
 th
e 
C
ou
nc
il 
do
in
g 
sm

al
l a
m
ou
nt
s 
of
 it
s 
ow

n 
su
rv
ei
lla
nc
e 
w
or
k 
in
 o
th
er
 a
re
as
. T

he
 a
ud
ito
r,
 a
 r
et
ire
d 
ci
rc
ui
t j
ud
ge
, w

as
 v
er
y 
co
m
pl
em

en
ta
ry
 a
bo
ut
 th
e 
w
ay
 W

R
S
 s
ta
ff 
us
ed
 th
e 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
un
de
r 
R
IP
A
, a
nd
 h
ow

 th
e 

m
an
ag
er
’s
 o
ve
rs
ee
 th
e 
pr
oc
es
se
s.
 A
ll 
th
e 
ev
id
en
ce
 s
ho
w
ed
 th
at
 W

R
S
 w
as
 u
si
ng
 th
es
e 
pr
oc
es
se
s 
on
ly
 w
he
n 
ne
ce
ss
ar
y 
an
d 
in
 a
 p
ro
po
rt
io
na
te
 m
an
ne
r.
 

 K
ey
 A
ch

ie
ve
m
en

ts
 f
o
r 
W
R
S
 in

 2
01
2/
13
: 

 T
he
se
 in
cl
ud
e:
 

-
 

T
he
 s
er
vi
ce
 h
as
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
as
 e
co
no
m
ic
al
ly
 a
s 
po
ss
ib
le
, 
ta
ki
ng
 s
av
in
gs
 w
he
re
ve
r 
th
ey
 a
re
 a
va
ila
bl
e,
 w
hi
ls
t 
m
ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 h
ig
h 
le
ve
ls
 o
f 
se
rv
ic
e 

de
liv
er
y 
an
d 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
. 
D
ur
in
g 
20
12
/1
3,
 a
 s
av
in
g 
of
 £
35
0,
00
0,
 m

ai
nl
y 
th
ro
ug
h 
m
an
ag
in
g 
st
af
f 
va
ca
nc
ie
s,
 w
as
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 b
ac
k 
to
 p
ar
tn
er
s.
 I
t 
ha
s 
be
en
 v
er
y 

di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 fi
nd
 s
ui
ta
bl
e 
co
ve
r 
fo
r 
th
e 
st
af
f v
ac
an
ci
es
! T

hi
s 
is
 o
n 
to
p 
of
 a
bs
or
bi
ng
 th
e 
co
st
 o
f i
nf
la
tio
n 
an
d 
in
cr
em

en
ta
l w

ag
e 
in
fla
tio
n 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
fix
ed
 £
5.
62
6M

 b
ud
ge
t. 

-
 

In
 t
er
m
s 
of
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 a
ga
in
st
 o
ur
 o
ut
co
m
e 
m
ea
su
re
s,
 t
he
 s
er
vi
ce
 h
as
 e
ith
er
 m

at
ch
ed
 o
r 
im
pr
ov
ed
 o
n 
la
st
 y
ea
r’s
 f
ig
ur
es
. 
T
he
re
 i
s 
a 
sm

al
l 
in
cr
ea
se
 i
n 
th
e 

pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 b
ro
ad
ly
 c
om

pl
ia
nt
 f
oo
d 
pr
em

is
es
, 
a 
dr
op
 i
n 
th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 n
oi
se
 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
an
d 
th
e 
le
ve
ls
 o
f 
cu
st
om

er
 a
nd
 b
us
in
es
s 
sa
tis
fa
ct
io
n 
re
m
ai
n 
br
oa
dl
y 

si
m
ila
r.
  

-
 

W
or
ki
ng
 w

ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
th
e 
ha
rm

on
is
at
io
n 
of
 p
ol
ic
ie
s,
 f
ee
s 
an
d 
ch
ar
ge
s 
fo
r 
Li
ce
ns
in
g,
 w

hi
ls
t 
re
co
gn
is
in
g 
th
e 
lo
ca
l 
co
nt
ex
t 
w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
. 
T
he
 

Li
ce
ns
in
g 
se
ct
io
n 
ha
s 
co
nt
in
ue
d 
to
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
 e
xa
m
pl
es
 o
f 
go
od
 p
ra
ct
ic
e 
an
d 
en
su
re
 t
ha
t 
th
es
e,
 w

he
re
 p
os
si
bl
e,
 a
re
 e
xt
en
de
d 
to
 a
ll 
pa
rt
ne
rs
. 
W
he
ne
ve
r 
ne
w
 

le
gi
sl
at
io
n 
co
m
es
 in
 o
r 
ch
an
ge
s 
to
 e
xi
st
in
g 
le
gi
sl
at
io
n 
oc
cu
rs
, 
ge
ne
ric
 p
ol
ic
ie
s 
ar
e 
pr
od
uc
ed
 w
hi
ch
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
ca
n 
ta
ke
, 
in
tr
od
uc
e 
an
y 
lo
ca
l v
ar
ia
tio
n,
 b
ut
 e
ss
en
tia
lly
 

th
is
 e
ns
ur
es
 a
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t 
le
ve
l o
f 
un
ifo
rm

ity
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
co
un
ty
. 
T
hi
s 
is
 t
o 
th
e 
be
ne
fit
 o
f 
al
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
be
in
g 
lic
en
se
d 
as
 it
 r
em

ov
ed
 a
ny
 p
er
ce
iv
ed
 b
ar
rie
rs
 c
re
at
ed
 

by
 l
oc
al
 a
ut
ho
rit
y 
bo
rd
er
s.
 L
ic
en
si
ng
 h
as
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
to
 r
ed
uc
e 
its
 o
pe
ra
tin
g 
co
st
s 
an
d 
ha
s 
w
or
ke
d 
w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
a 
fa
ir 
an
d 
eq
ui
ta
bl
e 
ch
ar
gi
ng
 r
eg
im
e 
is
 

in
tr
od
uc
ed
 b
y 
ea
ch
 p
ar
tn
er
, r
ef
le
ct
in
g 
th
e 
tr
ue
 c
os
t o
f t
he
 li
ce
ns
in
g 
fu
nc
tio
n 
as
 a
 w
ho
le
. 

-
 

La
un
ch
 o
f I
T
 p
ro
je
ct
 to
 im

pl
em

en
t t
he
 ID

O
X
 U
ni
fo
rm

 s
ys
te
m
 w
ith
 th
e 
E
nt
er
pr
is
e 
m
ob
ile
 w
or
ki
ng
 s
ol
ut
io
n,
 p
ro
je
ct
 is
 r
un
ni
ng
 o
n 
tim

e 
an
d 
on
 b
ud
ge
t 

-
 

O
bt
ai
ni
ng
 e
xt
er
na
l 
fu
nd
in
g 
fr
om

 b
od
ie
s 
lik
e 
th
e 
B
et
te
r 
R
eg
ul
at
io
n 
D
el
iv
er
y 
O
ffi
ce
 (
B
R
D
O
) 
to
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 v
ar
io
us
 p
ro
je
ct
s.
 T
w
o 
gr
an
ts
 h
av
e 
be
en
 o
bt
ai
ne
d,
 o
ne
 f
or
 

£1
5,
00
0 
to
 f
ur
th
er
 d
ev
el
op
 li
nk
s 
be
tw
ee
n 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 a
nd
 r
eg
ul
at
or
s 
w
ith
in
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 (
to
 b
e 
ca
rr
ie
d 
ou
t 
in
 c
on
ju
nc
tio
n 
w
ith
 t
he
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
E
P
, 
so
 h
av
in
g 

a 
jo
in
t 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
y 
vi
a 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 s
ta
ke
ho
ld
er
s,
) 
th
e 
se
co
nd
 w
as
 £
20
,0
00
 t
o 
ex
am

in
e 
th
e 
op
po
rt
un
iti
es
 o
ffe
re
d 
by
 t
he
 e
xt
en
si
on
 o
f 
P
rim

ar
y 
A
ut
ho
rit
y 

pr
ov
is
io
ns
 to
 c
ov
er
 b
od
ie
s 
lik
e 
tr
ad
e 
as
so
ci
at
io
ns
, f
oc
us
in
g 
on
 b
od
ie
s 
in
 th
e 
ag
ric
ul
tu
ra
l a
nd
 fa
rm

in
g 
se
ct
or
. 

Page 41



 
1
0

-
 

W
e 
ha
ve
 c
on
tin
ue
d 
to
 o
bt
ai
n 
gr
an
t 
su
pp
or
t 
fr
om

 t
he
 f
or
m
er
 P

C
T
, 
no
w
 l
oc
al
 P

ub
lic
 H

ea
lth
 t
ea
m
 a
t 
th
e 
C
ou
nt
y 
C
ou
nc
il,
 a
nd
 a
ls
o 
fr
om

 t
he
 n
ew

 C
lin
ic
al
 

C
om

m
is
si
on
in
g 
G
ro
up
s.
 S
om

e 
of
 th
e 
pr
oj
ec
ts
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 a
re
 o
ut
lin
ed
 b
el
ow

 in
 o
ur
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
s.
 

O
T
H
E
R
 H
IG
H
L
IG
H
T
S
 

 T
he
re
 h
av
e 
be
en
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
s 
th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 th
e 
ye
ar
 to
 s
ho
w
ca
se
 th
e 
w
or
k 
of
 o
ur
 te
am

s.
 

 W
o
rk
p
la
ce
 H
ea
lt
h
 a
n
d
 W

el
lb
ei
n
g
 

 D
ur
in
g 
th
e 
ye
ar
, 
th
e 
H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 t
ea
m
 h
av
e 
co
nc
en
tr
at
ed
 t
he
ir 
ac
tiv
iti
es
 a
ro
un
d 
w
or
kp
la
ce
 h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 t
he
 b
en
ef
its
 t
ha
t 
a 
he
al
th
y 
w
or
kf
or
ce
 b
rin
gs
 t
o 
an
 

or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n.
 T
he
se
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 h
av
e 
sp
ec
ifi
ca
lly
 r
el
at
ed
 t
o 
su
pp
or
tin
g 
m
or
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 a
ch
ie
ve
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 W

or
ks
 W

el
l a
cc
re
di
ta
tio
n 
an
d 
al
so
 s
up
po
rt
in
g 
a 
nu
m
be
r 

of
 w
or
kp
la
ce
 c
an
te
en
s 
/c
at
er
in
g 
ou
tle
ts
 t
o 
im
pr
ov
e 
th
ei
r 
ca
te
rin
g 
m
et
ho
ds
 t
hu
s 
en
ab
lin
g 
st
af
f t
o 
m
ak
e 
he
al
th
ie
r 
ch
oi
ce
s 
m
or
e 
ea
si
ly
. 
M
or
e 
im
po
rt
an
tly
 in
 th
e 
la
tte
r 
ca
se
, 

w
e 
w
an
te
d 
to
 e
st
ab
lis
h 
th
at
 th
es
e 
po
si
tiv
e 
ch
an
ge
s 
co
ul
d 
be
 m
ad
e 
w
ith
ou
t l
os
s 
of
 p
ro
fit
. 

T
he
 w
or
kp
la
ce
 p
ro
vi
de
s 
an
 e
xc
el
le
nt
 f
or
um

 f
or
 p
ro
m
ot
in
g 
he
al
th
y 
lif
es
ty
le
s 
to
 a
 la
rg
e 
pr
op
or
tio
n 
of
 t
he
 lo
ca
l p
op
ul
at
io
n,
 a
s 
m
an
y 
pe
op
le
 w
ill
 a
dd
iti
on
al
ly
 p
as
s 
on
 w
ha
t 

th
ey
 h
av
e 
he
ar
d 
at
 w
or
k 
to
 th
ei
r 
fa
m
ily
 a
nd
 fr
ie
nd
s.
 S
om

e 
co
m
pe
lli
ng
 fa
ct
s 
w
hi
ch
 s
up
po
rt
 th
is
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
do
cu
m
en
te
d 
in
 s
tu
di
es
 c
ar
rie
d 
ou
t b
y 
N
IC
E
 (
N
at
io
na
l 

In
st
itu
te
 o
f 
C
lin
ic
al
 E
xc
el
le
nc
e)
, 
S
ir 
M
ic
ha
el
 M

ar
m
ot
 i
n 
hi
s 
in
eq
ua
lit
ie
s 
re
vi
ew

 ‘
F
ai
r 
S
oc
ie
ty
, 
H
ea
lth
y 
Li
ve
s 
‘a
nd
 t
he
 D
ep
ar
tm
en
t 
of
 W

or
k 
an
d 
P
en
si
on
s,
 w

hi
ch
 a
re
 

de
ta
ile
d 
be
lo
w
. 

O
ve
r 
th
e 
ye
ar
 w
e 
su
pp
or
te
d 
19
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
fr
om

 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
C
ou
nt
y 
be
ne
fit
in
g 
so
m
e 
35
00
 e
m
pl
oy
ee
s 
th
ro
ug
h 
ou
r 
W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 W

or
ks
 W

el
l 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e.
 T
o 
da
te
 

ei
gh
t 
of
 t
he
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
ha
ve
 a
ch
ie
ve
d 
Le
ve
l 1
 a
cc
re
di
ta
tio
n 
an
d 
w
e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 t
o 
w
or
k 
w
ith
 t
he
se
 a
nd
 t
he
 r
em

ai
nd
er
 t
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
th
is
 le
ve
l o
r 
gr
ea
te
r 
du
rin
g 
th
e 
ne
xt
 

ye
ar
.  

W
e 
al
so
 s
up
po
rt
ed
 a
 f
ur
th
er
 1
0 
w
or
kp
la
ce
 c
at
er
er
s 
in
 t
he
 R
ed
di
tc
h 
an
d 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 a
re
a 
he
lp
 t
he
ir 
cl
ie
nt
s 
le
ad
 h
ea
lth
ie
r 
liv
es
 t
hr
ou
gh
 o
ur
 C
an
ny
 C
at
er
in
g 
pr
oj
ec
t. 
It 
is
 

es
tim

at
ed
 t
ha
t 
th
es
e 
he
al
th
ie
r 
fo
od
 c
ho
ic
es
 w
ill
 t
ou
ch
 u
p 
to
 1
,5
00
 c
us
to
m
er
s 
on
 a
 d
ai
ly
 b
as
is
. 
A
 n
um

be
r 
of
 t
he
 c
at
er
er
s 
re
po
rt
ed
 a
 g
ro
w
in
g 
cl
ie
nt
el
e 
as
 a
 r
es
ul
t 
of
 t
he
 

ch
an
ge
s 
an
d 
no
ne
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
ed
 a
ny
 lo
ss
 o
f p
ro
fit
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
pr
oj
ec
t p
ha
se
.  

It 
w
ill
 ta
ke
 ti
m
e 
fo
r 
th
es
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
es
 to
 b
ed
 in
 a
nd
 r
ea
lis
e 
tr
ue
 fi
na
nc
ia
l p
ot
en
tia
l b
ut
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 o
ur
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
ar
e 
co
m
m
itt
ed
 to
 c
ol
le
ct
in
g 
da
ta
 in
 o
rd
er
 to
 fe
ed
 lo
ca
l 

ev
id
en
ce
 in
 to
 th
e 
na
tio
na
l p
ic
tu
re
. 

S
om

e 
tr
ul
y 
pi
vo
ta
l q
uo
te
s 
fr
om

 o
ur
 c
at
er
er
s 
ar
e:
 

 
“I
’v
e 
m
an
ag
ed
 to
 s
el
l p
or
rid
ge
 to
 lo
rr
y 
dr
iv
er
s!
” 

 
“Y
ou
 n
ee
d 
to
 c
ha
ng
e 
th
e 
m
in
d-
se
t 
of
 t
he
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
an
d 
no
t 
so
 m

uc
h 
th
e 
cu
st
om

er
s 
– 
th
ey
 t
en
d 
to
 e
at
 w
ha
t 
w
e 
pr
ov
id
e 
– 
so
 t
he
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
ne
ed
 t
o 
ha
ve
 

 
kn
ow

le
dg
e 
an
d 
pa
ss
io
n 
fo
r 
he
al
th
y 
fo
od
.”
 

 
T
hi
s 
pr
oj
ec
t h
as
 w
ok
en
 u
s 
up
 to
 w
ha
t w

or
ke
rs
 a
ct
ua
lly
 w
an
te
d 
an
d 
no
t a
 p
re
-c
on
ce
iv
ed
 id
ea
”.
 

 

Page 42



 
1
1

B
IS
/B
R
D
O
 R
eg

u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 E
n
te
rp
ri
se
 P
ilo

t 
W
R
S
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
w
or
ki
ng
 w

ith
 t
he
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
oc
al
 E
nt
er
pr
is
e 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 t
o 
pr
od
uc
e 
an
 a
ct
io
n 
pl
an
 “
to
 i
m
pr
ov
e 
lo
ca
l 
re
gu
la
to
ry
 d
el
iv
er
y 
w
hi
ch
 m

ee
ts
 l
oc
al
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 n
ee
ds
”.
 A
 w
or
ki
ng
 g
ro
up
 c
om

pr
is
in
g 
W
R
S
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 a
nd
 t
he
 O
pe
ra
tio
ns
 M

an
ag
er
 f
ro
m
 t
he
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 L
oc
al
 E
nt
er
pr
is
e 
P
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
w
or
ki
ng
 t
o 

pr
od
uc
e 
th
e 
pl
an
. 
A
 w
or
ks
ho
p 
to
ok
 p
la
ce
 i
n 
M
ar
ch
 w
ith
 l
oc
al
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
an
d 
lo
ca
l 
re
gu
la
to
rs
 i
n 
or
de
r 
to
 d
et
er
m
in
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
’ 
cu
rr
en
t 
ex
pe
rie
nc
e 
of
 

re
gu
la
tio
n 
an
d 
w
ha
t, 
in
 t
he
 v
ie
w
 o
f 
bu
si
ne
ss
, 
a 
be
tte
r 
re
gu
la
to
ry
 e
xp
er
ie
nc
e 
lo
ok
s 
lik
e.
 T
he
 w

or
ks
ho
p 
w
as
 w

el
l 
at
te
nd
ed
 b
y 
bo
th
 r
eg
ul
at
or
s 
an
d 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 a
nd
 

pr
ov
id
ed
 u
se
fu
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
fo
r 
th
e 
ac
tio
n 
pl
an
, w

hi
ch
 w
ill
 r
un
 fr
om

 A
pr
il 
20
13
.  
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

 L
au

n
ch

 o
f 
th
e 
F
o
o
d
 H
yg

ie
n
e 
R
at
in
g
 S
ch

em
e 
 

W
R
S
 m

ig
ra
te
d 
to
 t
he
 F
oo
d 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 A
ge
nc
y 
na
tio
na
l F
o
o
d
 H
yg

ie
n
e 
R
at
in
g
 S
ch

em
e 
[F
H
R
S
] 
in
 J
un
e 
20
12
. 
 T
hi
s 
sc
he
m
e 
re
pl
ac
es
 t
he
 f
or
m
er
 S
co
re
s 
on
 t
he
 D
oo
rs
 

lo
ca
l s
ch
em

e.
   

 T
he
 F
H
R
S
 is
 a
 F
oo
d 
S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 A
ge
nc
y/
Lo
ca
l A

ut
ho
rit
y 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
su
pp
or
te
d 
by
 g
ov
er
nm

en
t 
(in
 t
he
 Y
ou
ng
 R
ep
or
t)
 d
es
ig
ne
d 
to
 h
el
p 
co
ns
um

er
s 
ch
oo
se
 w
he
re
 t
o 
ea
t 

ou
t. 
 I
t 
do
es
 t
hi
s 
by
 p
ro
vi
di
ng
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
ab
ou
t 
hy
gi
en
e 
st
an
da
rd
s 
in
 f
oo
d 
ou
tle
ts
 a
t t
he
 t
im
e 
th
ey
 a
re
 in
sp
ec
te
d 
to
 c
he
ck
 c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 le
ga
l r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
. 
S
om

e 
95
 

pe
r 
ce
nt
 o
f L
oc
al
 A
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
ha
ve
 n
ow

 m
ov
ed
 to
 th
e 
F
H
R
S
.  

 T
he
 F
H
R
S
 a
ls
o 
he
lp
s 
su
pp
or
t l
oc
al
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
w
ho
 tr
ad
e 
w
el
l a
nd
 h
el
ps
 d
riv
e 
up
 a
nd
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
fo
od
 s
af
et
y 
st
an
da
rd
s.
  

 W
R
S
 h
as
 o
pt
ed
 t
o 
in
cl
ud
e 
in
 t
he
 F
H
R
S
 a
ll 
ca
te
rin
g 
ou
tle
ts
 (
re
st
au
ra
nt
s,
 c
af
es
, 
sc
ho
ol
s,
 m

ob
ile
s,
 e
ve
nt
 c
at
er
er
s,
 h
ot
el
s,
 e
tc
.)
 a
nd
 b
ut
ch
er
s 
se
lli
ng
 r
aw

 a
nd
 c
oo
ke
d 

m
ea
ts
.  
  

 A
t e
nd
 o
f M

ar
ch
 2
01
3 
th
e 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 p
re
m
is
es
 li
st
ed
 fo
r 
th
e 
si
x 
D
is
tr
ic
ts
 w
as
 

 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
   
  4
62
 

 
M
al
ve
rn
 H
ill
s 
   
42
2 

 
R
ed
di
tc
h 
   
   
   
23
2 

 
W
or
ce
st
er
   
   
  4
26
 

 
W
yc
ha
vo
n 
   
   
 4
68
 

 
W
yr
e 
F
or
es
t  
   
39
8 

 T
he
 F
H
R
S
 le
ve
l a
w
ar
de
d 
is
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
in
sp
ec
tin
g 
of
fic
er
s 
ra
tin
g 
of
   

 

•
 

fo
od
 h
yg
ie
ne
 p
ra
ct
ic
es
 

•
 

st
ru
ct
ur
e,
 e
qu
ip
m
en
t, 
cl
ea
nl
in
es
s 

•
 

co
nf
id
en
ce
 in
 m
an
ag
em

en
t [
C
IM
] o
f w

hi
ch
 a
 k
ey
 e
le
m
en
t t
o 
sc
or
e 
w
el
l i
s 
ha
vi
ng
 a
n 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
 fo
od
 s
af
et
y 
m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
te
m
 [F

S
M
S
} 
in
 p
la
ce
 

 B
us
in
es
se
s 
ar
e 
is
su
ed
 w
ith
 a
 w
in
do
w
 s
tic
ke
r 
an
d 
ce
rt
ifi
ca
te
.  
T
he
re
 is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 n
o 
le
ga
l r
eq
ui
re
m
en
t t
o 
di
sp
la
y 
th
es
e.
  

 

Page 43



 
1
2

    
   
   
   
   
   

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
  

 
 H
o
rs
em

ea
t 
S
ca
n
d
al
 

In
 F
eb
ru
ar
y 
20
13
 t
ra
di
ng
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 a
nd
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l 
he
al
th
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 f
ro
m
 W

R
S
 w
er
e 
he
av
ily
 i
nv
ol
ve
d 
in
 t
he
 h
or
se
m
ea
t 
sc
an
da
l 
un
de
rt
ak
in
g 
a 
sa
m
pl
in
g 

pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
at
 a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 c
ol
d 
st
or
es
, c
at
er
er
s 
an
d 
w
ho
le
sa
le
rs
 to
 id
en
tif
y 
w
he
th
er
 o
r 
no
t t
ha
t b
ee
f p
ro
du
ct
s 
co
nt
ai
ne
d 
ho
rs
em

ea
t. 
 

A
 fu
ll 
sa
m
pl
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
fe
d 
in
 to
 th
e 
na
tio
na
l p
ic
tu
re
 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
n 
ac
cu
ra
te
 c
ro
ss
 s
ec
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
U
K
 fo
od
 c
ha
in
 th
at
 c
on
si
de
rs
 r
et
ai
l, 
ca
te
rin
g 
an
d 
w
ho
le
sa
le
, a
nd
 in
 

pa
rt
ic
ul
ar
 w
ho
le
sa
le
 b
us
in
es
s 
su
pp
ly
in
g 
sc
ho
ol
s 
an
d 
ho
sp
ita
ls
. 

W
R
S
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 u
se
d 
lo
ca
l k
no
w
le
dg
e 
to
 p
rio
rit
is
e 
in
sp
ec
tio
ns
 a
t l
oc
al
 ty
pe
s 
of
 p
re
m
is
es
 th
at
 m
ay
 b
e 
at
 m
os
t r
is
k 
of
 b
ei
ng
 a
ffe
ct
ed
, i
nc
lu
di
ng
 m
ea
t s
to
ra
ge
 p
re
m
is
es
 a
nd
 

co
ld
 s
to
re
s 
w
ith
in
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
. T

he
 a
im
 w
as
 to
 s
up
po
rt
 c
us
to
m
er
s 
to
 h
av
e 
co
nf
id
en
ce
 th
at
 m
ea
t o
n 
sa
le
 lo
ca
lly
 is
 n
ot
 im

pl
ic
at
ed
 in
 th
is
 s
ca
nd
al
 a
nd
 p
ro
vi
de
 m
uc
h 

ne
ed
ed
 a
dv
ic
e 
to
 lo
ca
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
w
ho
 h
ad
 c
on
ce
rn
s 
ov
er
 th
e 
pr
od
uc
ts
 th
ey
 s
ol
d.
 

O
ffi
ce
rs
 v
is
ite
d 
va
rio
us
 p
re
m
is
es
 fo
cu
si
ng
 o
n:
  

•
 

D
oc
um

en
ta
ry
, p
hy
si
ca
l a
nd
 id
en
tit
y 
ch
ec
ks
  

•
 

M
ea
t a
ut
he
nt
ic
ity
  

•
 

T
ra
ce
ab
ili
ty
  

•
 

H
ea
lth
 m
ar
ks
 a
nd
 id
en
tit
y 
m
ar
ks
  

•
 

La
be
lin
g 
 

•
 

R
e-
w
ra
pp
in
g 
an
d 
pa
ck
in
g 
 

 W
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
, s
am

pl
es
 w
er
e 
ta
ke
n 
an
d 
su
bm

itt
ed
 to
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 S
ci
en
tif
ic
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
fo
r 
an
al
ys
is
. 

In
fo
rm

at
io
n 
id
en
tif
yi
ng
 th
e 
th
re
e 
m
ai
n 
ca
te
rin
g 
pr
ov
id
er
s 
to
 c
ou
nt
y 
sc
ho
ol
s 
w
as
 p
ro
vi
de
d 
to
 W

R
S
, t
og
et
he
r 
w
ith
 th
os
e 
sc
ho
ol
s 
su
pp
lie
d 
by
 th
em

 a
nd
 o
th
er
 s
ch
oo
ls
 

ca
rr
yi
ng
 o
ut
 in
-h
ou
se
 c
at
er
in
g.
 

 A
s 
a 
re
su
lt 
W
R
S
 w
as
 in
vi
te
d 
to
 a
pp
ea
r 
be
fo
re
 th
e 
P
ar
lia
m
en
ta
ry
 S
el
ec
t C

om
m
itt
ee
 to
 p
ro
vi
de
 e
vi
de
nc
e 
on
 th
e 
Lo
ca
l A

ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 th
e 
sc
an
da
l. 

.
 U
n
sa
fe
 T
o
y 
R
em

o
ve
d
 F
ro
m
 S
al
e 
F
o
llo

w
in
g
 W

R
S
 S
u
rv
ey
 

T
he
 E
ur
op
ea
n 
C
om

m
is
si
on
 a
m
en
de
d 
th
e 
sa
fe
ty
 r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 fo
r 
pr
oj
ec
til
e 
to
ys
 w
ith
 a
 s
uc
tio
n 
cu
p 
as
 a
n 
im
pa
ct
 s
ur
fa
ce
 in
te
nd
ed
 fo
r 
ch
ild
re
n 
ab
ov
e 
th
e 
ag
e 
of
 th
re
e 

ye
ar
s 
af
te
r 
le
ar
ni
ng
 o
f a
 n
um

be
r 
of
 a
cc
id
en
ts
. I
n 
19
97
, a
 S
w
ed
is
h 
ch
ild
 o
f n
in
e 
ye
ar
s 
ol
d 
su
ffo
ca
te
d 
to
 d
ea
th
 a
fte
r 
ha
vi
ng
 s
uc
ke
d 
on
 a
 s
uc
tio
n 
cu
p 
tip
 w
hi
ch
 h
e 

ac
ci
de
nt
al
ly
 in
ha
le
d.
 T
w
o 
ot
he
r 
fa
ta
lit
ie
s 
ha
ve
 o
cc
ur
re
d 
in
 th
e 
U
ni
te
d 
K
in
gd
om

. I
n 
ad
di
tio
n,
 th
e 
C
om

m
is
si
on
 w
as
 in
fo
rm

ed
 o
f e
ig
ht
 fa
ta
lit
ie
s 
re
gi
st
er
ed
 in
 th
e 
U
ni
te
d 

S
ta
te
s 
an
d 
in
 A
ug
us
t 2
00
5,
 th
e 
S
pa
ni
sh
 a
ut
ho
rit
ie
s 
in
fo
rm

ed
 th
e 
C
om

m
is
si
on
 o
f a
 fa
ta
l a
cc
id
en
t w

ith
 a
 fo
ur
 y
ea
r 
ol
d 
ch
ild
 c
au
se
d 
by
 a
 b
ow

 a
nd
 a
rr
ow

 to
y 
w
ith
 a
 s
uc
tio
n 

cu
p.
  

 F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
a 
W
R
S
 m
ar
ke
t s
ur
ve
ill
an
ce
 p
ro
je
ct
 o
n 
th
es
e 
ty
pe
s 
of
 to
y 
a 
to
y 
gu
n 
w
ith
 a
n 
un
sa
fe
 p
ro
je
ct
ile
 w
as
 d
is
co
ve
re
d 
on
 s
al
e 
at
 a
 m
aj
or
 r
et
ai
le
r.
 T
he
 to
y 
fa
ile
d 
th
e 
te
st
 

ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 s
ta
nd
ar
d 
re
la
tin
g 
to
 th
e 
fo
rc
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 r
em

ov
e 
th
e 
su
ct
io
n 
ca
p.
 T
he
 c
om

pa
ny
 in
iti
al
ly
 c
ha
lle
ng
ed
 th
e 
re
su
lts
 a
nd
 th
e 
W
R
S
 in
te
rp
re
ta
tio
n,
 b
ut
 

Page 44



 
1
3

fo
llo
w
in
g 
fu
rt
he
r 
di
sc
us
si
on
 a
cc
ep
te
d 
th
at
 th
ey
 h
ad
 e
rr
ed
 in
 im

po
rt
in
g 
pr
od
uc
t t
ha
t f
ai
le
d 
to
 c
om

pl
y 
w
ith
 th
e 
ne
w
 s
ta
nd
ar
d 
an
d 
w
ith
dr
ew

 m
an
y 
th
ou
sa
nd
s 
of
 th
e 

of
fe
nd
in
g 
pr
od
uc
ts
 fr
om

 s
al
e.
 

 W
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 B
u
si
n
es
s 
to
 R
ed

u
ce
 C
o
m
p
la
in
t 
L
ev
el
s 

W
R
S
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
su
cc
es
sf
ul
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
ith
 a
 b
us
in
es
s 
w
ith
 u
na
cc
ep
ta
bl
e 
co
m
pl
ai
nt
 le
ve
ls
 u
si
ng
 a
n 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 a
do
pt
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
its
 tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
w
or
k.
 P
ro
bl
em

 b
us
in
es
se
s 

ar
e 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
fr
om

 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
ta
ke
n 
by
 th
e 
C
iti
ze
ns
 A
dv
ic
e 
C
on
su
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
nd
 n
ot
ifi
ed
 o
r 
re
fe
rr
ed
 to
 W

R
S
.  

 O
ne
 o
f t
he
se
 b
us
in
es
se
s 
is
 a
n 
in
te
rn
et
 to
y 
re
ta
ile
r 
su
pp
ly
in
g 
la
rg
er
 p
la
y 
ite
m
s.
 T
he
 b
us
in
es
s 
di
d 
no
t a
pp
ea
r 
to
 u
nd
er
st
an
d 
its
 le
ga
l o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
 a
s 
a 
tr
ad
er
 a
nd
 p
oo
r 

cu
st
om

er
 s
er
vi
ce
 r
es
ul
te
d 
in
 c
on
su
m
er
 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s.
 A
n 
of
fic
er
 c
on
ce
nt
ra
te
d 
on
 r
ai
si
ng
 th
e 
is
su
es
 a
nd
 a
gr
ee
in
g 
so
lu
tio
ns
 u
nt
il 
th
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 c
ha
ng
ed
 it
s 
tr
ad
in
g 
m
et
ho
ds
. 

In
te
rv
en
tio
n 
w
ith
 th
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 h
as
 r
es
ul
te
d 
in
 a
 m
uc
h 
re
du
ce
d 
le
ve
l o
f c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
an
d 
cu
rr
en
tly
 n
o 
fu
rt
he
r 
in
te
rv
en
tio
n 
is
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
. 

 C
al
ib
ra
ti
o
n
 L
ab

 –
 p
ar
tn
er
sh

ip
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 W

ar
w
ic
ks
h
ir
e 

W
R
S
 h
as
 e
ng
ag
ed
 in
 a
n 
in
no
va
tiv
e 
jo
in
t w

or
ki
ng
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 w
ith
 W

ar
w
ic
ks
hi
re
 T
ra
di
ng
 S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 S
er
vi
ce
 in
 r
el
at
io
n 
to
 it
s 
m
et
ro
lo
gy
 (
w
ei
gh
ts
 &
 m
ea
su
re
s)
 c
al
ib
ra
tio
n 

fu
nc
tio
n.
 T
he
 C
al
ib
ra
tio
n 
La
bo
ra
to
ry
 a
t C

ou
nt
y 
H
al
l h
ou
se
d 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e’
s 
st
an
da
rd
s 
of
 m
as
s 
an
d 
vo
lu
m
e,
 w
hi
ch
 w
er
e 
us
ed
 to
 te
st
 a
nd
 c
al
ib
ra
te
 th
e 
w
or
ki
ng
 s
ta
nd
ar
ds
 

ta
ke
n 
ou
t b
y 
of
fic
er
s 
du
rin
g 
w
ei
gh
ts
 &
 m
ea
su
re
s 
vi
si
ts
. I
n 
ad
di
tio
n 
th
e 
la
bo
ra
to
ry
 u
se
d 
to
 te
st
 a
nd
 a
dj
us
t w

ei
gh
ts
 s
ub
m
itt
ed
 b
y 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
. I
n 
or
de
r 
to
 c
ar
ry
 o
ut
 th
is
 

w
or
k 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
w
as
 a
cc
re
di
te
d 
un
de
r 
a 
Q
ua
lit
y 
A
ss
ur
an
ce
 s
ys
te
m
 to
 IS

O
90
01
.T
he
 p
ar
tn
er
sh
ip
 h
as
 s
ee
n 
th
e 
cl
os
ur
e 
of
 th
e 
la
bo
ra
to
ry
 a
nd
 s
om

e 
w
or
k 
tr
an
sf
er
re
d 
to
 

W
ar
w
ic
ks
hi
re
. O

ffi
ce
rs
 fr
om

 W
or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 a
re
 a
bl
e 
to
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
th
ei
r 
co
m
pe
te
nc
y 
an
d 
co
nt
in
ue
 w
ith
 o
th
er
 w
or
k 
in
vo
lv
in
g 
te
st
in
g 
w
ei
gh
in
g 
an
d 
m
ea
su
rin
g 
eq
ui
pm

en
t 

fo
r 
lo
ca
l b
us
in
es
se
s 
by
 o
pe
ra
tin
g 
un
de
r 
th
e 
W
ar
w
ic
ks
hi
re
 Q
ua
lit
y 
sy
st
em

.  
 S
u
n
b
ed

 P
ro
je
ct
 

T
hi
s 
w
as
 a
 c
om

bi
ne
d 
pr
oj
ec
t l
oo
ki
ng
 a
t c
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 s
af
et
y 
at
 w
or
k 
le
gi
sl
at
io
n 
an
d 
tr
ad
in
g 
st
an
da
rd
s 
le
gi
sl
at
io
n 
an
d 
to
 p
re
ve
nt
 th
e 
us
e 
of
 u
ltr
a 
vi
ol
et
 (
U
V
) 

ta
nn
in
g 
eq
ui
pm

en
t b
y 
yo
un
g 
pe
op
le
 u
nd
er
 1
8 
ye
ar
s 
of
 a
ge
. 

E
ig
ht
ee
n 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 w
er
e 
vi
si
te
d.
 It
 w
as
 fo
un
d 
th
at
:  

 A
ll 
ap
pe
ar
ed
 to
 c
om

pl
y 
w
ith
 th
e 
ov
er
 1
8 
ag
e 
re
qu
ire
m
en
t; 

 O
nl
y 
m
in
or
 h
ea
lth
 a
nd
 s
af
et
y 
ite
m
s 
w
er
e 
fo
un
d 
in
 a
pp
ro
xi
m
at
el
y 
15
%
 o
f p
re
m
is
es
; 

C
on
ce
rn
s 
ab
ou
t t
he
 U
V
 o
ut
pu
t o
f s
un
be
ds
 in
 o
ve
r 
90
%
 o
f b
us
in
es
se
s 
w
er
e 
fo
un
d 
w
hi
ch
 is
 c
on
si
st
en
t w

ith
 th
e 
fin
di
ng
s 
of
 o
th
er
 L
A
’s
 n
at
io
na
lly
. 

T
he
 in
iti
al
 s
ur
ve
y 
w
as
 th
en
 fo
llo
w
ed
 u
p 
w
ith
 a
 q
ue
st
io
nn
ai
re
 w
ith
 r
eg
ar
d 
to
 U
V
 o
ut
pu
ts
 o
f s
un
be
ds
 s
en
t t
o 
al
l k
no
w
n 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
C
ou
nt
y.
 

O
f t
he
 r
es
po
ns
es
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
 in
di
ca
te
d 
th
at
:-
 

-
 

22
%
 w
er
e 
co
m
pl
ia
nt
 

-
 

38
%
 w
er
e 
no
n 
co
m
pl
ia
nt
 o
r 
pa
rt
 c
om

pl
ia
nt
 

-
 

40
%
 w
er
e 
no
t y
et
 k
no
w
n 

 A
 la
rg
e 
am

ou
nt
 o
f w

or
k 
is
 s
til
l r
eq
ui
re
d 
to
 e
st
ab
lis
h 
th
e 
fu
ll 
pi
ct
ur
e 
fo
r 
al
l p
re
m
is
es
 th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 C
ou
nt
y.
 A
 s
tr
at
eg
y 
w
ill
 th
en
 b
e 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
to
 d
ea
l w

ith
 n
on
 c
om

pl
ia
nt
 

bu
si
ne
ss
es
.  

Page 45



 
1
4

 O
u
tb
re
ak
 o
f 
Ill
n
es
s 
A
ss
o
ci
at
ed

 w
it
h
 A
n
im

al
 P
et
ti
n
g
 

O
ffi
ce
rs
 fr
om

 W
R
S
 w
er
e 
in
vo
lv
ed
 in
 a
n 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
in
to
 e
ig
ht
 c
on
fir
m
ed
 c
as
es
 o
f c
ry
pt
os
po
rid
iu
m
 in
fe
ct
io
n 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 w
ith
 v
is
its
 b
ei
ng
 m
ad
e 
to
 a
 th
re
e 
w
ee
k 

lo
ng
 a
ni
m
al
 a
ttr
ac
tio
n 
he
ld
 w
ith
in
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
. C

ry
pt
os
po
rid
iu
m
 in
fe
ct
io
n 
af
fe
ct
s 
bo
th
 h
um

an
s 
an
d 
an
im
al
s 
an
d 
th
e 
m
os
t c
om

m
on
 s
ym

pt
om

 is
 w
at
er
y 
di
ar
rh
oe
a 
w
hi
ch
 

ca
n 
ra
ng
e 
fr
om

 m
ild
 to
 s
ev
er
e.
 S
ym

pt
om

s 
in
 th
is
 c
as
e 
al
so
 in
cl
ud
ed
 u
ps
et
 s
to
m
ac
hs
 a
nd
 g
en
er
al
 s
ic
kn
es
s.
 

  It
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
es
tim

at
ed
 th
at
 a
 to
ta
l o
f s
om

e 
10
,0
00
 p
eo
pl
e 
at
te
nd
ed
 th
e 
ve
nu
e 
m
an
y 
of
 w
ho
m
 w
er
e 
ch
ild
re
n.
 T
he
 d
is
pl
ay
 in
cl
ud
ed
 a
 r
an
ge
 o
f a
ni
m
al
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
pi
gs
, 

go
at
s,
 d
on
ke
ys
, c
al
ve
s,
 la
m
bs
 a
nd
 c
hi
ck
s.
 T
ho
se
 a
tte
nd
in
g 
w
er
e 
ab
le
 to
 s
tr
ok
e 
th
e 
an
im
al
s,
 h
an
dl
e 
ch
ic
ks
 a
nd
 to
 fe
ed
 th
e 
la
m
bs
. A

lth
ou
gh
 h
an
d 
w
as
hi
ng
 fa
ci
lit
ie
s 
an
d 

an
tib
ac
te
ria
l g
el
 w
er
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
on
 th
e 
si
te
 it
 s
ee
m
s 
lik
el
y 
th
at
 s
om

e 
ch
ild
re
n 
m
ay
 n
ot
 h
av
e 
w
as
he
d 
th
ei
r 
ha
nd
s 
th
or
ou
gh
ly
 a
fte
r 
ha
nd
lin
g 
an
im
al
s 
an
d 
la
te
r 
be
ca
m
e 
ill
. 

O
f t
he
 e
ig
ht
 c
as
es
 n
ot
ifi
ed
 s
ev
en
 w
er
e 
yo
un
g 
ch
ild
re
n 
an
d 
on
e 
ad
ul
t w

as
 a
ls
o 
af
fe
ct
ed
. T

hi
s 
pe
rs
on
 w
as
 a
n 
em

pl
oy
ee
 w
ho
 h
ad
 h
el
pe
d 
ou
t w

ith
 th
e 
fe
ed
in
g 
of
 th
e 
la
m
bs
 

fo
r 
a 
da
y.
  

 O
p
er
at
io
n
 A
rc
h
er
 

In
 M
ar
ch
 2
01
3 
a 
co
or
di
na
te
d 
W
R
S
 a
nd
 W

es
t M

er
ci
a 
P
ol
ic
e 
ra
id
 to
ok
 p
la
ce
 a
t A

rr
ow

 C
ar
 b
oo
t s
al
e 
in
 R
ed
di
tc
h.
 A
n 
or
ga
ni
se
d 
rin
g 
of
 c
rim

in
al
 c
ou
nt
er
fe
ite
rs
 h
ad
 b
ee
n 

op
er
at
in
g 
at
 th
e 
sa
le
 s
el
lin
g 
co
un
te
rf
ei
t D

V
D
 fi
lm
, C

D
 m
us
ic
 a
nd
 u
nc
la
ss
ifi
ed
 p
or
no
gr
ap
hy
. T

he
 p
er
pe
tr
at
or
s 
ha
d 
be
en
 k
ep
t u
nd
er
 s
ur
ve
ill
an
ce
 fo
r 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 w
ee
ks
 

by
 W

R
S
 o
ffi
ce
s 
w
hi
ch
 c
ul
m
in
at
ed
 in
 th
e 
O
pe
ra
tio
n.
 

5 
in
di
vi
du
al
s 
w
er
e 
ar
re
st
ed
 in
 th
ei
r 
ve
hi
cl
es
 a
nd
 th
ei
r 
ho
us
es
 w
er
e 
su
bs
eq
ue
nt
ly
 s
ea
rc
he
d 
by
 W

R
S
 a
nd
 P
ol
ic
e 
of
fic
er
s.
 A
ll 
su
sp
ec
ts
 w
er
e 
fo
rm

al
ly
 in
te
rv
ie
w
ed
 a
t 

R
ed
di
tc
h 
an
d 
K
id
de
rm

in
st
er
 p
ol
ic
e 
st
at
io
ns
 a
nd
 h
av
e 
be
en
 r
el
ea
se
d 
on
 b
ai
l w

hi
le
 e
nq
ui
rie
s 
co
nt
in
ue
. A

 s
ub
st
an
tia
l q
ua
nt
ity
 o
f e
vi
de
nc
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 s
ei
ze
d.
 

 T
he
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
is
 o
n 
go
in
g 
an
d 
ot
he
r 
ta
rg
et
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
id
en
tif
ie
d 
fo
r 
ac
tio
n.
 O
ne
 o
f t
ho
se
 a
rr
es
te
d 
ha
d 
pr
ev
io
us
ly
 b
ee
n 
pr
os
ec
ut
ed
 b
y 
W
R
S
 fo
r 
co
un
te
rf
ei
tin
g 

of
fe
nc
es
 a
nd
 h
ad
 r
ec
ei
ve
d 
a 
tw
o 
ye
ar
 p
ris
on
 s
en
te
nc
e.
 H
e 
w
as
 r
el
ea
se
d 
on
 li
ce
nc
e 
an
d 
co
nt
in
ue
d 
w
ith
 c
ou
nt
er
fe
iti
ng
. 

 W
es
t M

er
ci
a 
P
ol
ic
e 
pr
ai
se
d 
th
e 
pr
of
es
si
on
al
is
m
 a
nd
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
n 
of
 th
is
 W

R
S
 le
ad
 o
pe
ra
tio
n.
 J
am

ie
 C
ol
le
y,
 a
n 
E
as
t t
ea
m
 o
ffi
ce
r,
 le
ad
s 
th
e 
in
ve
st
ig
at
io
n 
bu
t t
he
 r
ai
d 

an
d 
su
rv
ei
lla
nc
e 
in
vo
lv
ed
 b
ot
h 
T
ra
di
ng
 S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 a
nd
 E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l H

ea
lth
 O
ffi
ce
rs
.  

 L
o
ve
 Y
o
u
r 
H
o
m
e 
E
ve
n
t 

T
hi
s 
w
as
 a
 w
ee
k 
lo
ng
 M
ul
ti 
A
ge
nc
y 
ev
en
t h
el
d 
in
 W

or
ce
st
er
 a
im
ed
 a
t p
ro
te
ct
in
g 
ci
tiz
en
s 
in
 th
ei
r 
ow

n 
ho
m
e 
an
d 
ra
is
in
g 
aw

ar
en
es
s 
of
 h
id
de
n 
da
ng
er
s.
 T
he
 e
ve
nt
 w
as
 

m
an
ne
d 
by
 W

R
S
 s
ta
ff 
ad
vi
si
ng
 c
on
su
m
er
s 
on
 p
ro
te
ct
in
g 
th
em

se
lv
es
 fr
om

 r
og
ue
 tr
ad
er
s 
an
d 
sc
am

s.
 

 T
hi
s 
pr
ov
ed
 to
 b
e 
an
 e
xc
el
le
nt
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
ty
 to
 h
el
p 
co
ns
um

er
s 
an
d 
pr
om

ot
e 
W
R
S
 to
 o
th
er
 a
ge
nc
ie
s,
 c
on
su
m
er
s 
an
d 
co
un
ci
llo
rs
. T

he
re
 w
as
 a
 h
ig
h 
at
te
nd
an
ce
 b
y 

co
ns
um

er
s 
cl
as
se
d 
as
 p
ot
en
tia
lly
 v
ul
ne
ra
bl
e 
w
ith
 a
n 
es
tim

at
e 
of
 1
00
0 
co
ns
um

er
s 
at
te
nd
in
g 
ea
ch
 d
ay
.  

 A
 v
ic
tim

 o
f r
og
ue
 tr
ad
er
 a
ct
iv
ity
 w
as
 id
en
tif
ie
d 
an
d 
gi
ve
n 
ex
te
ns
iv
e 
he
lp
 a
nd
 a
dv
ic
e 
in
 o
rd
er
 to
 p
re
ve
nt
 fu
rt
he
r 
ta
rg
et
in
g.
 

 W
R
S
 a
ls
o 
in
te
ra
ct
ed
 w
ith
 a
n 
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
ca
lle
d 
S
ite
 a
nd
 S
ou
nd
 w
ho
 p
ro
vi
de
 a
ss
is
ta
nc
e 
to
 v
is
ua
lly
 a
nd
 h
ea
rin
g 
im
pa
ire
d 
ci
tiz
en
s.
 L
in
ks
 to
 a
dv
ic
e 
an
d 
in
fo
rm

at
io
n 

pr
ov
id
ed
 b
y 
W
R
S
 w
er
e 
gi
ve
n 
to
 th
em

. 

Page 46



 
1
5

W
R
S
 h
av
e 
es
tim

at
ed
 th
at
 5
00
0 
“N
o 
C
ol
d 
C
al
le
r”
 s
ig
ns
 w
er
e 
di
st
rib
ut
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
w
ee
k.
 

 Ill
eg

al
 C
ar
 S
al
es
  

S
ev
er
al
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 h
av
e 
be
en
 in
st
ig
at
ed
 c
on
ce
rn
in
g 
th
e 
sa
le
 o
f v
eh
ic
le
s 
th
at
 a
re
 d
an
ge
ro
us
ly
 u
n-
ro
ad
w
or
th
y,
 h
av
e 
ha
d 
th
ei
r 
m
ile
ag
es
 r
ed
uc
ed
 (
cl
oc
ke
d)
 o
r 
ha
ve
 

be
en
 s
ol
d 
w
ith
 fa
ls
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
hi
st
or
ie
s.
 T
he
se
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
 w
ill
 le
ad
 to
 th
e 
pr
os
ec
ut
io
n 
of
 th
e 
tr
ad
er
s 
in
vo
lv
ed
.  

 A
n 
ex
am

pl
e 
in
cl
ud
es
 a
 p
ro
se
cu
tio
n 
ag
ai
ns
t a
 c
ar
 d
ea
le
r 
w
ho
 s
ol
d 
ca
rs
 th
at
 h
e 
di
dn
’t 
ow

n.
 T
he
 tr
ad
er
 le
as
ed
 c
ar
s 
fr
om

 fi
na
nc
e 
co
m
pa
ni
es
 a
nd
 th
en
 s
ol
d 
th
em

 to
 

un
w
itt
in
g 
co
ns
um

er
s.
 T
he
se
 w
er
e 
hi
gh
 v
al
ue
 v
eh
ic
le
s 
w
or
th
 s
ev
er
al
 th
ou
sa
nd
 p
ou
nd
s.
 T
hi
s 
m
an
 w
as
 p
ro
se
cu
te
d 
fo
r 
fr
au
d 
an
d 
re
ce
iv
ed
 a
 c
us
to
di
al
 s
en
te
nc
e.
 

 W
R
S
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 h
av
e 
al
so
 in
st
ig
at
ed
 c
ar
 fo
re
co
ur
t c
he
ck
s.
 O
ffi
ce
rs
 h
av
e 
vi
si
te
d 
ca
r 
de
al
er
s 
w
ho
 h
av
e 
ge
ne
ra
te
d 
co
ns
um

er
 c
om

pl
ai
nt
s 
to
 c
he
ck
 th
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 a
nd
 a
dv
is
e 

th
em

 o
f t
he
ir 
le
ga
l o
bl
ig
at
io
ns
. V

eh
ic
le
s 
ad
ve
rt
is
ed
 fo
r 
sa
le
 h
av
e 
al
so
 h
ad
 th
ei
r 
hi
st
or
ie
s 
ch
ec
ke
d.
 

Page 47



 
1
6

F
in
an

ci
al
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 
 

20
12
/1
3 

M
on
th
ly
 fi
na
nc
ia
l m

on
ito
rin
g 
re
po
rt
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
pr
es
en
te
d 
to
 th
e 
M
an
ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 a
nd
 to
 e
ac
h 
Jo
in
t C

om
m
itt
ee
 m
ee
tin
g.
 In
 a
dd
iti
on
, a
 r
ob
us
t o
rd
er
in
g 
an
d 

au
th
or
is
at
io
n 
pr
oc
es
s 
is
 in
 p
la
ce
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
e 
tr
an
sp
ar
en
cy
 a
nd
 a
cc
ur
ac
y 
of
 c
os
tin
g.
 G
oo
d 
m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f c
os
ts
 a
nd
 th
e 
m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f v
ac
an
ci
es
 le
d 
to
 a
no
th
er
 

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
 u
nd
er
sp
en
d 
of
 £
35
0,
00
0 
ag
ai
ns
t t
he
 r
ev
en
ue
 b
ud
ge
t. 
T
hi
s 
po
si
tio
n 
is
 s
ub
je
ct
 to
 fi
na
l A

ud
it 
as
 p
ar
t o
f t
he
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 fo
r 
th
e 
Jo
in
t C

om
m
itt
ee
. T

he
 

ov
er
al
l s
av
in
g 
ac
hi
ev
ed
 a
ga
in
st
 th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 b
ud
ge
ts
 fr
om

 p
ar
tn
er
s 
is
 a
ro
un
d 
23
%
. 

T
hi
s 
ha
s 
 a
llo
w
ed
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 r
ec
ei
ve
 a
 fi
na
nc
ia
l b
on
us
 a
s 
th
e 
sa
vi
ng
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
re
tu
rn
ed
 to
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
in
 th
e 
pr
op
or
tio
ns
 th
ey
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
e 
al
be
it 
th
is
 c
am

e 
w
ith
 a
 

co
m
m
itm

en
t t
o 
ho
no
ur
 a
ny
 fu
rt
he
r 
re
du
nd
an
cy
 c
os
ts
 th
at
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 in
cu
rs
 a
s 
it 
co
nt
in
ue
s 
to
 s
tr
ea
m
lin
e 
its
 o
pe
ra
tio
ns
, a
t l
ea
st
 to
 th
e 
le
ve
l a
gr
ee
d 
in
 th
e 
bu
si
ne
ss
 

ca
se
. A

pp
en
di
x 
4 
de
ta
ils
 th
e 
fin
al
 fi
na
nc
ia
l s
ta
te
m
en
t f
or
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 In
 s
um

m
ar
y 
th
e 
po
si
tio
n 
w
as
 a
s 
fo
llo
w
s:
 

T
ab

le
 5
 –
B
u
d
g
et
 O
u
tt
u
rn
 f
o
r 
20
11
/1
2 

  
B
u
d
g
et
 

E
xp

en
d
it
u
re
 

V
ar
ia
n
ce
 

E
m
p
lo
ye
es
 

41
50
 

39
05
 

-2
45
 

P
re
m
is
es
 

19
4 

14
8 

-4
5 

T
ra
n
sp

o
rt
 

21
5 

17
7 

-3
8 

S
u
p
p
lie
s 
&
 

S
er
vi
ce
s 

64
7 

67
0 

22
 

C
o
n
tr
ac
to
rs
 

42
3 

44
8 

25
 

In
co

m
e 

-3
 

-6
1 

-5
9 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 

56
26
 

52
86
 

-3
40
 

T
ra
n
sf
er
 t
o
 

R
es
er
ve
 –
T
ra
in
in
g
 

35
 

26
 

-9
 

T
o
ta
l 

56
61
 

53
12
 

-3
49
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 B
u
d
g
et
 f
o
r 
20
13
/1
4 

 A
pp
en
di
x 
5 
de
ta
ils
 th
e 
bu
dg
et
 a
llo
ca
tio
n 
fo
r 
20
13
/1
4.
 T
he
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
io
n 
fr
om

 e
ac
h 
pa
rt
ne
r 
is
 b
as
ed
 o
n 
th
e 
sa
m
e 
re
vi
se
d 
%
 s
ha
re
 o
ut
lin
ed
 a
t t
he
 e
nd
 o
f A

pp
en
di
x 
4.
 T
he
 

bu
dg
et
 fo
r 
20
12
/1
3 
w
as
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 b
y 
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
ly
 r
ed
uc
in
g 
th
e 
fu
nd
in
g 
fo
r 
va
rio
us
 a
ct
iv
iti
es
 (
se
rv
ic
es
 a
nd
 e
qu
ip
m
en
t)
 a
nd
 b
y 
el
im
in
at
in
g 
vi
rt
ua
lly
 a
ll 
of
 th
e 
va
ca
nt
 p
os
ts
 

w
ith
in
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 T
hi
s 
m
ea
ns
 th
at
 th
er
e 
is
 v
er
y 
lit
tle
 s
co
pe
 fo
r 
re
du
ct
io
n 
w
ith
in
 th
e 
re
ve
nu
e 
bu
dg
et
 o
th
er
 th
an
 s
al
ar
ie
s 
of
 fr
on
t l
in
e 
st
af
f. 
W
e 
en
vi
sa
ge
 th
at
 th
e 

co
m
pl
et
io
n 
of
 tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
w
ill
 a
llo
w
 u
s 
to
 d
ev
el
op
 s
om

e 
fu
rt
he
r 
sm

al
l e
ffi
ci
en
ci
es
. 

 

Page 48



 
1
7

W
hi
ls
t t
he
 b
ud
ge
t f
or
 2
01
3/
14
 is
 th
e 
sa
m
e 
as
 1
2/
13
, w

e 
ar
e 
no
w
 a
w
ar
e 
th
at
 w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 d
el
iv
er
 fu
rt
he
r 
sa
vi
ng
s 
on
 b
eh
al
f o
f p
ar
tn
er
s 
an
d,
 d
ep
en
di
ng
 o
n 
th
e 

si
ze
 o
f t
he
se
 r
ed
uc
tio
ns
, w

ill
 a
lm
os
t c
er
ta
in
ly
 r
es
ul
t i
n 
re
du
ct
io
ns
 in
 th
e 
le
ve
l o
f s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
ed
. T

he
 p
ot
en
tia
l l
ev
el
 o
f s
av
in
g 
re
qu
ire
d 
w
ill
 n
ot
 b
e 
cl
ea
r 
be
fo
re
 

S
ep
te
m
be
r 
20
13
 b
ut
 w
e 
w
ill
 b
e 
re
vi
ew

in
g 
el
em

en
ts
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y 
du
rin
g 
th
is
 fi
na
nc
ia
l y
ea
r 
an
d,
 w
he
re
 it
 is
 p
os
si
bl
e 
an
d 
ap
pr
op
ria
te
, w

e 
w
ill
 lo
ok
 to
 u
se
 th
e 
V
C
R
 

pr
oc
es
s 
to
 fi
nd
 s
ta
ff 
sa
vi
ng
s 
an
d 
qu
an
tif
y 
th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
n 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 
an
d 
th
e 
as
so
ci
at
ed
 r
is
ks
.  
W
R
S
 M
an
ag
er
s 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
ta
sk
ed
 w
ith
 p
re
pa
rin
g 
a 
co
st
 b
as
e 
fo
r 

cu
rr
en
t a
ct
iv
iti
es
 a
nd
 a
ls
o 
to
 in
tr
od
uc
e 
a 
ris
k 
as
se
ss
m
en
t m

et
ho
do
lo
gy
 s
o 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 c
an
 p
ro
pe
rly
 a
ss
es
s 
th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
f a
ny
 b
ud
ge
t r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
sc
op
e 
of
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e,
 

as
si
st
in
g 
th
em

 to
 m
ak
e 
in
fo
rm
ed
 d
ec
is
io
ns
. 

 H
u
m
an

 R
es
o
u
rc
es
 Is
su

es
 

T
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
 a
pp
ea
rs
 a
s 
A
pp
en
di
x 
A
. T

hi
s 
ha
s 
be
en
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 b
y 
a 
m
in
or
 r
e-
st
ru
ct
ur
in
g 
w
ith
in
 w
ha
t w

as
 B
us
in
es
s 
C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
an
d 
C
om

m
un
ity
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n,
 a
s 
a 

re
su
lt 
of
 th
e 
da
ta
 w
e 
w
er
e 
ga
th
er
in
g,
 to
 d
el
iv
er
 tw

o 
G
eo
gr
ap
hi
c 
te
am

s 
an
d 
ou
r 
S
tr
at
eg
ic
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
te
am

. T
hi
s 
pr
ov
id
ed
 a
 b
et
te
r 
ba
la
nc
e 
of
 r
es
ou
rc
e 
al
lo
ca
tio
n 
to
 

de
m
an
d 
sp
re
ad
. F

ur
th
er
 c
ha
ng
es
 to
 o
ur
 s
tr
uc
tu
re
 w
ill
 b
e 
co
ns
id
er
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
20
13
/1
4 
w
he
n 
fu
rt
he
r 
da
ta
 o
n 
de
m
an
d 
an
d 
tr
en
ds
 w
ill
 b
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e.
 

 S
ic
kn
es
s 
ab
se
nc
e 
le
ve
ls
 a
re
 r
un
ni
ng
 a
t a
bo
ve
 th
e 
pu
bl
ic
 s
ec
to
r 
av
er
ag
e 
bu
t a
ro
un
d 
2/
3r
ds
 o
f t
hi
s 
is
 m
ad
e 
up
 o
f l
on
g 
te
rm

 s
ic
kn
es
s 
re
su
lti
ng
 fr
om

 e
ith
er
 s
er
io
us
 il
ln
es
s 

or
 in
ju
ry
. T

o 
he
lp
 m
iti
ga
te
 th
e 
im
pa
ct
 o
f t
hi
s 
w
e 
ha
ve
 im

pl
em

en
te
d 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 fo
r 
al
l m

an
ag
er
s 
on
 h
ow

 to
 h
an
dl
e 
si
ck
ne
ss
 a
bs
en
ce
 a
nd
 b
y 
a 
co
m
bi
na
tio
n 
of
 c
ar
ef
ul
 

m
on
ito
rin
g 
an
d 
m
an
ag
em

en
t a
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t r
ed
uc
tio
n 
in
 th
e 
cu
rr
en
t l
ev
el
 is
 e
xp
ec
te
d.
 

M
on
ey
 w
as
 c
ar
rie
d 
fo
rw
ar
d 
la
st
 y
ea
r 
to
 fu
nd
 a
 L
ea
de
rs
hi
p 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
fo
r 
th
e 
M
an
ag
er
s 
w
ith
in
 W

R
S
. T

hi
s 
ha
s 
go
ne
 w
el
l a
nd
 w
ill
 b
e 
co
m
pl
et
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
S
um

m
er
 

20
13
. F

ur
th
er
 to
 th
is
, a
 tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t p
ro
gr
am

m
e 
ha
s 
be
en
 d
ev
el
op
ed
 a
nd
 im

pl
em

en
te
d 
fo
r 
th
e 
S
en
io
r 
P
ra
ct
iti
on
er
 ti
er
 (
4n

d
 ti
er
 m
an
ag
er
s,
) 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 

ar
ea
s 
su
ch
 a
s 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
nd
 s
ic
kn
es
s 
ab
se
nc
e 
ca
n 
be
 e
ffe
ct
iv
el
y 
m
on
ito
re
d 
an
d 
m
an
ag
ed
.  
 

A
ll 
st
af
f p
ar
tic
ip
at
ed
 in
 th
e 
P
er
so
na
l D

ev
el
op
m
en
t R

ev
ie
w
 p
ro
ce
ss
 la
st
 y
ea
r 
an
d 
th
is
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
fe
d 
in
to
 a
 p
er
so
na
l t
ra
in
in
g 
pl
an
 fo
r 
ea
ch
 o
ffi
ce
r 
an
d 
an
 o
ve
ra
ll 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 

pl
an
 fo
r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 T
he
 la
tte
r 
al
lo
w
s 
us
 to
 lo
ok
 a
t o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
fo
r 
ru
nn
in
g 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 in
-h
ou
se
 (
br
in
gi
ng
 th
e 
tr
ai
ne
r 
to
 u
s)
 w
he
re
 th
er
e 
is
 s
uf
fic
ie
nt
 n
ee
d,
 w
hi
ch
 is
 

si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
ly
 m
or
e 
co
st
 e
ffe
ct
iv
e 
th
an
 g
oi
ng
 to
 e
xt
er
na
l p
ro
vi
de
rs
. 

T
ur
no
ve
r 
of
 s
ta
ff 
ha
s 
be
en
 lo
w
, a
lth
ou
gh
 w
e 
ha
ve
 lo
st
 tw

o 
fie
ld
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 w
ho
 o
bt
ai
ne
d 
pr
om

ot
io
ns
 in
 o
th
er
 o
rg
an
is
at
io
ns
. R

e-
or
ga
ni
sa
tio
n 
an
d 
ill
 h
ea
lth
 r
et
ire
m
en
t h
av
e 

al
so
 c
on
tr
ib
ut
ed
 to
 s
om

e 
st
af
f l
ea
vi
ng
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 T
he
 m
ai
n 
is
su
e 
w
e 
ha
ve
 fa
ce
d 
fr
om

 a
 s
ta
ffi
ng
 p
er
sp
ec
tiv
e 
is
 th
at
 it
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
ve
ry
 d
iff
ic
ul
t t
o 
ge
t s
ui
ta
bl
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
or
 

co
ve
r 
to
 fi
ll 
in
 fo
r 
pe
op
le
 o
n 
lo
ng
 te
rm

 s
ic
k 
an
d 
fo
r 
th
os
e 
se
co
nd
ed
 o
nt
o 
th
e 
IT
 im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
pr
oj
ec
t. 
W
e 
w
er
e 
su
rp
ris
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
sh
or
ta
ge
 o
f s
ui
ta
bl
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
or
s 
in
 th
e 

E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l H

ea
lth
 fi
el
d 
an
d 
it 
ha
s 
pr
ov
ed
 e
ve
n 
m
or
e 
di
ffi
cu
lt 
to
 o
bt
ai
n 
ba
ck
fil
lin
g 
fo
r 
T
ra
di
ng
 S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 s
ta
ff.
 

W
e 
ha
ve
 r
es
po
nd
ed
 to
 s
ta
ff 
ne
ed
s 
fo
r 
su
pp
or
t i
n 
ou
r 
fa
st
 c
ha
ng
in
g 
en
vi
ro
nm

en
t b
y 
of
fe
rin
g 
va
rio
us
 s
up
po
rt
 s
ys
te
m
s.
 W

or
ce
st
er
sh
ire
 W

or
ks
 W

el
l, 
ha
s 
be
en
 

im
pl
em

en
te
d 
of
fe
rin
g 
us
 a
 w
el
ln
es
s 
at
 w
or
k 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 s
ta
ff 
an
d 
th
e 
B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 E
m
pl
oy
ee
 A
ss
is
ta
nc
e 
pr
og
ra
m
m
e 
w
he
re
 s
ta
ff 
m
em

be
rs
 o
ffe
r 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 

su
pp
or
t t
o 
ot
he
r 
st
af
f m

em
be
rs
 w
ho
 a
re
 s
tr
ug
gl
in
g 
ha
s 
be
en
 im

pl
em

en
te
d.
 D
ue
 to
 ti
m
e 
co
ns
tr
ai
nt
s 
an
 A
nn
ua
l S
ta
ff 
S
ur
ve
y 
w
as
 n
ot
 c
om

pl
et
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
th
is
 r
ep
or
tin
g 

pe
rio
d 
bu
t o
ne
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
un
de
rt
ak
en
 r
ec
en
tly
 a
nd
 w
ill
 b
e 
re
po
rt
ed
 in
 n
ex
t y
ea
r’s
 A
nn
ua
l R

ep
or
t. 
T
he
re
 h
as
 h
ow

ev
er
 b
ee
n 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 s
ta
ff 
br
ie
fin
gs
 a
nd
 r
eg
ul
ar
 s
ta
ff 

ne
w
sl
et
te
r 
pr
ov
id
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
th
is
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
pe
rio
d,
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
st
af
f r
em

ai
n 
su
pp
or
te
d,
 in
fo
rm

ed
 a
nd
 e
ng
ag
ed
 th
ro
ug
ho
ut
 th
e 
ye
ar
. 

 

Page 49



 
1
8

A
cc
o
m
m
o
d
at
io
n
 

 W
ya
tt 
H
ou
se
 c
on
tin
ue
s 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
an
d 
its
 s
ta
ff 
w
ith
 a
n 
id
ea
l b
as
e.
 T
he
 u
se
 o
f f
le
xi
bl
e 
an
d 
m
ob
ile
 w
or
ki
ng
 is
 g
en
er
al
ly
 n
ow

 th
e 
no
rm

, w
ith
 s
ta
ff 
fr
eq
ue
nt
ly
 

us
in
g 
ho
m
e 
as
 th
ei
r 
st
ar
t a
nd
 fi
ni
sh
 p
oi
nt
 fo
r 
w
or
k 
in
 th
e 
fie
ld
. O

ffi
ce
rs
 w
ill
 c
om

e 
in
to
 W

ya
tt 
H
ou
se
 tw

o 
or
 th
re
e 
da
ys
 p
er
 w
ee
k 
to
 li
ai
se
 w
ith
 m
an
ag
er
s 
an
d 
co
lle
ag
ue
s 
or
 

fo
r 
m
ee
tin
gs
, a
nd
 o
n 
th
e 
ot
he
r 
da
ys
 th
ey
 w
or
k 
fle
xi
bl
y.
 T
he
 to
uc
h 
do
w
n 
po
in
ts
 r
et
ai
ne
d 
in
 e
ac
h 
of
 th
e 
co
un
ci
ls
 (
ex
cl
ud
in
g 
th
e 
C
ity
 a
s 
W
ya
tt 
H
ou
se
 is
 th
er
e,
) 
ha
ve
 

pr
ov
id
ed
 a
n 
ex
ce
lle
nt
 v
en
ue
 fo
r 
lic
en
si
ng
 s
ur
ge
rie
s 
an
d 
th
es
e 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
w
el
co
m
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
ta
xi
 tr
ad
e 
in
 p
ar
tic
ul
ar
. T

hi
s 
m
ov
e 
ha
s 
al
so
 e
na
bl
ed
 s
ta
ff 
to
 s
tr
ik
e 
a 
be
tte
r 

w
or
k/
lif
e 
ba
la
nc
e 
w
hi
ch
 is
 e
ss
en
tia
l f
or
 g
oo
d 
m
or
al
e.
 F
ur
th
er
 p
ro
gr
es
s 
on
 th
is
 im

po
rt
an
t a
sp
ec
t o
f s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y 
w
ill
 b
e 
m
ad
e 
on
ce
 w
e 
ha
ve
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
IT
 s
ys
te
m
 in
 

pl
ac
e.
 

 B
u
si
n
es
s 
T
ra
n
sf
o
rm

at
io
n
 (
S
er
vi
ce
 D
el
iv
er
y)
 

S
ys
te
m
s 
T
hi
nk
in
g 
ha
s 
re
m
ai
ne
d 
at
 th
e 
ro
ot
 o
f w

ha
t t
he
 s
er
vi
ce
 is
 s
ee
ki
ng
 to
 d
el
iv
er
, h
ow

ev
er
, a
s 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
it 
w
ill
 b
ec
om

e 
ha
rd
er
 to
 d
el
iv
er
 w
ha
t i
nd
iv
id
ua
l 

cu
st
om

er
s 
ne
ed
. G

oi
ng
 fo
rw
ar
d,
 th
e 
us
e 
of
 in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
w
ill
 fe
at
ur
e 
m
or
e 
an
d 
m
or
e,
 e
sp
ec
ia
lly
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
T
ra
di
ng
 S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 fu
nc
tio
ns
 u
nd
er
 th
e 
N
at
io
na
l T
ra
di
ng
 

S
ta
nd
ar
ds
 B
oa
rd
’s
 In
te
gr
at
ed
 O
pe
ra
tin
g 
M
od
el
 th
at
 s
ee
ks
 to
 e
m
be
d 
th
e 
in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
le
d 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 a
t l
oc
al
, r
eg
io
na
l a
nd
 n
at
io
na
l l
ev
el
s.
 T
he
 d
ev
el
op
m
en
t o
f p
ur
po
se
s 

fr
om

 a
 c
us
to
m
er
 p
er
sp
ec
tiv
e 
ha
s 
as
si
st
ed
 o
ffi
ce
rs
 in
 s
ha
pi
ng
 th
ei
r 
re
sp
on
se
s 
to
 w
or
k 
w
ith
in
 o
ur
 fr
am

ew
or
k 
of
 s
tr
at
eg
ic
 p
rio
rit
ie
s,
 k
ee
pi
ng
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
fo
cu
se
d 
on
 w
ha
t 

cu
st
om

er
s 
w
an
t. 
 

 D
ur
in
g 
20
12
/1
3,
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
ha
s 
tr
ia
lle
d 
th
e 
us
e 
of
 a
 s
m
al
l i
nt
el
lig
en
ce
 u
ni
t w

ith
in
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
to
 b
ot
h 
he
lp
 d
ire
ct
 th
e 
w
or
k 
of
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
an
d 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
fo
r 

m
an
ag
er
s 
an
d 
m
em

be
rs
 o
n 
ou
tp
ut
s.
 T
hi
s 
w
ill
 b
e 
fo
rm

al
is
ed
 d
ur
in
g 
20
13
/1
4 
an
d 
w
ill
 s
up
po
rt
 th
e 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
in
te
lli
ge
nc
e 
le
d 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 m
or
e 
w
id
el
y 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 

se
rv
ic
e.
  

 IC
T
 P
ro
je
ct
 

T
he
 im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 a
 s
in
gl
e 
ne
w
 IC

T
 s
ys
te
m
 to
 r
ep
la
ce
 th
e 
le
ga
cy
 s
ys
te
m
s 
cu
rr
en
tly
 b
ei
ng
 u
se
d 
w
ith
in
 W

R
S
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
a 
pr
io
rit
y 
fo
r 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
du
rin
g 
20
12
/1
3.
 

C
us
to
m
er
 fo
cu
s 
an
d 
se
rv
ic
e 
tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
ai
m
ed
 a
t i
m
pr
ov
in
g 
pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 a
nd
 e
ffi
ci
en
cy
 is
 k
ey
 to
 it
s 
de
si
gn
. 

 T
he
 W

R
S
 P
ro
je
ct
 T
ea
m
 o
ve
rs
ee
n 
by
 a
 P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
fo
rm

ed
 c
om

pr
is
in
g 
us
er
s 
dr
aw

n 
fr
om

 a
cr
os
s 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 T
hi
s 
te
am

, w
hi
ch
 is
 b
as
ed
 a
t T

he
 G
ui
ld
ha
ll 
in
 

W
or
ce
st
er
, i
s 
be
in
g 
tr
ai
ne
d 
an
d 
su
pp
or
te
d 
by
 s
up
pl
ie
r 
ID
O
X
. T

he
 te
am

 is
 ta
sk
ed
 w
ith
 b
ui
ld
in
g 
an
d 
de
ve
lo
pi
ng
 th
e 
U
N
Ifo
rm

 s
ys
te
m
 ta
ilo
re
d 
to
 W

R
S
 n
ee
ds
, a
nd
 

pr
ov
id
in
g 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 to
 th
e 
en
d 
us
er
s.
 T
hi
s 
ap
pr
oa
ch
 w
ill
 le
ad
 to
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
be
co
m
in
g 
m
uc
h 
m
or
e 
se
lf-
su
ffi
ci
en
t g
oi
ng
 fo
rw
ar
d 
w
ith
 m
uc
h 
le
ss
 r
el
ia
nc
e 
on
 s
up
pl
ie
r 

su
pp
or
t. 

 S
in
ce
 e
ar
ly
 M
ar
ch
 th
e 
te
am

 h
as
 b
ee
n 
w
or
ki
ng
 o
n 
tr
an
sf
er
rin
g 
hi
st
or
ic
al
 d
at
a 
fr
om

 e
xi
st
in
g 
pa
rt
ne
r 
sy
st
em

s.
 O
ne
 b
y 
on
e,
 th
e 
da
ta
 fr
om

 th
es
e 
le
ga
cy
 s
ys
te
m
s 
is
 b
ei
ng
 

lo
ad
ed
 in
to
 U
N
Ifo
rm

 w
ith
 th
e 
IC
T
 T
ea
m
 c
ar
ry
in
g 
ou
t d
at
a 
an
d 
us
er
 a
cc
ep
ta
nc
e 
te
st
in
g 
pr
io
r 
to
 im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
ac
ro
ss
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
in
 la
te
 J
un
e.
 

 F
ur
th
er
 fe
at
ur
es
 o
f t
he
 IC

T
 s
ys
te
m
 w
ill
 b
e 
im
pr
ov
ed
 p
ub
lic
 a
cc
es
s 
to
 d
at
a,
 a
 n
ew

 in
te
gr
al
 d
oc
um

en
t m

an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
te
m
, s
pa
tia
l i
nf
or
m
at
io
n 
an
d 
m
ob
ile
 w
or
ki
ng
 to
ol
s 

w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 g
iv
e 
O
ffi
ce
rs
 in
st
an
t a
cc
es
s 
to
 “
liv
e”
 in
fo
rm

at
io
n 
in
 th
e 
fie
ld
 w
hi
ch
 w
ill
 fa
ci
lit
at
e 
a 
m
or
e 
ef
fic
ie
nt
 a
nd
 c
us
to
m
er
 fo
cu
ss
ed
 w
ay
 o
f w

or
ki
ng
 

Page 50



 
1
9

R
is
k 
M
an

ag
em

en
t 

W
R
S
 r
ec
og
ni
se
s 
th
at
 th
e 
de
ve
lo
pm

en
t o
f p
ol
ic
y,
 d
el
iv
er
y 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
an
d 
th
e 
m
an
ag
em

en
t o
f i
ts
 s
er
vi
ce
s 
fo
r 
se
ve
n 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 a
ttr
ac
t r
is
ks
. 

In
 r
ev
ie
w
in
g 
its
 s
er
vi
ce
 r
is
ks
 a
nd
 th
e 
ef
fe
ct
s 
of
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
tr
at
eg
ie
s 
an
d 
po
lic
ie
s 
W
R
S
 s
ee
ks
 to
; 

-
 

Id
en
tif
y,
 a
ss
es
s 
an
d 
m
an
ag
e 
ris
k 

-
 

S
af
eg
ua
rd
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
es
 a
ss
et
s 
an
d 
eq
ui
pm

en
t 

-
 

F
oc
us
 o
n 
th
e 
de
liv
er
y 
of
 it
s 
se
rv
ic
e 
to
 it
s 
cu
st
om

er
s 

T
he
 S
er
vi
ce
 a
im
s 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
th
at
 R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t b
ec
om

es
 a
 n
at
ur
al
 c
om

po
ne
nt
 o
f i
ts
 m
an
ag
em

en
t p
ro
ce
ss
 a
nd
 th
at
 w
he
n 
an
d 
w
he
re
 a
pp
ro
pr
ia
te
; r
is
ks
 a
re
 a
vo
id
ed
, 

re
du
ce
d,
 tr
an
sf
er
re
d 
or
 r
et
ai
ne
d.
 A
s 
pa
rt
 o
f t
he
se
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
, a
 W

R
S
 r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
de
ve
lo
pe
d 
th
at
 c
an
 b
e 
in
te
gr
at
ed
 w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
s 
ow

n 
ris
k 
re
gi
st
er
s.
 T
hi
s 

re
gi
st
er
 w
ill
 b
e 
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d 
an
d 
re
vi
ew

ed
 p
er
io
di
ca
lly
 to
 a
ss
es
s 
cu
rr
en
t r
is
ks
 a
nd
 id
en
tif
y 
fo
rt
hc
om

in
g 
pr
io
rit
ie
s.
 T
he
 c
ur
re
nt
 r
is
k 
re
gi
st
er
 a
pp
ea
rs
 a
s 
A
pp
en
di
x 
2.
 

 E
q
u
al
it
y 
an

d
 D
iv
er
si
ty
  

 W
R
S
 i
s 
co
m
m
itt
ed
 t
o 
eq
ua
lit
y 
of
 o
pp
or
tu
ni
ty
 a
nd
 r
es
pe
ct
 f
or
 d
iv
er
si
ty
. 
T
he
 s
er
vi
ce
 l
in
ks
 i
n 
w
ith
 t
he
 h
os
ts
 a
do
pt
ed
 E
qu
al
ity
 S
ta
nd
ar
d 
fo
r 
Lo
ca
l 
G
ov
er
nm

en
t 
as
 a
 

fr
am

ew
or
k 
to
 h
el
p 
em

be
d 
eq
ua
lit
y 
an
d 
di
ve
rs
ity
 in
to
 e
ve
ry
da
y 
as
pe
ct
s 
of
 it
s 
w
or
k.
 

 N
ex
t 
S
te
p
s 

 A
s 
w
e 
he
ad
 i
nt
o 
th
e 
ne
xt
 p
er
io
d 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
w
ill
 f
ac
e 
a 
nu
m
be
r 
of
 k
ey
 c
ha
lle
ng
es
, 
pr
in
ci
pa
lly
 d
ev
el
op
in
g 
a 
se
rv
ic
e 
th
at
 m

ee
ts
 a
ll 
ou
r 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 d
iff
er
in
g 
fin
an
ci
al
 

pr
es
su
re
s.
 T
he
 n
ew

 I
T
 s
ys
te
m
 s
ho
ul
d 
be
 c
on
fig
ur
ed
 a
nd
 i
m
pl
em

en
te
d 
by
 a
ut
um

n 
20
13
 a
nd
 t
hi
s 
w
ill
 i
m
pr
ov
e 
bo
th
 o
ur
 a
bi
lit
y 
to
 r
ep
or
t 
an
d 
sh
ou
ld
 s
tr
ea
m
lin
e 
so
m
e 

pr
oc
es
se
s.
  

 W
e 
w
ill
 lo
ok
 a
t o
pp
or
tu
ni
tie
s 
to
 e
xt
en
d 
th
e 
pa
rt
ne
rs
hi
p 
to
 in
cr
ea
se
 r
es
ili
en
ce
 a
nd
 d
el
iv
er
 s
om

e 
fu
rt
he
r 
co
st
 s
av
in
gs
. 
W
e 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en
tly
 in
 d
is
cu
ss
io
n 
w
ith
 s
ev
er
al
 p
ot
en
tia
l 

ne
w
 p
ar
tn
er
s.
 T
he
 p
ot
en
tia
l i
nc
re
as
e 
in
 g
eo
gr
ap
hi
ca
l s
co
pe
 o
f 
th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 
m
ay
 r
eq
ui
re
 a
 r
ev
ie
w
 o
f 
go
ve
rn
an
ce
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 t
o 
en
su
re
 t
ha
t 
th
is
 e
le
m
en
t 
is
 d
el
iv
er
ed
 

ef
fic
ie
nt
ly
 a
nd
 c
os
t 
ef
fe
ct
iv
el
y.
 I
t 
m
ay
 a
ls
o 
be
 n
ec
es
sa
ry
 t
o 
co
ns
id
er
 a
 n
am

e 
ch
an
ge
 in
 o
rd
er
 t
o 
re
fle
ct
 a
nd
 c
ha
ng
es
 o
n 
ge
og
ra
ph
ic
al
 c
ov
er
ag
e.
 A
ny
 p
ro
po
sa
l w

ill
 b
e 
pu
t 

be
fo
re
 th
e 
M
an
ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 a
nd
 J
oi
nt
 C
om

m
itt
ee
 fo
r 
co
ns
id
er
at
io
n 
an
d 
de
ci
si
on
. 

 A
s 
w
e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 t
o 
be
 i
n 
an
 e
ve
r 
ch
an
gi
ng
 e
nv
iro
nm

en
t, 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 w
ith
 s
ta
ff 
w
ill
 r
em

ai
n 
ke
y 
to
 m

ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 p
er
fo
rm

an
ce
, 
so
 w
e 
w
ill
 m

ai
nt
ai
n 
ou
r 
va
rio
us
 

ch
an
ne
ls
 o
f c
om

m
un
ic
at
io
n 
to
 k
ee
p 
th
em

 in
fo
rm

ed
 o
f d
ev
el
op
m
en
ts
 a
nd
 in
vo
lv
e 
th
em

 in
 th
e 
ch
an
ge
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 

 K
ey
 M
ile
st
o
n
es
 f
o
r 
20
13
/1
4 

-
 

D
et
ai
le
d 
bu
si
ne
ss
 c
as
e 
to
 m
em

be
rs
 r
e 
ta
ki
ng
 o
n 
ot
he
r 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 

-
 

Im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
of
 th
e 
ne
w
 IT

 s
ol
ut
io
n 
so
 o
ld
 s
ys
te
m
s 
ca
n 
be
 s
w
itc
he
d 
of
f, 

-
 

F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
ou
r 
ph
ilo
so
ph
y 
of
 c
on
tin
uo
us
 im

pr
ov
em

en
t, 
w
e 
w
ill
 c
on
tin
ue
 to
 r
ev
ie
w
 p
ro
ce
ss
es
 to
 e
lim

in
at
e 
ob
vi
ou
s 
w
as
te
, 

Page 51



 
2
0

-
 

Id
en
tif
y 
ho
w
 fu
tu
re
 b
ud
ge
ta
ry
 r
es
tr
ic
tio
ns
 m
ig
ht
 im

pa
ct
 o
n 
se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 
go
in
g 
fo
rw
ar
d,
 in
cl
ud
in
g 
th
e 
ris
k 
of
 a
ny
 s
er
vi
ce
 r
ed
uc
tio
ns
 e
nv
is
ag
ed
. 

-
 

T
o 
ac
hi
ev
e 
ag
re
em

en
t w

ith
 m
an
ag
em

en
t b
oa
rd
 a
nd
 jo
in
t c
om

m
itt
ee
 o
n 
th
e 
sc
al
e 
an
d 
sc
op
e 
of
 s
av
in
gs
 o
n 
ba
se
 b
ud
ge
t t
ha
t t
he
 s
er
vi
ce
 w
ill
 b
e 
re
qu
ire
d 
to
 

de
liv
er
 d
ur
in
g 
th
e 
ne
xt
 fi
na
nc
ia
l s
et
tle
m
en
t p
er
io
d.
 

-
 

F
ol
lo
w
in
g 
on
 fr
om

 th
is
, t
o 
ag
re
e 
fu
tu
re
 le
ve
ls
 o
f s
er
vi
ce
 d
el
iv
er
y 
fo
r 
al
l p
ar
tn
er
s.
  

-
 

R
ev
ie
w
 o
f g
ov
er
na
nc
e 
ar
ra
ng
em

en
ts
 

 

Page 52



 
2
1

B
u
si
n
es
s 
M
an

ag
er
  

S
im

o
n
 W

ilk
es
 

B
u
si
n
es
s 
M
an

ag
er
 

M
ar
k 
K
ay
 

H
ea
d
 o
f 
R
eg

u
la
to
ry
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

S
te
ve
 J
o
rd
en

 
 

P
A
 

S
tr
at
eg

ic
 S
er
vi
ce
s 

M
an

ag
er
 

A
n
it
a 
F
le
tc
h
er
 

 

•
 

E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l 

P
er
m
itt
in
g 

•
 

S
pe
ci
al
is
t M

et
ro
lo
gy
 

•
 

P
et
ro
le
um

 a
nd
 

E
xp
lo
si
ve
s 

•
 

E
nv
iro
nm

en
ta
l I
ss
ue
s 

re
 P
ac
ka
gi
ng
/ 

La
be
lli
ng
 

•
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 W

el
lb
ei
ng
 

•
 

T
S
 r
el
at
ed
 w
or
k 
in
 

H
om

e 
A
ut
ho
rit
y/
 

P
rim

ar
y 
A
ut
ho
rit
y/
 

M
an
uf
ac
tu
re
rs
 &
 

Im
po
rt
er
s 

•
 

IP
P
C
 

•
 

F
oo
d 
H
yg
ie
ne
 in
 F
oo
d 

m
an
uf
ac
tu
re
rs
 

•
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

C
on
su
lta
tio
ns
 

C
en

tr
al
 O
p
er
at
io
n
s 

T
ea
m
 M
an

ag
er
 

A
n
d
y 
F
er
g
u
so

n
 

 

•
 

A
ni
m
al
 H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 

W
el
fa
re
 

•
 

D
og
 W

ar
de
n 

•
 

P
es
ts
 

•
 

E
nf
or
ce
m
en
t o
f 

Li
ce
ns
in
g 

C
on
di
tio
ns
 fo
r 

A
ni
m
al
 B
us
in
es
se
s 

•
 

A
ni
m
al
 B
y-
P
ro
du
ct
s 

•
 

C
on
ta
m
in
at
ed
 L
an
d 

•
 

A
ir 
Q
ua
lit
y 

•
 

P
riv
at
e 
W
at
er
 

S
up
pl
ie
s 

•
 

P
la
nn
in
g 

C
on
su
lta
tio
ns
 

       

     

G
eo

g
ra
p
h
ic
 S
er
vi
ce
 M
an

ag
er
 

(E
as
t)
 

D
av
id
 M
el
lo
rs
  

 R
et
ai
l l
ev
el
 w
or
k 
on
: 

•
 

F
oo
d 
(S
af
et
y 
&
 

C
om

po
si
tio
n)
 

•
 

F
ai
r 
T
ra
di
ng
 

•
 

P
ro
du
ct
 S
af
et
y 

•
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y 

•
 

In
fe
ct
io
us
 D
is
ea
se
s 

•
 

F
oo
d 
P
oi
so
ni
ng
 

•
 

A
cc
id
en
t I
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 

•
 

U
nd
er
ag
e 
 S
al
es
 

•
 

D
oo
rs
te
p 
C
rim

e 

•
 

In
te
rn
et
 C
rim

e 

•
 

In
fo
rm

al
 E
co
no
m
y 

•
 

C
ou
nt
er
fe
iti
ng
 a
nd
 S
ca
m
s 

•
 

R
og
ue
 T
ra
di
ng
 

•
 

S
tr
ee
t T

ra
di
ng
 

•
 

P
riv
at
e 
W
at
er
 S
up
pl
ie
s 

•
 

N
ui
sa
nc
es
 

•
 

C
on
su
m
er
 A
dv
ic
e 

•
 

R
ed
re
ss
 F
ac
ili
ta
tio
n 

•
 

C
iv
il 
E
nf
or
ce
m
en
t 

•
 

D
ra
in
ag
e,
 E
tc
 

•
 

P
ub
lic
 

B
ur
ia
ls
/E
xh
um

at
io
ns
 

•
 

A
lc
oh
ol
 L
ic
en
si
ng
 

en
fo
rc
em

en
t 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 T
ea
m
 M
an

ag
er
 

S
u
sa
n
 G
ar
ra
tt
 

 A
ll 
Li
ce
ns
in
g 
F
un
ct
io
ns
 

ot
he
r 
th
an
 E
nf
or
ce
m
en
t 

(I
nc
lu
di
ng
 P
et
ro
le
um

 a
nd
 

E
xp
lo
si
ve
s)
 

 H
ac
kn
ey
 &
 P
riv
at
e 
H
ire
 

lic
en
si
ng
 e
nf
or
ce
m
en
t 

-
 

H
U
B
 L
ia
is
on
 

-
 

Q
ua
lit
y 
A
ss
ur
an
ce
 

-
 

B
us
in
es
s 

T
ra
ns
fo
rm

at
io
n 

-
 

P
ol
ic
y 
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

-
 

IT
 S
up
po
rt
 &
 D
at
a 

C
on
tr
ol
 

-
 

P
er
fo
rm

an
ce
 

M
on
ito
rin
g 

-
 

T
ra
in
in
g 
an
d 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t 

-
 

C
om

m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 

-
 

Le
ga
l A

dm
in
 

-
 

A
dm

in
is
tr
at
iv
e 
S
up
po
rt
 

-
 

F
in
an
ce
/G
ra
nt
s 

-
 

B
us
in
es
s 
C
on
tin
ui
ty
 

-
 

T
ra
de
r 
R
eg
is
te
r 

-
 

In
te
ll 
M
on
ito
rin
g 

-
 

P
ub
lic
 

In
fo
rm

at
io
n/
R
eg
is
te
rs
 

-
 

R
is
k 
M
an
ag
em

en
t 

G
eo

g
ra
p
h
ic
 S
er
vi
ce
 M
an

ag
er
 

(W
es
t)
 

C
h
ri
s 
P
h
ill
ip
s 

 R
et
ai
l l
ev
el
 w
or
k 
on
: 

•
 

F
oo
d 
(S
af
et
y 
&
 

C
om

po
si
tio
n)
 

•
 

F
ai
r 
T
ra
di
ng
 

•
 

P
ro
du
ct
 S
af
et
y 

•
 

H
ea
lth
 a
nd
 S
af
et
y 

•
 

In
fe
ct
io
us
 D
is
ea
se
s 

•
 

F
oo
d 
P
oi
so
ni
ng
 

•
 

A
cc
id
en
t I
nv
es
tig
at
io
n 

•
 

U
nd
er
ag
e 
 S
al
es
 

•
 

D
oo
rs
te
p 
C
rim

e 

•
 

In
te
rn
et
 C
rim

e 

•
 

In
fo
rm

al
 E
co
no
m
y 

•
 

C
ou
nt
er
fe
iti
ng
 a
nd
 S
ca
m
s 

•
 

R
og
ue
 T
ra
di
ng
 

•
 

S
tr
ee
t T

ra
di
ng
 

•
 

P
riv
at
e 
W
at
er
 S
up
pl
ie
s 

•
 

N
ui
sa
nc
es
 

•
 

C
on
su
m
er
 A
dv
ic
e 

•
 

R
ed
re
ss
 F
ac
ili
ta
tio
n 

•
 

C
iv
il 
E
nf
or
ce
m
en
t 

•
 

D
ra
in
ag
e,
 E
tc
 

•
 

P
ub
lic
 

B
ur
ia
ls
/E
xh
um

at
io
ns
 

•
 

A
lc
oh
ol
 L
ic
en
si
ng
 

en
fo
rc
em

en
t 

A
p
p
en

d
ix
 1
 –
C
u
rr
en

t 
S
tr
u
ct
u
re
 

Page 53



A
p
p
en

d
ix
 2
 –
  W

R
S
 R
is
k 
R
eg

is
te
r 

 

R
is
k 
D
es
cr
ip
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
se
q
u
en

ce
s 

W
h
en

 is
 t
h
is
 

lik
el
y 
to
 

h
ap

p
en

 

C
u
rr
en

t 
P
o
si
ti
o
n
 

C
o
n
tr
o
l m

ea
su

re
s 

L
ik
el
ih
o
o
d
 

Im
p
ac
t 

M
at
ri
x 

R
A
G
 

S
ta
tu
s 

 L
os
s 
of
 D
at
a 
th
ro
ug
h 
IT
 fa
ilu
re
s 

D
is
ru
pt
io
n 
to
 S
er
vi
ce
 P
ro
vi
si
on
. 

In
ab
ili
ty
 to
 p
ro
du
ce
 r
ec
or
ds
 a
nd
 

da
ta
. 

 O
n-
go
in
g 

 L
ow

 
 H
ig
h 

G
re
en

 
 

 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
 IC

T
 h
av
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 
p
ro
ce
ss
es
 a
nd
 

bu
si
ne
ss
 c
on
tin
ui
ty
 p
la
ns
 in
 p
la
ce
. 

D
el
ay
s 
in
 p
ro
cu
rin
g 
an
d 

im
pl
em

en
tin
g 
ne
w
 s
in
gl
e 
W
R
S
 IT

 
S
ys
te
m
 

  

Im
pa
ct
 o
n 
w
or
k 
pl
an
ni
ng
. 

 A
dd
iti
on
al
 ti
m
e 
ta
ke
n 
in
 c
ro
ss
 

re
fe
re
nc
in
g 
da
ta
 s
et
s 
an
d 
re
po
rt
in
g 

fr
om

 7
 d
iff
er
en
t s
ys
te
m
s.
  

 S
ep
t 2
01
3 

on
w
ar
ds
 

 L
ow

 
 H
ig
h 

A
m
b
er
 

S
ys
te
m
 im

pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
is
 w
el
l u
n
de
rw
ay
 u
nd
er
 th
e 

su
pe
rv
is
io
n 
of
 a
 P
ro
je
ct
 B
oa
rd
 a
n
d 
is
 c
ur
re
nt
ly
 o
n 

ta
rg
et
. T

he
re
 h
av
e 
be
en
 s
ig
ni
fic
an
t i
ss
ue
s 
w
ith
 d
at
a 

tr
an
sf
er
 b
ut
 s
o 
fa
r 
th
es
e 
ha
ve
 b
ee
n 
ov
er
co
m
e 
by
 o
ur
 

de
di
ca
te
d 
im
pl
em

en
ta
tio
n 
te
am

 a
nd
 w
e 
re
m
ai
n 
on
 

ta
rg
et
. 

E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 
ef
fic
ie
nt
 B
u
si
ne
ss
 

C
on
tin
ui
ty
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 in
 p
la
ce
 

D
is
ru
pt
io
n 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 if
 e
.g
. M

aj
or
 

P
ow

er
 fa
ilu
re
s 
or
 o
th
er
 r
ea
so
ns
 t
ha
t 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 W

ya
tt 
H
ou
se
 is
 n
ot
 

po
ss
ib
le
. 

O
n-
go
in
g 

V
er
y 
Lo
w
 

M
ed
iu
m
 

G
re
en

 
S
ta
ff 
ar
e 
eq
ui
pp
ed
 fo
r 
m
ob
ile
/h
o
m
e 
w
or
ki
ng
. 

 T
ou
ch
do
w
n 
st
at
io
ns
 a
va
ila
b
le
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
 c
ou
nc
il 

lo
ca
tio
ns
. 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
ou
r 
ca
pa
ci
ty
 to
 a
ch
ie
ve
 

se
rv
ic
e 
de
liv
er
y 

D
is
ru
pt
io
n 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 e
.g
 M
aj
or
 s
ta
ff 

si
ck
ne
ss
 (
e.
g.
 fl
u 
pa
nd
em

ic
) 
or
 

U
na
bl
e 
to
 r
ec
ru
it 
or
 r
et
ai
n 
su
ita
bl
y 

qu
al
ifi
ed
 s
ta
ff.
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

Lo
w
 

M
ed
iu
m
 

G
re
en

 
S
er
vi
ce
 p
rio
rit
ie
s 
to
 b
e 
m
an
ag
ed
 a
nd
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

in
fo
rm

ed
 o
f a
ny
 c
ha
ng
es
 to
 s
er
vi
ce
. 

 C
on
su
lta
nt
s 
ar
e 
av
ai
la
bl
e 
to
 p
ro
vi
de
 s
ho
rt
 te
rm

 c
ov
er
 

an
d 
th
is
 h
as
 w
or
ke
d 
w
el
l w

he
re
 w
e 
ha
ve
 u
se
d 
th
em

 to
 

co
ve
r 
pe
ak
 d
em

an
d 
pe
rio
ds
. 

 W
e 
ar
e 
ac
tiv
e 
w
ith
in
 r
eg
io
na
l a
nd
 s
ub
 r
eg
io
na
l g
ro
up
s 

to
 s
ha
re
 r
es
ou
rc
es
 if
 r
eq
ui
re
d.
E
ff
ec
tiv
e 
tr
ai
ni
ng
 a
nd
 

de
ve
lo
pm

en
t p
ro
ce
ss
es
 in
 p
la
ce
 t
o 
en
su
re
 r
ec
ru
itm

en
t 

an
d 
re
te
nt
io
n 
of
 s
ta
ff.
 

 R
eg
ul
ar
 in
ve
nt
or
y 
an
d 
m
ai
nt
en
an
ce
 o
f e
qu
ip
m
en
t. 
In
 

fu
tu
re
 b
ud
ge
t f
or
 r
ep
la
ce
 m
ay
 b
e 
an
 is
su
e 
bu
t w

ou
ld
 

be
 a
 r
el
at
iv
el
y 
sm

al
l a
m
ou
nt
 fo
r 
p
ar
tn
er
s 
to
 s
ha
re
. 

 P
es
t a
nd
 D
og
 C
on
tr
ol
 c
on
tr
ac
to
rs
 

ce
as
e 
op
er
at
io
ns
. 

D
is
ru
pt
io
n 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
. 

N
eg
at
iv
e 
m
ed
ia
 c
ov
er
ag
e.
 

In
cr
ea
se
d 
pu
bl
ic
 h
ea
lth
 r
is
ks
 

 O
n-
go
in
g 

 L
ow

 
 H
ig
h 

G
re
en

 
 N
ew

 fr
am

ew
or
k 
co
nt
ra
ct
 h
as
 4
 s
up
pl
ie
rs
 s
o 
th
e 
lo
ss
 

of
 o
ne
 a
llo
w
s 
w
or
k 
to
 b
e 
m
ov
ed
 t
o 
th
e 
ot
he
r 
3.
 

E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
an
d 
ef
fic
ie
nt
 c
on
tr
ac
t 

ar
ra
ng
em

en
t f
or
 d
og
 c
on
tr
ol
 

 D
is
ru
pt
io
n 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 if
 n
o 
ke
nn
el
s 

av
ai
la
bl
e.
 N
eg
at
iv
e 
m
ed
ia
 c
ov
er
a
ge
. 

In
cr
ea
se
d 
pu
bl
ic
 h
ea
lth
 r
is
ks
 

 O
n-
go
in
g 

 L
ow

 
 H
ig
h 

A
m
b
er
 

 B
ud
ge
t a
va
ila
bl
e 
to
 u
se
 te
m
po
ra
ry
 s
ta
ff 
or
 b
uy
 in
 u
se
 

of
 o
th
er
 p
riv
at
e 
se
ct
or
 p
ro
vi
de
rs
 in
 s
ho
rt
 te
rm

. 
N
ew

 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 a
re
 in
 p
la
ce
 a
nd
 W

ar
de
n 
S
er
vi
ce
 n
ow

 
fu
lly
 in
-h
ou
se
. 

Page 54



 
2
3

 

 R
ob
us
t a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 in
 p
la
ce
 in
 

re
la
tio
n 
to
 o
bt
ai
ni
ng
 le
ga
l a
dv
ic
e 

an
d 
m
on
ito
rin
g 
le
gi
sl
at
iv
e 

ch
an
ge
s.
  

 N
eg
at
iv
e 
m
ed
ia
 c
ov
er
ag
e 
th
ro
ug
h 

lo
ss
 o
f m

aj
or
 c
as
e.
 

 Lo
ss
 o
f c
on
fid
en
ce
 in
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 

 F
in
an
ci
al
 lo
ss
 

 O
n-
go
in
g 

 L
ow

 
 M
ed
iu
m
 

G
re
en

 
U
se
 o
f c
om

pe
te
nt
 s
ta
ff 
to
 u
nd
er
ta
ke
 in
ve
st
ig
at
io
ns
. 

 P
ro
pe
r 
sc
he
m
e 
of
 d
el
eg
at
io
n 
to
 e
ns
ur
e 
au
th
or
ity
 to
 

ta
ke
 d
ec
is
io
ns
 is
 c
le
ar
 a
nd
 m
on
ito
r 
fo
r 
le
gi
sl
at
iv
e 

ch
an
ge
s.
 

 C
le
ar
 e
nf
or
ce
m
en
t p
ol
ic
y 
in
 p
la
ce
 &
 e
ns
ur
e 

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 le
ga
l p
ro
ce
du
re
s.
 

 E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
lia
is
on
 w
ith
 p
ar
tn
er
 c
ou
n
ci
ls
 le
ga
l s
er
vi
ce
s 

de
pa
rt
m
en
ts
. 

 R
ob
us
t a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 in
 p
la
ce
 to
 

re
sp
on
d 
to
 a
n 
en
vi
ro
nm

en
ta
l 

in
ci
de
nt
/d
is
as
te
r 

N
eg
at
iv
e 
m
ed
ia
 c
ov
er
ag
e 
if 
m
aj
or
 

in
fe
ct
io
us
 d
is
ea
se
 in
ci
de
nt
 o
r 
an
im
al
 

di
se
as
e 
ou
tb
re
ak
 n
ot
 h
an
dl
ed
 w
el
l. 

 Im
pa
ct
 o
n 
ot
he
r 
se
rv
ic
e 
ar
ea
s.
 

 W
el
l-b
ei
ng
 o
f s
ta
ff.
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

 L
ow

 
 H
ig
h 

A
m
b
er
 

P
ro
ce
ss
es
 fo
r 
re
sp
on
se
 to
 in
ci
de
nt
s 
cl
ea
r.
 

 E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
lia
is
on
 w
ith
 g
o
ve
rn
m
en
t d
ep
ar
tm
en
ts
 a
nd
 

ag
en
ci
es
. 

 M
an
ag
er
s 
to
 d
ep
lo
y 
st
af
f t
o 
su
pp
or
t o
th
er
 te
am

s.
 

 M
ut
ua
l a
id
 a
rr
an
ge
m
en
ts
 w
ith
 n
ei
gh
bo
ur
s 
in
 p
la
ce
 fo
r 

A
ni
m
al
 d
is
ea
se
 o
ut
br
ea
ks
 

 F
ai
lu
re
 to
 m
ai
nt
ai
n 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 

bu
dg
et
ar
y 
co
nt
ro
l 

 F
in
an
ci
al
 lo
ss
 

 In
ab
ili
ty
 to
 p
ay
 s
ta
ff/
co
nt
ra
ct
or
s 

 R
ep
ut
at
io
na
l d
am

ag
e
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

 L
ow

 
 H
ig
h
 

G
re
en

 
 E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
de
le
ga
tio
n 
of
 fi
na
nc
ia
l d
ec
is
io
ns
. 

 D
ev
ol
ut
io
n 
of
 c
os
t c
en
tr
es
 to
 m
an
ag
er
s.
 

 M
on
th
ly
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
w
ith
in
 W

R
S
. 

 Q
ua
rt
er
ly
 r
ep
or
tin
g 
to
 m
an
ag
em

en
t b
oa
rd
 a
nd
 J
oi
nt
 

C
om

m
itt
ee
 

 C
om

pl
ia
nc
e 
w
ith
 B
ro
m
sg
ro
ve
's
 fi
na
nc
ia
l p
ro
ce
du
re
s.
 

C
rit
ic
is
m
 o
r 
in
te
rv
en
tio
n 
by
 

G
ov
er
nm

en
t i
f t
he
y 
ar
e 
un
ha
pp
y 

w
ith
 s
er
vi
ce
 p
ro
vi
si
o
n.
 

R
ep
ut
at
io
na
l d
am

ag
e.
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

V
er
y 
lo
w
 

lo
w
 

G
re
en

 
K
ee
p 
ke
y 
go
ve
rn
m
en
t s
ta
ke
ho
ld
e
rs
 a
pp
ra
is
ed
 o
f W

R
S
 

pl
an
s 
an
d 
bu
si
ne
ss
 tr
an
sf
or
m
at
io
n 
an
d 
ad
dr
es
s 
an
y 

co
nc
er
ns
 a
t a
n 
ea
rly
 s
ta
ge
. 

A
ch
ie
ve
 s
ta
b
le
 le
ve
ls
 o
f 

co
nt
rib
ut
io
n 
fr
om

 p
ar
tn
er
 

au
th
or
iti
es
 

Le
ve
l o
f s
up
po
rt
 fr
om

 c
on
st
itu
en
t 

au
th
or
iti
es
 fo
r 
R
eg
ul
at
or
y 
S
er
vi
ce
s 

w
ill
 v
ar
y 
du
e 
to
 v
ar
ia
tio
n
s 
in
 in
co
m
e 

O
n-
go
in
g 

Lo
w
 

H
ig
h 

A
m
b
er
 

  

O
k 
if 
pa
rt
ne
rs
 c
on
fo
rm

 w
ith
 le
ga
l a
gr
ee
m
en
t o
n 

bu
dg
et
ar
y 
co
st
 

 H
os
t p
ro
vi
de
s 
hi
gh
 q
ua
lit
y 
su
pp
or
t 

se
rv
ic
es
 to
 e
ns
ur
e 
ef
fe
ct
iv
e 

se
rv
ic
e 
pr
ov
is
io
n
 

 C
os
t o
f h
os
tin
g 
m
ay
 in
cr
ea
se
 a
nd
 

le
ve
l o
f s
up
po
rt
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
m
ay
 n
ot
 b
e 

m
et
 r
es
ul
tin
g 
in
 th
e 
se
rv
ic
e 

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
 b
ei
ng
 a
ffe
ct
ed
. 

F
ai
lu
re
 in
 h
os
t s
up
po
rt
 

 

 O
n-
go
in
g 

 M
ed
iu
m
 

 M
ed
iu
m
 

A
m
b
er
 

 
 

 E
ns
ur
e 
M
an
ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd
 in
fo
rm

ed
 o
f s
ig
ni
fic
an
t 

fa
ili
ng
s 

M
ai
nt
ai
n 
on
go
in
g 
lia
is
on
 w
ith
 h
os
t 
au
th
or
ity
 

H
os
t a
ut
ho
rit
y 
to
 d
ea
l w

ith
 is
su
es
 in
 a
 ti
m
el
y 
fa
sh
io
n
 

Page 55



 
2
4

M
in
im
is
e 
an
y 
pe
rc
ei
ve
d 
or
 r
ea
l 

de
m
oc
ra
tic
 d
ef
ic
it 

M
em

be
rs
 a
nd
 c
iti
ze
ns
 m
ay
 p
er
ce
iv
e 

th
at
 th
e 
jo
in
t s
er
vi
ce
 in
 n
ot
 a
s 
go
o
d 

as
 th
e 
pr
ev
io
us
 o
ne
. 

 

O
n-
go
in
g 

Lo
w
 

M
ed
iu
m
 

G
re
en

 
E
ns
ur
e 
go
od
 c
om

m
un
ic
at
io
ns
 b
a
ck
 to
 th
e 
co
ns
tit
ue
nt
 

au
th
or
iti
es
 

 E
ns
ur
e 
al
l p
ub
lic
ity
 p
us
he
s 
th
e 
jo
in
t n
at
ur
e 
of
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

 M
ai
nt
ai
ni
ng
 s
om

e 
ki
nd
 o
f  
"l
o
ca
lis
m
" 
in
 th
e 
op
er
at
io
na
l 

de
liv
er
y 

E
ffe
ct
iv
e 
co
m
m
un
ic
at
io
n 
w
ith
 

in
te
rn
al
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

S
om

e 
el
em

en
ts
 o
f t
he
 n
ew

 s
er
vi
ce
 

ha
ve
 k
ey
 li
nk
s 
ba
ck
 to
 s
er
vi
ce
s 

w
ith
in
 th
e 
au
th
or
iti
es
 e
.g
. 
P
la
nn
in
g.
  

T
he
se
 c
an
no
t b
e 
lo
st
 o
th
er
w
is
e 

pr
oc
es
se
s 
w
ill
 n
ot
 w
or
k 
pr
op
er
ly
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

Lo
w
 

Lo
w
 

G
re
en

 
O
ng
oi
ng
 li
ai
so
n 
w
ith
 r
el
ev
an
t p
ar
ts
 in
 p
ar
tn
er
 c
ou
nc
ils
 

(e
g 
P
la
nn
in
g)
 

D
ev
el
op
m
en
t w

he
re
 p
os
si
b
le
 o
f 

ha
rm

on
is
ed
 a
pp
ro
ac
h 
to
 s
er
vi
ce
 

de
liv
er
y 
by
 p
ar
tn
er
s 

D
iff
er
en
t c
on
di
tio
ns
 in
 d
iff
er
en
t 

ar
ea
s,
 B
us
in
es
s 
cu
st
om

er
s 

op
er
at
in
g 
in
 m
or
e 
th
an
 o
ne
 a
re
a 

fa
ce
 d
iff
er
en
t r
eq
ui
re
m
en
ts
 fr
om

 th
e 

sa
m
e 
se
rv
ic
e.
 O
ne
 s
ys
te
m
 s
ho
ul
d 

cr
ea
te
 s
ta
nd
ar
d 
fe
es
 

O
n-
go
in
g 

 
 

 
G
ra
du
al
ly
 m
ov
e 
to
w
ar
ds
 a
 m
or
e 
st
an
da
rd
is
ed
 

ap
pr
oa
ch
 w
ith
in
 th
e 
de
m
an
ds
 o
f i
nd
iv
id
ua
l l
oc
al
 

au
th
or
iti
es
 

 H
av
e 
cl
ea
r 
sc
rip
tin
g 
fo
r 
C
us
to
m
er
 S
er
vi
ce
 s
ta
ff 
so
 th
at
 

th
ey
 k
no
w
 th
e 
di
ffe
re
nt
 p
ro
vi
si
on
s 
in
 e
ac
h 
di
st
ric
t 

Page 56



 25 

Appendix 3 
Performance Reporting Template 2013/14 

 

Measure Reported Comments/queries 

1. Business satisfaction  

.  

 

quarterly To be based on standard questionnaire sent to businesses with which WRS 
has had contact that quarter. 

2. Client Satisfaction  quarterly To be based on standard questionnaire sent to customers with whom WRS 
has had contact that quarter. 

3. Improved Consumer Confidence  

 

quarterly To be based on standard questionnaire that contains a specific question about 
whether consumer feel better informed and able to deal with their own 
problems after their contact with WRS 

4. No. of business broadly compliant (of 
those inspected during the period)  

quarterly At this stage all 7 council can only access this data for food – not other subject 
areas. 

We can ensure that if Management Board and Joint Committee feel this is a 
key measure that it is available for all areas for any new IT system that is 
procured for WRS. 

5. No. of improving food premises          annually  Will use %age 0,1,2 star premises under FHRS so should see improvements 

6. Percentage of premises selling 
alcohol to children  

 

quarterly This will be reported at the end of each quarter where there has been a test 
purchasing exercise, as these do not happen every quarter. 

7. No. noise complaints received per 
1000 population  

quarterly Self explanatory. 

8. cost of environmental health function 
per head of population 

quarterly This will be based on the service plan/budget for 2011/2012. 

9. cost of trading standards function per 
head of population 

Quarterly This will be based on the service plan/budget for 2011/2012. 

10. % of applicants for driver licences 
rejected as not fit and proper 

Annual To show service ensuring only fit people are licensed 

11. % of vehicles found to be defective 
whilst in service 

Annual To show we are making the trade ensure safety of travelling public 

12. Staff sickness absence at public 
sector average or better 

Quarterly Hope to see falling trend over time getting below the Host’s target. 

13. Air quality action plans put in place 
where necessary to support delivery of 
improvement 

Annual Since a county wide plan is out for consultation this may be superfluous by the 
end of the year 

14. Review of register of compliments 
and complaints 

Annual Report both complaints and complements 

 

This will also be a list of short paragraphs with outcomes of key projects, legal cases etc that are of interest to the board/committee. 
This will include information on the assessments for contaminated land sites. 

Page 57



 
2
6

A
p
p
en

d
ix
 4
: 
D
et
ai
le
d
 o
u
tr
u
n
 f
o
r 
R
eg

u
la
to
ry
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
20
11
/1
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 R
e
v
e
n
u
e
 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 -
 1
2
 M
o
n
th
s
 t
o
 e
n
d
 o
f 
M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

  
 

 
S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

F
u
ll
 y
e
a
r 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 
1
2
 

M
th
s
 M
a
r 
1
3
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
  

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

to
 M
a
r 
1
3
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 

- 
V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

P
ro
je
c
te
d
 

o
u
tt
u
rn
  

S
u
m
m
a
ry
 -
 

P
ro
je
c
te
d
 

O
u
tt
u
rn
 

V
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

£
'0
0
0
 

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

 
 

S
a
la
ry
 

4
,1
2
4
  

4
,1
2
4
  

3
,7
9
1
  

-3
3
3
  

3
,7
9
1
  

-3
3
3
  

 
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 S
ta
ff
 

3
  

3
  

8
6
  

8
4
  

8
6
  

8
4
  

R
e
c
ru
it
m
e
n
t 

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

S
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
  

2
  

2
  

9
  

7
  

9
  

7
  

T
ra
in
in
g
 

2
  

2
  

2
  

-0
  

2
  

-0
  

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

1
9
  

1
9
  

1
7
  

-2
  

1
7
  

-2
  

 
S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

4
,1
5
0
  

4
,1
5
0
  

3
,9
0
5
  

-2
4
5
  

3
,9
0
5
  

-2
4
5
  

P
re
m
is
e
s
 

 
 

R
e
n
t 

8
8
  

8
8
  

7
0
  

-1
8
  

7
0
  

-1
8
  

R
o
o
m
 H
ir
e
 

3
  

3
  

1
  

-2
  

1
  

-2
  

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
s
 

3
5
  

3
5
  

3
4
  

-1
  

3
4
  

-1
  

C
le
a
n
in
g
 

1
0
  

1
0
  

7
  

-3
  

7
  

-3
  

R
e
p
a
ir
s
 &
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

4
  

4
  

1
  

-3
  

1
  

-3
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

1
7
  

1
7
  

9
  

-8
  

9
  

-8
  

S
e
c
u
re
 S
to
ra
g
e
 

1
7
  

1
7
  

1
7
  

0
  

1
7
  

0
  

U
ti
lit
ie
s
 

1
8
  

1
8
  

7
  

-1
1
  

7
  

-1
1
  

W
a
te
r 
&
 S
e
w
e
ra
g
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

2
  

2
  

2
  

-0
  

2
  

-0
  

 
S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
P
re
m
is
e
s
 

1
9
4
  

1
9
4
  

1
4
8
  

-4
5
  

1
4
8
  

-4
5
  

    

Page 58



 
2
7

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

 
V
e
h
ic
le
 H
ir
e
 

1
2
  

1
2
  

1
0
  

-2
  

1
0
  

-2
  

V
e
h
ic
le
 F
u
e
l 
 

7
  

7
  

7
  

-0
  

7
  

-0
  

T
y
re
s
 

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

R
o
a
d
 F
u
n
d
 T
a
x
 

1
  

1
  

1
  

-0
  

1
  

-0
  

V
e
h
ic
le
 I
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

3
  

3
  

4
  

0
  

4
  

0
  

V
e
h
ic
le
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

2
  

2
  

2
  

0
  

2
  

0
  

C
a
r 
L
e
a
s
e
 

7
  

7
  

4
  

-3
  

4
  

-3
  

 
 

C
a
r 
A
llo
w
a
n
c
e
s
 

1
8
3
  

1
8
3
  

1
5
0
  

-3
3
  

1
5
0
  

-3
3
  

P
u
b
lic
 T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

 
S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

2
1
5
  

2
1
5
  

1
7
7
  

-3
8
  

1
7
7
  

-3
8
  

S
u
p
p
li
e
s
 a
n
d
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 
 

F
u
rn
it
u
re
 &
 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 

4
6
  

4
6
  

6
9
  

2
3
  

6
9
  

2
3
  

 
 

T
e
s
t 
P
u
rc
h
a
s
e
s
 

1
2
  

1
2
  

1
  

-1
1
  

1
  

-1
1
  

C
lo
th
e
s
, 
u
n
if
o
rm

s
 a
n
d
 l
a
u
n
d
ry
 

5
  

5
  

2
  

-3
  

2
  

-3
  

P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 &
 P
h
o
to
c
o
p
y
in
g
  

2
7
  

2
7
  

3
0
  

3
  

3
0
  

3
  

C
R
B
 C
h
e
c
k
s
 (
ta
x
i)
 

2
8
  

2
8
  

2
9
  

1
  

2
9
  

1
  

P
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
0
  

1
0
  

1
0
  

1
  

1
0
  

1
  

P
o
s
ta
g
e
  

1
2
  

1
2
  

9
  

-3
  

9
  

-3
  

 
 

IC
T
 

6
9
  

6
9
  

1
0
4
  

3
5
  

1
0
4
  

3
5
  

L
e
g
a
l 
C
o
s
ts
 

7
  

7
  

1
  

-6
  

1
  

-6
  

T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
s
 

4
1
  

4
1
  

3
3
  

-8
  

3
3
  

-8
  

 
 

T
ra
in
in
g
 &
 S
e
m
in
a
rs
 

6
0
  

6
0
  

4
2
  

-1
8
  

4
2
  

-1
8
  

C
a
r 
P
a
rk
in
g
 &
 S
u
b
s
is
te
n
c
e
 

0
  

0
  

1
  

1
  

1
  

1
  

In
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

2
0
  

2
0
  

3
3
  

1
3
  

3
3
  

1
3
  

M
is
c
e
lla
n
e
o
u
s
 E
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
 

1
  

1
  

2
  

1
  

2
  

1
  

T
h
ir
d
 P
a
rt
y
 P
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 

 

  
S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 R
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 

2
5
0
  

2
5
0
  

2
5
0
  

0
  

2
5
0
  

0
  

 
 

  
C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 H
u
b
 

5
0
  

5
0
  

5
0
  

0
  

5
0
  

0
  

 
 

  
A
u
d
it
 

1
0
  

1
0
  

5
  

-5
  

5
  

-5
  

 
S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
S
u
p
p
li
e
s
 &
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

6
4
7
  

6
4
7
  

6
7
0
  

2
2
  

6
7
0
  

2
2
  

  

Page 59



 
2
8

C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

D
o
g
 W

a
rd
e
n
  

1
4
5
  

1
4
5
  

1
4
0
  

-5
  

1
4
0
  

-5
  

 
 

P
e
s
t 
C
o
n
tr
o
l 

4
0
  

4
0
  

5
5
  

1
5
  

5
5
  

1
5
  

A
n
a
ly
ti
c
a
l 
S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 -
 T
r 
S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

9
5
  

9
5
  

9
5
  

0
  

9
5
  

0
  

T
ra
d
in
g
 S
ta
n
d
a
rd
s
 

8
  

8
  

5
  

-3
  

5
  

-3
  

L
ic
e
n
s
in
g
  

1
4
  

1
4
  

1
0
  

-4
  

1
0
  

-4
  

 
 

O
th
e
r 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
/c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 

1
8
  

1
8
  

1
5
  

-3
  

1
5
  

-3
  

W
a
te
r 
S
a
fe
ty
 

5
  

5
  

8
  

3
  

8
  

3
  

F
o
o
d
 S
a
fe
ty
 

8
  

8
  

0
  

-7
  

0
  

-7
  

H
e
a
lt
h
 &
 S
a
fe
ty
 

2
  

2
  

4
  

3
  

4
  

3
  

 
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
P
ro
te
c
ti
o
n
 

3
3
  

3
3
  

6
6
  

3
3
  

6
6
  

3
3
  

T
a
x
i 
T
e
s
ts
 

3
1
  

3
1
  

3
4
  

3
  

3
4
  

3
  

G
ra
n
ts
 /
 S
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

1
4
  

1
4
  

1
3
  

-1
  

1
3
  

-1
  

A
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
  

1
1
  

1
1
  

2
  

-8
  

2
  

-8
  

P
u
b
lic
it
y
 &
 P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
s
 

2
  

2
  

0
  

-2
  

0
  

-2
  

C
R
B
 C
h
e
c
k
s
 

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

0
  

 
S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 

4
2
3
  

4
2
3
  

4
4
8
  

2
5
  

4
4
8
  

2
5
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
a
r 
L
e
a
s
e
 C
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 /
 T
ra
in
in
g
 

C
o
u
rs
e
s
 /
 B
e
re
a
v
e
m
e
n
t 
/ 
W
o
rk
s
 i
n
 

D
e
fa
u
lt
 /
 S
e
w
e
r 
B
a
it
in
g
 e
tc
 

-3
  

-3
  

-6
1
  

-5
9
  

-6
1
  

-5
9
  

 
S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 

-3
  

-3
  

-6
1
  

-5
9
  

-6
1
  

-5
9
  

 
T
o
ta
l

l 
5
,6
2
6
  

5
,6
2
6
  

5
,2
8
6
  

-3
4
0
  

5
,2
8
6
  

-3
4
0
  

 
 

 
T
ra
in
in
g
 R
e
s
e
rv
e
 F
ro
m
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
  

3
5
  

3
5
  

2
6
  

-9
  

2
6
  

-9
  

 
S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 

3
5
  

3
5
  

2
6
  

-9
  

2
6
  

-9
  

 
 

 
  

  
  

  
  

  

T
o
ta
l 

 
5
,6
6
1
  

5
,6
6
1
  

5
,3
1
2
  

-3
4
9
  

5
,3
1
2
  

-3
4
9
  

Page 60



 
2
9

P
e
rc
e
n
ta
g
e
 s
a
v
in
g
 f
ro
m
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
£
7
,1
8
1
 i
n
 2
0
1
0
-1
1
 2
6
.0
2
%
 

 1
2
-1
3
 U
n
d
e
rs
p
e
n
d
 r
e
fu
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 

£
'0
0
0
 

%
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

B
ro
m
s
g
ro
v
e
 

3
9
  

1
1
.0
5
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

M
a
lv
e
rn
 H
ill
s
 

3
3
  

9
.5
8
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

R
e
d
d
it
c
h
 

3
9
  

1
1
.3
1
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

W
o
rc
s
 C
it
y
 

3
9
  

1
1
.1
1
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

W
y
c
h
a
v
o
n
 

5
8
  

1
6
.5
5
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

W
y
re
 F
o
re
s
t 

3
8
  

1
0
.8
2
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

W
o
rc
s
 C
o
u
n
ty
 

1
0
3
  

2
9
.5
8
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

T
o
ta
l 
R
e
fu
n
d
 

3
4
9
  

1
0
0
.0
0
  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 61



 
3
0

A
p
p
e
n
d
ix
 5
: 

W
R
S
 B
U
D
G
E
T
 2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
 -
 2
0
1
4
/2
0
1
5
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
c
c
o
u
n
t 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
 

B
u
d
g
e
t 

2
0
1
2
/2
0
1
3
  

 
B
u
d
g
e
t 

2
0
1
3
/2
0
1
4
  

 
B
u
d
g
e
t 

2
0
1
4
/2
0
1
5
  

 
£
'0
0
0
 

 
£
'0
0
0
 

 
£
'0
0
0
 

E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

 
 

 
 

 

 M
o
n
th
ly
 s
a
la
ri
e
s
  

4
,1
2
3
 
 

4
,1
2
3
 
 

4
,1
2
3
 

 A
g
e
n
c
y
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 

3
 
 

3
 
 

3
 

 T
ra
in
in
g
 f
o
r 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
q
u
a
lif
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

2
 
 

2
 
 

2
 

 M
e
d
ic
a
l 
fe
e
s
 (
e
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
')
 

1
 
 

1
 
 

1
 

 E
m
p
lo
y
e
rs
' 
lia
b
ili
ty
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
 

1
9
 
 

1
9
 
 

1
9
 

 E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
' 
p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 
s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

2
 
 

2
 
 

2
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
E
m
p
lo
y
e
e
s
 

4
,1
5
0
 
 

4
,1
5
0
 
 

4
,1
5
0
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

P
re
m
is
e
s
 

 
 

 
 

 

 I
n
te
rn
a
l 
re
p
a
ir
/m
a
in
t.
  

4
 
 

4
 
 

4
 

 R
e
n
ts
 

1
0
2
 
 

1
0
2
 
 

1
0
2
 

 U
ti
lit
ie
s
 

2
0
 
 

2
0
 
 

2
0
 

 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 R
a
te
s
 

3
5
 
 

3
5
 
 

3
5
 

 R
o
o
m
 h
ir
e
 

2
3
 
 

2
3
 
 

2
3
 

 T
ra
d
e
 W

a
s
te
 

1
 
 

1
 
 

1
 

 C
le
a
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 s
u
p
p
lie
s
 

9
 
 

9
 
 

9
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
P
re
m
is
e
s
 

1
9
4
 
 

1
9
4
 
 

1
9
4
 

   
 

 
 

 
 

T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

 
 

 
 

 

 V
e
h
ic
le
 r
e
p
a
ir
s
/m
a
in
t'c
e
 

8
 
 

8
 
 

8
 

 D
ie
s
e
l 
fu
e
l 

7
 
 

7
 
 

7
 

 L
ic
e
n
c
e
s
 

1
 
 

1
 
 

1
 

 C
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
ir
e
 o
f 
v
e
h
ic
le
s
 

5
 
 

5
 
 

5
 

 V
e
h
ic
le
 i
n
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 

3
 
 

3
 
 

3
 

Page 62



 
3
1

 C
a
r 
L
e
a
s
e
 

7
 
 

7
 
 

7
 

 F
a
re
s
 &
 C
a
r 
P
a
rk
in
g
 

5
 
 

5
 
 

5
 

 C
a
r 
a
llo
w
a
n
c
e
s
  

1
7
8
 
 

1
7
8
 
 

1
7
8
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
T
ra
n
s
p
o
rt
 

2
1
4
 
 

2
1
4
 
 

2
1
4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

S
u
p
p
li
e
s
 &
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

 
 

 
 

 

 E
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
- 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
/m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
/r
e
n
ta
l 

3
5
 
 

3
5
 
 

3
5
 

 M
a
te
ri
a
ls
/t
e
s
t 
p
u
rc
h
a
s
e
s
/v
e
n
d
in
g
 

2
3
 
 

2
3
 
 

2
3
 

 C
lo
th
in
g
 a
n
d
 u
n
if
o
rm

s
 

4
 
 

4
 
 

4
 

 L
a
u
n
d
ry
 

1
 
 

1
 
 

1
 

 T
ra
in
in
g
 f
e
e
s
 

6
0
 
 

6
0
 
 

6
0
 

 G
e
n
e
ra
l 
in
s
u
ra
n
c
e
s
 

2
0
 
 

2
0
 
 

2
0
 

 P
ri
n
ti
n
g
 a
n
d
 s
ta
ti
o
n
e
ry
 

2
7
 
 

2
7
 
 

2
7
 

 B
o
o
k
s
 a
n
d
 p
u
b
lic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

1
0
 
 

1
0
 
 

1
0
 

 P
o
s
ta
g
e
/p
a
c
k
a
g
in
g
 

1
2
 
 

1
2
 
 

1
2
 

 I
C
T
 

6
9
 
 

6
9
 
 

6
9
 

 T
e
le
p
h
o
n
e
s
 

4
2
 
 

4
2
 
 

4
2
 

 T
a
x
i 
T
e
s
ts
 

3
4
 
 

3
4
 
 

3
4
 

 C
R
B
 C
h
e
c
k
s
 (
ta
x
i)
 

2
0
 
 

2
0
 
 

2
0
 

 L
e
g
a
l 
fe
e
s
  

7
 
 

7
 
 

7
 

 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
c
h
a
rg
e
s
 

2
5
0
 
 

2
5
0
 
 

2
5
0
 

 C
u
s
to
m
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
 p
o
s
ts
 

5
0
 
 

5
0
 
 

5
0
 

 A
u
d
it
 

1
0
 
 

1
0
 
 

1
0
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
S
u
p
p
li
e
s
 &
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

6
7
4
 
 

6
7
4
 
 

6
7
4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

 
 

 
 

 

 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts
 /
 C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
' 
fe
e
s
/c
h
a
rg
e
s
/S
L
A
's
 

3
6
9
 
 

3
6
9
 
 

3
6
9
 

 A
d
v
e
rt
is
in
g
 (
g
e
n
e
ra
l)
 

1
0
 
 

1
0
 
 

1
0
 

 G
ra
n
ts
 a
n
d
 s
u
b
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n
s
 

1
6
 
 

1
6
 
 

1
6
 

 M
a
rk
e
ti
n
g
/p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
/p
u
b
lic
it
y
 

2
 
 

2
 
 

2
 

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
C
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 

3
9
7
 
 

3
9
7
 
 

3
9
7
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
c
o
m
e
 

 
 

 
 

 

 I
N
C
O
M
E
 m
is
c
e
lla
n
e
o
u
s
 f
e
e
s
 

-3
 
 

-3
 
 

-3
 

Page 63



 
3
2

S
u
b
-T
o
ta
l 
- 
In
c
o
m
e
 

-3
 
 

-3
 
 

-3
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
U
D
G
E
T
 T
O
T
A
L
 

5
,6
2
6
 
 

5
,6
2
6
 
 

5
,6
2
6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

B
ro
m
s
g
ro
v
e
 

6
0
2
 
 

 
 

 

M
a
lv
e
rn
 H
ill
s
 

5
3
4
 
 

 
 

 

R
e
d
d
it
c
h
 

6
0
4
 
 

 
 

 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
r 
C
it
y
 

6
2
3
 
 

 
 

 

W
y
c
h
a
v
o
n
 

9
4
8
 
 

 
 

 

W
y
re
 F
o
re
s
t 

6
2
0
 
 

 
 

 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
r 
C
o
u
n
ty
 

1
,6
9
4
 
 

 
 

 

 
5
,6
2
6
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 64



 33 

Appendix 6: Activity Data 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Nuisance 4287 

A** Air Pollution  321 

D** Drainage 190 

M** General Nuisance / Pollution 860 

N** Noise 2195 

P** Pests 721 

 Food 1030 

 Health & Safety 202 

 Planning 1035 

 Public Burial 34 

 Other Complaints or Enquiries 635 

Complaints received by Citizens Advice 11556 

Investigated by WRS 4548 

 
Top 5 consumer complaint 

categories 
 

EE Second Hand Motor Vehicles 1252 

AB Home Improvements 1145 

AD Furniture & Pictures 791 

DE Ancillary Credit Business 496 

BM Telecommunications 397 

Worcestershire Summary 

Page 65



 34 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For a 

wide range of statistics for this district, visit the 

following link: 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/research-and-

intelligence/local-area-profiles.aspx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 Nuisance 393 

A** Air Pollution  34 

D** Drainage 30 

M** General Nuisance / Pollution 75 

N** Noise 221 

P** Pests 33 

 Food 131 

 Health & Safety 22 

 Planning 162 

 Public Burial 1 

 Other Complaints or Enquiries 52 

Complaints received by Citizens Advice where 

the subject is located in Bromsgrove 
893 

Investigated by WRS 383 

 Top 5 consumer complaint categories  

EE Second Hand Motor Vehicles 139 

AB Home Improvements 85 

DE Ancillary Credit Business 65 

AD Furniture & Pictures 51 

BA Food & Drink 42 

Bromsgrove 

Page 66



 35 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For a wide range of statistics for this district, visit the 

following link: 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/research-and-

intelligence/local-area-profiles.aspx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 Nuisance 412 

A** Air Pollution  32 

D** Drainage 21 

M** General Nuisance / Pollution 83 

N** Noise 250 

P** Pests 26 

 Food 140 

 Health & Safety 21 

 Planning 174 

 Public Burial 6 

 Other Complaints or Enquiries 51 

Complaints received by Citizens Advice where 

the subject is located in Malvern Hills 
481 

Investigated by WRS 245 

 Top 5 consumer complaint categories  

AB Home Improvements 62 

BA Food & Drink 43 

EE Second Hand Motor Vehicles 32 

BA Food & Drink 32 

AN Large Domestic Appliances 27 

Malvern Hills 

Page 67



 36 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For a wide range of statistics for this district, visit 

the following link: 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/research-and-

intelligence/local-area-profiles.aspx 

 

 

 

 
 

 Nuisance 655 

A** Air Pollution  28 

D** Drainage 8 

M** General Nuisance / Pollution 130 

N** Noise 368 

P** Pests 121 

 Food 76 

 Health & Safety 16 

 Planning 74 

 Public Burial 3 

 Other Complaints or Enquiries 44 

Complaints received by Citizens Advice where 

the subject is located in Redditch 
982 

Investigated by WRS 344 

 Top 5 consumer complaint categories  

AB Home Improvements 185 

EE Second Hand Motor Vehicles 87 

DE Ancillary Credit Business 73 

AD Furniture & Pictures 64 

EF Car Repairs & Servicing 43 

Redditch 

Page 68



 37 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For a wide range of statistics for this district, visit 

the following link: 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/research-and-

intelligence/local-area-profiles.aspx 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 Nuisance 578 

A** Air Pollution  29 

D** Drainage 17 

M** General Nuisance / Pollution 141 

N** Noise 348 

P** Pests 43 

 Food 149 

 Health & Safety 32 

 Planning 157 

 Public Burial 5 

 Other Complaints or Enquiries 75 

Complaints received by Citizens Advice where 

the subject is located in Worcester City 
1193 

Investigated by WRS 427 

 Top 5 consumer complaint categories  

AB Home Improvements 135 

EE Second Hand Motor Vehicles 97 

CA Clothing & Fabrics 83 

AD Furniture & Pictures 66 

BA Food & Drink 60 

Worcester City 

Page 69



 38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For a wide range of statistics for this district, visit 

the following link: 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/research-and-

intelligence/local-area-profiles.aspx 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 Nuisance 547 

A** Air Pollution  64 

D** Drainage 37 

M** General Nuisance / Pollution 127 

N** Noise 275 

P** Pests 44 

 Food 147 

 Health & Safety 32 

 Planning 161 

 Public Burial  

 Other Complaints or Enquiries 80 

Complaints received by Citizens Advice where 

the subject is located in Wychavon 
1283 

Investigated by WRS 536 

 Top 5 consumer complaint categories  

AD Furniture & Pictures 242 

EE Second Hand Motor Vehicles 151 

AB Home Improvements 83 

GA 
Industrial / Commercial Goods & 

Services 
72 

BA Food & Drink 52 

Wychavon 

Page 70



 39 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

For a wide range of statistics for this district, visit 

the following link: 

www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/research-and-

intelligence/local-area-profiles.aspx 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 Nuisance 549 

A** Air Pollution  47 

D** Drainage 8 

M** General Nuisance / Pollution 94 

N** Noise 288 

P** Pests 112 

 Food 120 

 Health & Safety 25 

 Planning 53 

 Public Burial 4 

 Other Complaints or Enquiries 54 

Complaints received by Citizens Advice where 

the subject is located in Wyre Forest 
825 

Investigated by WRS 313 

 Top 5 consumer complaint categories  

EE Second Hand Motor Vehicles 130 

AD Furniture & Pictures 84 

AB Home Improvements 66 

AN Large Domestic Appliances 47 

BA Food & Drink 39 

Wyre Forest 

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

Date  27 June 2013 

 

Worcestershire LEP/WRS Charter Action Plan 
 

Recommendation 
 
 
Report 
 
 
 

To approve the WLEP/WRS Charter Action Plan which 
highlights what actions will be taken to deliver the aims 
contained within the charter. 

 
The Regulatory and Business Charter was launched in 
November 2012 and it sets out a number of aims which the 
local authorities and national regulators will deliver to local 
businesses. 
 
The Charter covers 8 main aims which cover areas such as 
business support and creating an environment within which 
business can flourish whilst the public are still protected. 

 
Once the Charter had been agreed between partners the 
aims within the charter needed to be converted into specific 
actions and this is where the Action Plan comes in. 

 
To assist with delivering the necessary outcomes a funding 
bid was made to the Better Regulation delivery Office 
(BDRO) and a grant of £15,000 has been made available to 
assist with delivering both the action plan and the actions 
contained therein. 

 
The primary focus of the action plan in this early stage is on 
the rural economy around the principle of “Farm to Fork” and 
work will concentrate on sectors such as farm shops, small 
rural producers and food producers and horticulture. 

 
The Worcestershire LEP approved the draft Charter action 
Plan at its Board meeting on 23

 
May2013. 

 
 
Financial Implications 
 

 

A grant of £15,000 has been agreed with the BDRO to Assist 
with this work. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 73



 
 
  

 

Contact Points 
 

Steve Jorden, Head of Worcestershire Regulatory Services 
Tel: 01527-881466 
email: s.jorden@worcsregservices.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 

Draft Charter Action Plan 
Regulatory and Business Partnership Charter 

 

Page 74



 
 

 
D
R
A
F
T
 

W
L
E
P
 &
 W

R
S
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 

C
o
n
v
e
rt
in
g
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
in
to
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 

 

In
it
ia
ti
v
e
 

P
u
rp
o
s
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

L
e
a
d
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
D
a
te
 

F
ir
s
t 
J
o
in
t 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

a
n
d
 R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
’ 
a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
rs
’ 
in
it
ia
l 

in
te
re
s
t,
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 a
n
d
 i
d
e
a
s
 

S
c
o
p
e
d
 o
u
t 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 

In
c
lu
s
io
n
 o
f 

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

G
ro
w
th
 i
n
 W

L
E
P
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

W
L
E
P
 &
 

W
R
S
 

M
a
y
 2
0
1
2
 

 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 W

o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 t
o
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 a
n
d
 d
e
liv
e
r 

in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
g
u
id
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
o
re
 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 -
 W

L
E
P
, 
W
R
S
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
A
g
e
n
c
y
, 
H
M
R
C
, 
H
S
E
, 
F
ir
e
 &
 

R
e
s
c
u
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 
A
C
A
S
 

T
e
rm

s
 o
f 
R
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 

a
g
re
e
d
 

B
i-
m
o
n
th
ly
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

O
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 o
f 

P
a
th
fi
n
d
e
r 
S
h
a
re
d
 

L
e
a
rn
in
g
 E
v
e
n
t 

c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
/a
p
p
lie
d
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty
 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

W
L
E
P
 &
 

W
R
S
 &
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

 

R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

P
a
rt
n
e
rs
h
ip
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
 

C
h
a
rt
e
r 
to
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 o
f 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 f
o
r 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

g
ro
w
th
. 
C
h
a
rt
e
r 
p
u
b
lic
iz
e
s
 a
 f
ir
m
 s
ta
te
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

in
te
n
t 
lo
c
a
lly
, 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
lly
 a
n
d
 g
lo
b
a
lly
. 
C
h
a
rt
e
r 

c
ro
s
s
 r
e
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 W

L
E
P
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

C
h
a
rt
e
r 
la
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a
t 

W
L
E
P
 C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 

“T
h
e
 O
u
tl
o
o
k
 i
s
 B
ri
g
h
t 

in
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
” 

(3
0
0
+
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
) 

W
L
E
P
 &
 

W
R
S
, 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
, 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
g
u
la
to
rs
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

Page 75



W
L
E
P
 B
o
a
rd
 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 

E
d
 W

e
b
b
, 
W
e
b
b
s
 o
f 
W
y
c
h
b
o
ld
 c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a
s
 

W
L
E
P
 B
o
a
rd
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
ir
 o
f 
W
L
E
P
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

T
o
 c
h
a
m
p
io
n
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 n
e
e
d
s
; 
s
te
e
r 

jo
in
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 

lo
c
a
l/
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
g
u
la
to
rs
; 
o
v
e
rs
e
e
 

C
h
a
rt
e
r 
c
o
n
v
e
rt
e
d
 t
o
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
  

W
L
E
P
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
2
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

W
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
, 
W
L
E
P
 a
n
d
 W

R
S
 (
3
5
 

re
p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
v
e
s
) 
to
 s
h
a
p
e
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

S
c
o
p
e
 o
u
t 
fi
rs
t 
jo
in
t 

C
h
a
rt
e
r 
A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
, 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
n
d
 t
a
rg
e
ts
 

W
L
E
P
 &
 

W
R
S
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

W
L
E
P
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 S
u
b
 

G
ro
u
p
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
rm

e
d
 t
o
: 

•
 

le
a
d
, 
c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
, 
fa
c
ili
ta
te
, 
m
o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 r
e
v
ie
w
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
C
h
a
rt
e
r 
a
n
d
 

a
n
n
u
a
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
s
 

•
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 a
n
 o
p
e
n
, 
h
o
n
e
s
t 
e
x
c
h
a
n
g
e
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

re
g
u
la
to
rs
 a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

•
 

fa
c
ili
ta
te
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 o
n
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

•
 

p
ro
v
id
e
 a
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
v
e
 m
e
c
h
a
n
is
m
 t
o
 

h
e
lp
 r
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 s
h
a
p
e
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
 d
e
liv
e
ry
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
lo
c
a
l 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

n
e
e
d
s
 a
n
d
 p
ro
m
o
te
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 

•
 

b
u
ild
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 t
h
a
t 

im
p
ro
v
e
s
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 g
ro
w
th
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
-L
e
d
 G
ro
u
p
 

L
E
P
 B
o
a
rd
 C
h
a
m
p
io
n
 

(C
h
a
ir
) 

D
e
liv
e
ry
 F
o
c
u
s
 

B
i-
m
o
n
th
ly
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

       R
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
it
ia
l 
A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
o
 

A
n
n
u
a
l W

L
E
P
 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 

B
R
D
O
 

W
L
E
P
 &
 

W
R
S
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

               O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

Page 76



W
id
e
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
–
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
  

C
h
a
rt
e
r 
a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

g
e
n
e
ri
c
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
/e
v
e
n
ts
 a
s
 

fo
llo
w
s
: 

•
 

W
L
E
P
 B
o
a
rd
 &
 W

L
E
P
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 B
o
a
rd
 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 

•
 

W
L
E
P
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
/n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 

•
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m
e
m
b
e
rs
h
ip
 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
/n
e
tw
o
rk
s
/e
v
e
n
ts
 –
 

C
h
a
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
C
o
m
m
e
rc
e
, 
F
S
B
, 
Io
D
, 
M
id
 

W
e
s
t 
R
u
ra
l 
E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
s
 n
e
tw
o
rk
 

•
 

K
e
y
 T
ra
d
e
 A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 

e
v
e
n
ts
/n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 r
e
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
e
c
to
rs
 

•
 

S
e
m
in
a
rs
/w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
/ 

a
tt
e
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 W

R
S
/N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
o
d
 c
h
a
in
 

“H
o
w
 w
e
 c
a
n
 h
e
lp
 

y
o
u
r 
b
o
tt
o
m
 l
in
e
” 
- 

c
o
m
m
o
n
 s
c
ri
p
ts
, 

te
x
ts
, 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 

a
d
a
p
t/
d
e
liv
e
r 
to
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
. 

C
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 a
n
d
 

s
h
a
re
 r
e
g
u
la
to
r 

e
v
e
n
ts
. 

T
a
rg
e
t 
m
a
in
 

a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
/p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 

W
L
E
P
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
r 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

W
R
S
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
 

C
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 

T
a
rg
e
t 
C
h
a
rt
e
r 
a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 

th
ro
u
g
h
 g
e
n
e
ri
c
 c
o
m
m
u
n
ic
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 a
s
 

fo
llo
w
s
: 

•
 

W
L
E
P
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 

•
 

W
R
S
 w
e
b
s
it
e
 a
n
d
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 

a
u
th
o
ri
ti
e
s
’ 
“B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
e
n
tr
a
l”
 

•
 

W
L
E
P
 L
in
k
e
d
 i
n
 a
n
d
 T
w
it
te
r 
G
ro
u
p
s
 

•
 

L
in
k
s
 t
o
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
’ 

re
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 w
e
b
s
it
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 

c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 

•
 

W
L
E
P
 a
n
d
 W

R
S
 P
re
s
s
 R
e
le
a
s
e
s
 

•
 

C
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

a
c
ro
s
s
 W

R
S
/N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
h
o
w
 “
H
o
w
 w
e
 c
a
n
 

h
e
lp
 y
o
u
r 
b
o
tt
o
m
 l
in
e
” 

- 
c
o
m
m
o
n
 s
c
ri
p
ts
, 

te
x
ts
, 
m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 

a
d
a
p
t/
d
e
liv
e
r 
to
 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
. 

C
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 a
n
d
 

s
h
a
re
 r
e
g
u
la
to
r 

e
v
e
n
ts
. 

T
a
rg
e
t 
m
a
in
 

a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
s
/p
ri
o
ri
ty
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
s
 

W
L
E
P
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
r 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

W
R
S
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
 

Page 77



B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 S
u
m
m
it
 

P
ro
m
o
te
 i
n
it
ia
l 
C
h
a
rt
e
r 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 a
n
d
 s
tr
iv
e
 t
o
 

a
tt
a
in
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
. 
C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
 

c
ri
ti
c
a
l 
c
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 o
f 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
t 

a
m
b
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r 

“S
e
n
s
e
 C
h
e
c
k
” 

C
h
a
rt
e
r 
p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 w
it
h
 A
c
ti
o
n
 

P
la
n
 w
it
h
 w
id
e
r 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 

a
n
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 

in
te
re
s
ts
. 

R
e
a
ff
ir
m
/a
m
e
n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

W
L
E
P
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
r 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

W
R
S
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

W
L
E
P
 A
n
n
u
a
l 

C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
  

P
ro
m
o
te
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 s
in
c
e
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
la
u
n
c
h
 

a
n
d
 a
m
b
it
io
n
s
 f
o
r 
fo
rt
h
c
o
m
in
g
 y
e
a
r 

E
n
g
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
s
ta
in
 

w
id
e
r 
W
L
E
P
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

in
v
o
lv
e
m
e
n
t.
 

U
s
e
 C
o
n
fe
re
n
c
e
 

p
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 

to
 s
p
re
a
d
 m
e
s
s
a
g
e
s
. 

“S
e
n
s
e
 C
h
e
c
k
” 
w
it
h
 

w
id
e
r 
W
L
E
P
 a
u
d
ie
n
c
e
 

to
 r
e
a
ff
ir
m
/a
m
e
n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

W
L
E
P
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
r 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

W
R
S
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 N
e
e
d
s
 

S
u
rv
e
y
 

U
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 s
a
m
p
le
 s
u
rv
e
y
/a
n
a
ly
s
is
 o
f 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 (
a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t)
  
a
n
d
 s
h
a
p
e
 r
e
g
u
ila
to
ry
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
, 

to
o
ls
 a
n
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
ts
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 

b
e
n
c
h
m
a
rk
 f
o
r 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 

o
f 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
n
. 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 b
a
s
e
lin
e
 

fr
o
m
 w
h
ic
h
 t
o
 

m
e
a
s
u
re
 f
u
tu
re
 

p
a
c
e
/e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
n
e
s
s
 o
f 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 

W
R
S
 

F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 –
 

M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

C
re
a
te
 a
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 n
e
w
, 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 D
e
liv
e
ry
 

D
e
te
rm

in
in
g
 d
e
ta
ile
d
 

W
L
E
P
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 –
 

Page 78



F
ri
e
n
d
ly
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 

M
o
d
e
l:
 

•
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
d
v
ic
e
 –
 S
m
a
rt
 P
h
o
n
e
, 
“A
s
k
 

R
e
g
” 
P
h
o
n
e
 a
p
p
, 
lin
k
s
 t
o
 E
R
W
IN
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
, 
s
o
c
ia
l 
m
e
d
ia
 c
h
a
n
n
e
ls
 

•
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 –
 W

R
S
/B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

C
e
n
tr
a
l,
 W

L
E
P
, 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
, 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 M
e
m
b
e
r 
O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

•
 

w
e
b
s
it
e
/p
u
b
lis
h
a
b
le
 m
a
te
ri
a
l 
in
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l,
 s
im
p
le
 l
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a
n
d
 

p
ra
g
m
a
ti
c
 s
te
p
s
 t
o
 a
id
 s
e
lf
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

•
 

p
u
b
lis
h
 s
im
p
le
 c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 c
o
d
e
 f
o
r 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

•
 

“S
in
g
le
 p
o
in
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta
c
t”
 -
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
 

s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
, 
c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
, 

s
yn
c
h
ro
n
iz
e
d
 r
is
k
-b
a
s
e
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 (
W
R
S
 &
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
re
g
u
la
to
rs
) 

a
s
 a
n
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
, 
ta
ilo
re
d
 r
e
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 f
o
r 
a
n
y 
o
n
e
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 w
it
h
 w
e
b
-b
a
s
e
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
to
o
ls
 a
n
d
 

p
ro
d
u
c
ts
 w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
 t
o
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 n
e
e
d
s
 

(s
u
rv
e
y
 a
n
d
 

s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
r 

d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
) 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
r 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

W
R
S
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

W
o
rk
in
g
 

G
ro
u
p
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 L
if
e
c
y
c
le
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 m
a
p
p
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 

P
a
th
fi
n
d
e
r 
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 L
if
e
c
y
c
le
 S
ta
g
e
s
 –
 

m
ic
ro
s
/s
ta
rt
-u
p
s
, 
e
x
p
a
n
d
in
g
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 S
M
E
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 l
a
rg
e
/c
o
rp
o
ra
te
s
 

 

P
re
lim

in
a
ry
 s
c
o
p
in
g
 o
f 

e
a
c
h
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

lif
e
c
y
c
le
 s
ta
g
e
 t
o
 

fo
rm

u
la
te
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 

s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 c
o
m
b
in
e
d
 

o
ff
e
r 
b
y
 a
ll 
re
g
u
la
to
rs
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

L
o
c
a
l/
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

G
ro
u
p
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 

M
ic
ro
/S
ta
rt
 U
p
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

P
ilo
t 
“F
ir
s
t 
S
te
p
s
” 
M
o
d
e
l 
a
s
 s
c
o
p
e
d
 o
u
t 
u
n
d
e
r 

“B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 L
if
e
c
y
c
le
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t”
 a
b
o
v
e
 

W
L
E
P
, 
W
R
S
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 t
o
 

te
s
t 
c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

a
d
v
ic
e
, 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

L
o
c
a
l/
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

G
ro
u
p
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

–
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

P
ilo
t 
“E
x
p
a
n
d
in
g
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
” 
M
o
d
e
l 
a
s
 s
c
o
p
e
d
 

W
L
E
P
, 
W
R
S
, 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

Page 79



b
u
s
in
e
s
s
, 

p
a
rt
ic
u
la
rl
y
 S
M
E
s
 

o
u
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
“B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 L
if
e
c
y
c
le
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t”
 

a
b
o
v
e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 t
o
 

te
s
t 
c
o
-o
rd
in
a
te
d
 

p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 o
f 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

a
d
v
ic
e
, 
in
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

L
o
c
a
l/
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

G
ro
u
p
 

–
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 

2
0
1
4
 

P
ri
m
a
ry
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

P
ro
m
o
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
d
v
a
n
ta
g
e
s
 o
f 
P
ri
m
a
ry
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
la
rg
e
/c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 i
n
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 

H
o
s
t 
ta
rg
e
te
d
 a
n
d
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
 w
o
rk
s
h
o
p
 

fo
r 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
; 
F
o
llo
w
 u
p
 

1
2
1
s
 w
it
h
 c
o
m
p
a
n
ie
s
 

W
R
S
 

A
p
ri
l 
–
 

S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

a
n
d
 M
e
n
to
r 
M
o
d
e
l 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
in
g
 a
n
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
re
la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 

a
 l
e
a
d
 r
e
g
u
la
to
r 
c
o
n
ta
c
t 
a
n
d
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 w
ill
 b
u
ild
 

tr
u
s
t,
 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
, 
tr
a
n
s
p
a
re
n
c
y 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
is
te
n
c
y 

in
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 t
a
ilo
re
d
 a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

a
n
y
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
ta
rt
, 
th
ri
v
e
 a
n
d
 g
ro
w
. 
 

     B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
v
e
 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 

c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 a
s
 w
e
ll 
a
s
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m
e
m
b
e
r 

o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 c
a
n
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
-t
o
-

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 r
o
le
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 o
th
e
r 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 c
o
m
p
ly
. 

E
s
ta
b
lis
h
 a
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
e
a
m
 t
o
 

c
o
o
rd
in
a
te
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 

a
d
v
ic
e
 a
n
d
 l
in
k
 w
it
h
 

w
e
b
-b
a
s
e
d
 s
ig
n
p
o
s
ts
 

v
ia
 ‘
B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
e
n
tr
a
l’,
 

W
L
E
P
, 
W
R
S
 a
n
d
 

in
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

 F
a
c
ili
ta
te
 a
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
e
n
to
ri
n
g
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 

w
h
e
re
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

h
e
lp
 o
th
e
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 

w
it
h
 s
e
lf
-c
o
m
p
lia
n
c
e
 

L
o
c
a
l/
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

G
ro
u
p
 

       B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

“
M
a
d
e
 i
n
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
”
 

H
o
rt
ic
u
lt
u
re
 a
n
d
 

F
o
o
d
 P
ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 

S
e
c
to
r 
P
il
o
t 

O
n
e
 o
f 
fo
u
r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 s
e
c
to
rs
 f
o
r 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 i
n
 W

L
E
P
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 P
la
n
 

(s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia
l 
o
u
tp
u
t 
c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 

W
o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 e
c
o
n
o
m
y
, 
e
x
p
o
rt
s
 a
c
ro
s
s
 U
K
, 

in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
v
e
n
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 f
o
o
d
 

m
ile
s
, 
in
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
in
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo
g
ie
s
 

e
tc
) 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 S
e
c
to
r 

W
o
rk
in
g
 G
ro
u
p
 o
f 
k
e
y
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 (
lo
c
a
l 

p
ro
d
u
c
e
rs
/d
is
tr
ib
u
to
rs
, 

re
ta
ile
rs
, 
c
a
te
re
rs
) 
 

T
ra
d
e
 a
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
 

(C
o
C
, 
F
S
B
, 

W
L
E
P
, 

W
R
S
, 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
, 

L
o
c
a
l 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
, 

T
ra
d
e
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

Page 80



 R
u
ra
l 
e
c
o
n
o
m
y 
a
n
d
 “
fi
e
ld
/f
a
rm

 t
o
 f
o
rk
” 
s
u
p
p
ly
 

c
h
a
in
 t
o
 b
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o
f 
R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 

G
ro
w
th
 i
n
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
 (
fa
rm

e
rs
, 
h
o
rt
ic
u
lt
u
ra
lis
ts
, 

fo
o
d
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
rs
/m
a
n
u
fa
c
tu
re
rs
/d
is
tr
ib
u
to
rs
, 

e
d
ta
ile
rs
, 
c
a
te
re
rs
, 
c
o
n
s
u
m
e
rs
) 
a
n
d
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 (
c
o
n
n
e
c
t 
to
 R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 a
s
 a
 M
a
rk
e
t 

O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 b
e
lo
w
) 

M
W
R
E
C
IC
, 
N
F
U
 e
tc
) 
 

a
n
d
 R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

(D
e
fr
a
, 
E
A
, 
A
n
im
a
l 

H
e
a
lt
h
, 
H
S
E
, 
H
M
R
C
 

e
tc
) 
 

 F
a
c
ili
ta
te
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
-

le
d
 N
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 F
o
ru
m
 

to
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
th
e
 

fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 o
f 
a
n
 

a
c
c
re
d
it
a
ti
o
n
 s
c
h
e
m
e
  

 D
ra
ft
 s
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia
ti
o
n
s
, 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
e
m
b
e
r 

O
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
s
 

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
s
 a
s
 a
 

M
a
rk
e
t 
O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 t
o
 c
re
a
te
 n
e
w
 

s
tr
e
a
m
lin
e
d
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 F
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 a
lli
e
d
 t
o
 

n
e
w
/e
m
e
rg
in
g
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 m
a
rk
e
ts
. 
F
o
c
u
s
 o
n
 

W
L
E
P
 p
ri
o
ri
ty
 s
e
c
to
rs
 i
.e
. 
C
y
b
e
r 
S
e
c
u
ri
ty
,F
o
o
d
 

&
 H
o
rt
ic
u
lt
u
re
 S
e
c
to
r 
(l
in
k
 t
o
 P
ilo
t 
a
b
o
v
e
) 

Id
e
n
ti
fy
 s
e
c
to
r 
fo
c
u
s
 

a
n
d
 k
e
y
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 t
o
 

w
o
rk
 i
n
 c
o
lla
b
o
ra
ti
o
n
. 
 

D
ra
ft
 s
c
o
p
e
 o
f 
p
ro
je
c
t 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

L
o
c
a
l/
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

G
ro
u
p
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 C
u
lt
u
re
  

E
n
s
u
re
 r
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 a
re
 c
o
m
p
e
te
n
t,
 p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
in
 w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
. 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 i
n
te
n
d
 t
o
 f
u
lf
ill
 t
h
e
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 w
it
h
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 

th
e
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
in
it
ia
ti
v
e
s
. 

R
e
in
fo
rc
e
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
c
y
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
, 
k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
, 

a
n
d
 a
w
a
re
n
e
s
s
 a
a
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 r
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 s
ys
te
m
 

(l
o
c
a
l 
a
n
d
 n
a
ti
o
n
a
l)
 w
h
ile
 s
tr
e
n
g
th
e
n
in
g
 c
ro
s
s
-

re
g
u
la
to
r 
w
o
rk
in
g
 a
n
d
 c
o
-o
rd
in
a
ti
o
n
 

S
h
a
re
d
 P
ra
c
ti
c
e
 

E
v
e
n
t 
fo
r 
a
ll 

W
R
S
/N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 t
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 

k
n
o
w
le
d
g
e
 a
n
d
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 a
c
ro
s
s
 a
ll 

re
g
u
la
to
ry
 f
ie
ld
s
. 

 P
ilo
t 
a
 W

o
rc
e
s
te
rs
h
ir
e
 

T
ra
d
in
g
 P
la
c
e
s
 

S
c
h
e
m
e
 w
h
e
re
 

b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 a
n
d
 

re
g
u
la
to
rs
 s
w
a
p
 

p
la
c
e
s
 f
o
r 
a
 d
a
y 
to
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 m
u
tu
a
l 

L
o
c
a
l/
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

G
ro
u
p
 

J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

Page 81



u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
in
g
 o
f 

b
a
rr
ie
rs
 a
n
d
 

o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 

 In
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
a
n
d
 

te
a
m
/o
rg
a
n
is
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ta
b
ili
ty
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 

a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 

p
ro
fe
s
s
io
n
a
l 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 

a
n
d
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 

C
o
n
n
e
c
t 

T
h
e
 R
e
g
u
la
to
ry
 a
n
d
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 C
h
a
rt
e
r 
a
n
d
 

p
a
ra
lle
l 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
C
h
a
rt
e
r 

b
o
th
 p
ro
v
id
e
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
s
 a
n
d
 

p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
 t
o
 s
te
e
r 
c
u
lt
u
re
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 a
n
d
 i
n
ia
ti
v
e
s
 

w
h
ic
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 g
ro
w
th
. 
W
h
ile
 b
o
th
 

fo
c
u
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
ir
 p
ro
ir
it
y
 a
c
ti
o
n
s
, 
c
o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 b
u
s
in
e
s
s
e
s
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 

c
le
a
r,
 c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
a
d
v
ic
e
 o
n
 a
n
y 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

e
n
q
u
ir
y
. 
 

E
x
p
lo
re
 a
n
d
 p
ilo
t 
 c
o
-

o
rd
in
a
te
d
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 

a
ro
u
n
d
 s
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 

p
ri
o
ri
ty
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 

s
it
e
s
 a
s
 a
 m
e
a
n
s
 t
o
 

p
ilo
t 
c
u
lt
u
re
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 

fo
r 
re
g
u
la
ti
o
rs
 a
n
d
 

p
la
n
n
e
rs
 

W
L
E
P
 

W
R
S
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

D
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
 

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 G
ro
w
th
 

S
h
a
re
d
 L
e
a
rn
in
g
 w
it
h
 

W
e
s
t 
M
id
la
n
d
s
 L
E
P
s
, 

B
R
D
O
 P
a
th
fi
n
d
e
rs
 

a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 

W
e
s
t 
M
id
la
n
d
s
 L
E
P
s
 a
re
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
s
 a
n
d
 h
ig
h
lig
h
ti
n
g
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 

a
n
d
 s
o
lu
ti
o
n
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
w
h
ic
h
 t
h
e
y 
c
a
n
 c
o
lle
c
ti
v
e
ly
 

lo
b
b
y
 M
in
is
te
rs
 a
n
d
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
ts
. 

R
e
g
u
la
ti
o
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 G
ro
w
th
 i
s
 o
n
e
 

id
e
n
o
fi
c
e
d
 c
o
m
m
o
n
 t
h
e
m
e
 w
h
o
h
c
 c
o
n
n
e
c
ts
 

W
L
E
P
 w
it
h
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P
a
th
fi
n
d
e
rs
 

(G
B
S
 L
E
P
),
 B
IS
/B
R
D
O
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 

L
E
P
/R
e
g
u
la
to
r 
C
h
a
m
p
io
n
s
 

R
e
g
u
la
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
o
 

b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 W

M
 

L
E
P
 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

D
ir
e
c
to
rs
 a
n
d
 C
h
a
ir
s
 

W
L
E
P
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 &
 

R
e
g
u
la
to
rs
 

S
u
b
 G
ro
u
p
 

  

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
3
 

o
n
w
a
rd
s
 

 

Page 82



R
E

G
U

L
A

T
O

R
Y

 A
N

D
 B

U
S

IN
E

S
S

 P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

 C
H

A
R

T
E

R

P
a

r
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 C
h

a
r
te

r

T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 c
h

a
rt

e
r 

a
g

re
e

d
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
, 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

g
u

la
to

rs
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
  

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 W

o
rc

e
s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 a
re

a
.

T
h
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 e
n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

p
ro

m
o

te
s
  

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 in

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 w

h
ils

t 
c
o

n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 p

u
b

lic
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
.

L
o

c
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d

 n
a
ti
o

n
a
l r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

 w
ill
 w

o
rk

 in
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 a
lig

n
 t

h
e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

 

th
e
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 a
im

s
: 

W
e
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

to
:

1
. 

P
ro

vi
d

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
d

vi
c
e
 a

n
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 in
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

.1

2
. 

C
re

a
te

 a
n
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

e
n
t 

w
h
e
re

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 f
e
e
l c

o
n
fid

e
n
t 

to
 s

e
e
k
 a

d
vi

c
e
 f
ro

m
 a

 r
e
g

u
la

to
r.

3
. 

Ta
k
e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 o
f 
a
n
y 

e
n
q

u
ir
y 

m
a
d

e
 t

o
 u

s
 b

y 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
ti
l a

 s
a
ti
s
fa

c
to

ry
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e
 is

 m
a
d

e
. 

 

 
M

a
k
e
 a

d
vi

c
e
 a

b
o

u
t 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 w
e
b

s
it
e
/p

h
o

n
e
 a

p
p

 s
in

g
le

 p
o

in
t 

o
f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t.

4
. 

E
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 s
ta

ff
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
t 

a
n
d

 a
d

o
p

t 
a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l a

tt
it
u
d

e
  

 
w

h
e
n
 e

n
g

a
g

in
g

 w
it
h
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
. 

C
o

n
s
is

te
n
c
y 

s
e
m

in
a
rs

 w
ill
 b

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e
d

 t
o

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

 

 
re

g
u
la

ti
o

n
 is

 a
p

p
lie

d
 f
a
ir
ly

 a
n
d

 e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

ly
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 L

E
P

 a
n
d

 t
o

 im
p

ro
ve

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
  

 
u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g

 a
m

o
n
g

 s
ta

ff
.

5
. 

Ta
k
e
 a

 r
is

k
 b

a
s
e
d

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 a

ll 
c
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e
 a

n
d

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

a
c
ti
vi

ti
e
s
, 

 

 
w

it
h
 e

a
rn

e
d

 r
e
c
o

g
n
it
io

n
 f
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

c
a
n
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

 e
ff
e
c
ti
ve

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

.

6
. 

Im
p

ro
ve

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
c
y 

b
y 

p
u
b

lis
h
in

g
 o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

n
d

  

 
e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

th
a
t 

e
x
p

la
in

s
 w

h
a
t 

th
e
 r

e
g

u
la

to
r 

w
ill
 d

o
 a

n
d

 w
h
y.

7
. 

C
o

n
s
u
lt
 w

it
h
 lo

c
a
l b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

h
a
p

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d

 d
e
ve

lo
p

 in
n
o

va
ti
ve

  

 
re

g
u
la

to
ry

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

p
ro

m
o

te
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
.

8
. 

B
e
 a

c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
le

 t
o

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
, 

g
iv

in
g

 t
h
e
m

 c
o

n
fid

e
n
c
e
 t

o
 m

a
k
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
t 

a
n
d

  

 
c
ri
ti
c
is

m
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 L
E

P
 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
.

1
 ‘
P

ri
m

a
ry

 A
u
th

o
ri
ty

’ 
is

 a
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 r

u
n
 b

y 
th

e
 B

e
tt

e
r 

R
e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 O
ffi

c
e
 t

h
a
t 

a
llo

w
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

  

w
it
h
 o

n
e
 lo

c
a
l a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 a

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h
 t

o
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 U

K
.

Page 83



W
o

rc
e

s
te

rs
h

ir
e

 -
 

A
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
lo

c
a

ti
o

n

T
h

e
 L

o
c

a
l 

E
n

te
r
p

r
is

e
 P

a
r
tn

e
rs

h
ip

 w
il
l 
e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

e
 t

h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 t

o
:

1
. 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 r

e
g

u
la

to
ry

 a
d

vi
c
e
 b

y 
a
s
k
in

g
 a

n
y 

re
g

u
la

to
r 

a
 q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
 o

r 
th

ro
u
g

h
 t

h
e
 o

n
e
 s

to
p

 w
e
b

/p
h
o

n
e
 a

p
p

.

2
. 

B
e
 c

o
n
fid

e
n
t 

in
 a

p
p

ro
a
c
h
in

g
 r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

 f
o

r 
a
d

vi
c
e
.

3
. 

U
s
e
 t

h
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 L
E

P
 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e
 f
e
e
d

b
a
c
k
, 

g
o

o
d

 a
n
d

 b
a
d

, 
a
ft
e
r 

in
te

ra
c
ti
o

n
s
 w

it
h
 r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

.

4
. 

B
u
ild

 a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s
h
ip

 w
it
h
 r

e
g

u
la

to
rs

 t
h
a
t 

im
p

ro
ve

s
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

th
e
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

a
n
d

  

 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 L

E
P

 a
re

a
.

5
. 

A
c
k
n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 m

a
d

e
 b

y 
re

g
u
la

to
rs

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 p

u
b

lic
it
y 

w
h
e
n
 t

h
e
re

 a
re

 im
p

ro
ve

m
e
n
ts

  

 
in

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 r
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

6
. 

H
e
lp

 o
th

e
r 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 s

u
c
c
e
e
d

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g

 in
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 m

e
n
to

r 
s
c
h
e
m

e
.

7
. 

E
n
g

a
g

e
 in

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
g

u
la

to
r 

fo
ru

m
s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

to
 s

h
a
p

e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 in
 t

h
e
 L

E
P

 a
re

a
.

W
o

rc
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 L

E
P
, 

W
o

rc
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d

 W
o

rc
e
s
te

rs
h
ir
e
 L

o
c
a
l A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 h

a
ve

 a
 p

a
ra

lle
l P

la
n
n
in

g
 C

h
a
rt

e
r 

to
 s

h
a
p

e
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f
ri
e
n
d

ly
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d

 c
u
lt
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

ro
w

th
. 

D
e
liv

e
ri
n
g

 b
o

th
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 

a
n
d

 R
e
g

u
la

to
ry

 C
h
a
rt

e
rs

 t
o

g
e
th

e
r 

w
ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a
te

d
, 

s
im

p
lifi

e
d

 a
n
d

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
ve

 h
e
lp

 t
o

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

s
 t

h
e
y 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
, 

d
e
ve

lo
p

 a
n
d

 g
ro

w
.

w
w

w
.w

le
p

.c
o

.u
k

F
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

d
vi

c
e
 o

r 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 r

in
g

 0
1

9
0

5
 3

4
6

1
8

0
 

w
w

w
.w

o
rc

s
re

g
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.g

o
v
.u

k

F
o

r 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

d
vi

c
e
 o

r 
s
u
p

p
o

rt
 r

in
g

 0
1

9
0

5
 8

2
2

7
9

9

w
w

w
.h

m
rc

.g
o

v
.u

k

w
w

w
.e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t-
a

d
v
ic

e
-b

u
re

a
u

.c
o

.u
k

w
w

w
.h

w
fi

re
.o

rg
.u

k

w
w

w
.e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t-

a
g

e
n

c
y
.g

o
v
.u

k

w
w

w
.a

c
a

s
.o

rg
.u

k

Page 84



 

 
JOINT COMMITTEE 
 

Date  27
th
 June 2013 

 
WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES 

NAME OF REPORT : WRS Contribution to Health and 
Wellbeing 
 

Recommendation 
 

To consider and note the report about contribution made to 
Health and Wellbeing of Worcestershire by WRS 

 

Background Public health returned to local government in April 2013 

under changes brought about by the Health and Social Care 

Act 2012. This legislation places a statutory duty on upper 

tier authorities through the Health and Wellbeing Board to 

‘take steps to improve the health of their local population’. 

This will require collaboration with the Districts and other 

partners, including WRS by aligning priorities, services, 

resources and activities with the Worcestershire Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy. 

 

Current Position WRS has a vision that Worcestershire is a healthy, safe and 

fair place to live, where businesses can thrive and has 

prioritised health and wellbeing as one of its key priorities. 

The Service is built on strong public health principles of 

prevention and protection where a multitude of activities 

undertaken contribute to the Worcestershire Joint Strategy. 

WRS is well placed to work with business and communities 

to reduce inequalities having both skills and experience in 

these areas. Impacts of improved health include the potential 

for better outcomes in areas such as education, employment, 

anti social behaviour and social cohesion; all of which are 

directly influenced by local polices. 

 

Proposal 
 

Investment in prevention will result in long term savings for 

the local health economy by preventing costs from accruing 

in the future. By aligning priorities and maximising joint 

working, District and County partners and the Health and 

Wellbeing Board will wish to acknowledge the multifaceted 

contribution that WRS plays in the preventative public health 

agenda when considering,  integrating priorities and 

commissioning local activities in this area. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 85



 
 
  

Financial Implications 
 

None  

Contact Points 
 

Name: Anita Fletcher, Job Title: Strategic Services Manager 
Tel: 01527 548208 
email: anita.fletcher@worcsregservices.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 

Worcestershire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

 

Page 86



WORCESTERSHIRE REGULATORY SERVICES - CONTRIBUTION TO 
WORCESTERSHIRE HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY  

 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 
‘Poverty remains the chief cause of disease and it is a factor which is beyond the 
immediate control of medicine’ Henry Sigerist1   

 
‘The primary determinants of disease are mainly economic and social and therefore 
its remedies must also be economic and social. Medicine and politics cannot and 
should not be kept apart.’ Geoffrey Rose2 
 

For these reasons public health returned to local government in April 2013 under 

changes brought about by the Health and Social Care Act 2012. This legislation 

places a statutory duty on upper tier authorities through the Health and Wellbeing 

Board to ‘take steps to improve the health of their local population’. This will require 

collaboration with the Districts and other partners, including WRS by aligning 

priorities, services, resources and activities with the Worcestershire Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy3. 

With public sector resources shrinking, demand growing and health inequalities 

widening, the Health and Wellbeing Board, District and County partners will want to 

acknowledge the multifaceted contribution that WRS plays in the preventative public 

health agenda when considering, integrating and commissioning against local 

priorities in this area.  

WRS currently contributes in two ways, 1) through the statutory duties it preforms 

and 2) through commissioned work in the field of health improvement. To date WRS 

has received in excess of £100,000 in grants from Public Health and from the 

Redditch and Bromsgrove Clinical Commissioning Group to carry out work which 

aligns with our core competencies to support businesses and their workforces. 

Further details of both areas of work are detailed later in this report. 

 
HEALTH INEQUALITIES 
 

Public health is concerned with the health of the entire population, rather than the 

health of individuals, requiring a collective effort; addressing prevention, treatment 

and care from a population perspective. It is about making sure that services are 

safe, effective, appropriate and accessible to the whole population but particularly 

concentrating efforts on those in the community who are vulnerable or otherwise 

disadvantaged or deprived. 

The Marmot Review4 showed that poor health does not arise by chance and is not 

simply attributable to genetic make-up, unhealthy lifestyles and a lack of access to 

medical care, important as these factors are. There is some evidence that deprived 

communities are not only more exposed to personal and environment risks but are 

more susceptible to the effects of these exposures5.  

Worcestershire JSNA6 data shows that while men from affluent communities 

experience relatively good health and similar levels of health irrespective of 

Page 87



geographical location, life expectancy in deprived communities show a marked 

difference; being up to 5.7 years less than the most affluent. 

Important influences on health come from circumstances in which people live, work, 

grow and age, known as the wider determinants of health. Impacts of improved 

health include the potential for improved outcomes in areas such as education, 

employment, anti social behaviour and social cohesion; all of which are directly 

influenced by local priorities. 

 

WRS CONTRIBUTION TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH 

 
Worcestershire Regulatory Services, the new delivery arm of the six Worcestershire 

District Councils and the County Council provides a huge range of regulatory 

services in relation to Environmental Health, Trading Standards and Licensing 

functions. From environmental protection to food safety, consumer protection to 

business support, WRS activities impact significantly on the wider determinants of 

health, in addition to the public health domains of health improvement and health 

protection. Figure 1 illustrates the public health contribution made by WRS and are 

further illustrated in Appendix 1 of this document. 

 
 
Figure 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
A strategic overview of WRS contribution is detailed in Appendix 2 set against the 

Joint Health and Wellbeing priorities and the four ‘domains’ of public health in accord 

with the Public Health Outcomes Framework7. These are: 

Page 88



• improving the wider determinants of health - reducing inequalities in health and 

addressing the underlying socio-economic circumstances 

• health improvement - including contributing to increased life expectancy and 

healthier lifestyles 

• health protection - including protection from infectious diseases, environmental 

hazards and emergency preparedness 

• health care public health and preventing premature mortality. 

 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING PRIORITIES 

More specifically WRS has also aligned its priorities to deliver against a number of 

those set out in the Worcestershire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, these being; 

obesity, alcohol, older persons and the management of long term conditions and 

mental health. 

WRS has been fortunate to receive over £100,000 in grant funding to deliver several 

health improvement initiatives which aim to improve lifestyle choices in areas of 

deprivation and make the healthy choice the easier choice. Under the Obesity Plan, 

these projects include ‘Truckers Tucker ‘and ‘Canny Catering’ where local caterers 

have been supported by WRS staff to improve cooking methods, ingredients and 

marketing of healthy options through to the ‘Convenience Store’ Project where 

access to and availability of fresh fruit and vegetables was improved for communities 

in Areas of Highest Need. Studies have shown that the consumption of healthier 

foods including 5 portions of fruit and vegetables a day is least in areas of deprivation 

and lower than nationally recommended levels for good health. 

The workplace has been the centre for another multi-agency initiative; 

Worcestershire Works Well. By addressing issues such as the working environment, 

work-life balance, healthy living, good communication and positive leadership styles, 

businesses are supported to improve the wellbeing of their workforce. In return, the 

business benefit from increased productivity, loyalty and a reduction in absence. 

Wider economic benefits include increased tax revenue, lower welfare payments and 

reduced treatment costs. 

WRS were also commissioned to undertake a project to work with domiciliary carers 

and their agencies to promote the importance of good nutrition and food hygiene to 

support older people to stay independent within their own homes by addressing a 

common issue of malnutrition. One million older people in the United Kingdom eat 

less than one meal a day and progressive under nutrition leads to poor health, rising 

hospital admissions and a massive financial burden on the NHS.  

 

INVESTMENT IN PREVENTION 

 
The influence of these wider determinants on health requires interventions to be 

increasingly multi-agency, intelligence-led and preventative, focusing on the root 

causes of ill health (the ‘causes of the causes’), rather than simply treating the 

consequences of its development. It is well recognised that investment in prevention 

Page 89



will result in long term savings for the local health economy by preventing costs from 

accruing in the future. 

 
By aligning priorities and maximising joint working, including that with the Public 

Health, Health Improvement Co-ordinators based within the Districts, the impact 

exerted together can only strengthen our resolve in the preventative agenda. 

Key to this is joining together the vast amount of relevant data and intelligence held 

by WRS and the Districts with that of Public Health, utilising their skills to interrogate 

and analyse this to generate the evidence necessary to target interventions most 

effectively and efficiently. This data will complement that already used as the basis of 

the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and has the potential to drive 

innovation in service delivery. Figure 2 illustrates the benefits of a joint preventative 

approach. 

 
 
Figure 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FURTHER OPPORTUNITIES FOR WRS PARTICIPATION IN HEALTH AND 
WELL-BEING AGENDA 
 
Other areas, as yet unexplored where WRS could further contribute with, or on behalf 
of partners include: 
 

• More intelligent use of data to inform decision making and target resources. 
By joining health data with that from and Environmental Health / Trading 
Standards it will be possible to better determine the distribution and impact of  
health effects from the wider determinants of health such as nuisance and 
access to healthy food. 

 

• Take a greater role in determining Health Impact Assessments (HIA) of 
strategic plans and developments.  (HIA is a practical approach used to judge 

Page 90



the potential health effects of a policy, programme or project on a population, 
particularly on vulnerable or disadvantaged groups thereby creating healthy 
places to grow up and grow old in and environments that support people in 
making healthy choices). These would include promoting healthy 
communities by: 

 
o Participation in active transport policies,  
o Considering the relationship with pollution control and health 

protection regimes 
o Considering the relationship with licensing by managing 

concentrations of licensed premises and the night-time economy. 
 

• Increase WRS involvement in the Planning consultation process to advise on 
the suitability and impact regarding the location of fast food outlets in areas of 
highest need and near schools. 
 

• Expand the scope of health initiatives which support business development 
such as the provision of healthy food options or the improvement in health 
and welfare of employees. Further areas include schools outside of LA 
control, nurseries and residential homes but also work groups such as 
sedentary taxi drivers. 
 

• Extend the relationship with Public Health colleagues to form a closer multi-
agency approach to District activities, particularly with the Health 
Improvement Coordinators around local plans such as tobacco control and 
cessation. 

 
WRS is well placed to work with business and communities to reduce inequalities 
having both skills and experience in these areas however funding is critical to 
maintaining capacity and WRS seeks to explore opportunities to receive further 
commissions in the area of health improvement which is an area clearly over and 
above statutory duties placed on the organisation. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



Appendix 1 
 
WRS CONTRIBUTION TO HEALTH AND WELLBEING AGENDA 
 
The following section describes the contribution made by WRS against the public 
health domains, these being the wider determinants, health improvement and health 
protection. It is based on the document District Action on Public Health8 
 
THE WIDER DETERMINANTS OF HEALTH 

 
Economic Development and Business Support 
 
Stable and fulfilling employment is a prerequisite for good health. WRS supports its 
District and County partners in facilitating local conditions for sustainable economic 
growth, job creation and rising living standards. Officers from WRS support local 
businesses to trade fairly and safely, across a range of areas including occupational 
health and safety, food safety and composition, product safety, fair trading, metrology 
and licensing by providing training, information and advice which helps support 
business success and improve employee health outcomes. Enforcement action is 
targeted at rogue traders that cause economic detriment or endanger the safety of 
customers. 
 
WRS is also an active partner in the Worcestershire Local Enterprise Partnership 
(LEP) and has helped to implement a Regulators Compliance Code to ensure a level 
playing field for local businesses and is supporting innovative programs to help 
promote economic growth and employment in our local communities to the benefit of 
health outcomes. 
 
 
Consumer Advice 

 
When customers buy goods or services the law protects their consumer rights. WRS 
regularly provides advice and assistance to help the public become informed 
consumers and not suffer adverse consequences leading to financial detriment and 
associated mental health stressors. Advice in this area includes that relating to faulty 
goods, counterfeit goods, poor service, problems with contracts, problems with 
builders, rights following a case of food poisoning or suffering and accident in 
commercial premises. 
 
In order to help the public make informed choices about reputable builders, WRS has 
set up the ‘Trader Register’ which is an online directory of home improvement trades 
people who have given their commitment to provide good workmanship. 
 

 
Community Safety  
 
Crime and disorder exerts significant influence over the health and wellbeing of 
individuals and communities as a whole. WRS work closely with local Community 
Safety Partnerships and the Police & Crime Commissioner in recognising local links 
between community safety and health outcomes. Of particular importance is the work 
to protect the elderly and other vulnerable groups from scams, illegal money lenders 
and rogue traders who prey on such groups.  
 
WRS also regulates the underage sale of alcohol, solvents, knives and offensive 
weapons helps and thus helps to prevent misuse leading to anti-social behaviour and 

Page 92



crime. Responsible retailing and consumption of alcohol also helps to prevent 
circumstances leading to domestic violence and teenage pregnancy. 
 
 
Planning 

 
Through the consultation process, WRS supports the Districts with their planning 
duties and powers, to shape the economic and healthy futures of communities. The 
planning system is key to influencing the important infrastructure which supports 
healthy urban design through sustainable development, provision of adequate 
pedestrian / cycle routes to reduce the reliance on the car, location of housing 
developments away from detrimental sources of noise, pollution and flooding, the 
control of location and advertising of fast food outlets near schools and in areas of 
deprivation, in addition to promoting economic development and job creation. There 
is evidence to show that effective use of Planning policy can have a positive impact 
on crime reduction, optimising outcomes across economic, environmental and social 
objectives.  
 
 
HEALTH IMPROVEMENT 
 
Alongside the wider determinants, the need to encourage and support individual 
health improvement and behaviour change has taken increasing prominence over 
the past two decades. Detrimental health behaviours such as smoking, excessive 
alcohol consumption, sedentary lifestyles and unhealthy eating are now some of the 
root causes of ill health, with the way we choose to live our lives and the choices we 
make one of the most important barriers to good health. 
 
Healthy Eating  
 
With obesity rates amongst some of the highest in the developed world, tackling 
levels of excess weight is one of the greatest modern day public health challenges. 
As well as promoting dietary improvements, improving physical activity rates is a 
priority. 
 
WRS officers are a valuable source of expertise in helping catering businesses 
improve the range of healthy options they offer by advising on healthier cooking 
methods, improved display of healthier foods and by providing training on reading 
food labels in order to make informed decisions when selecting ingredients.  
 
As discussed earlier, WRS has been involved in projects to increase access and 
availability of fresh fruit and vegetables at convenience stores in Areas of Highest 
Need where consumption levels are low and additionally developed a training 
package aimed at supporting domiciliary carers to take early interventions in relation 
to malnutrition of the elderly thus supporting them remain independent at home. 
 
Alongside the enforcement role in food safety and food composition, officers use their 
inspection and regulatory role to provide targeted advice and training sessions to 
employees in local businesses and community groups,  
 
Alcohol  
 
Excessive alcohol consumption is now one of the biggest health issues in the UK, 
with considerable health and social impacts. A combination of regulation, education 

Page 93



and health promotion are vital tools in discouraging alcohol misuse amongst adults 
and preventing under-age access by children.  
 
On behalf of the Districts, WRS regulates the sale of alcohol and issues some 6,000 
personal licenses in relation to the supply in pubs, clubs, restaurants, hotels and off-
licences, including late night refreshment establishments and the regulation of the 
provision of regulated entertainment.  
 
The purpose of the regulation is to promote four licensing objectives: 

• Prevention of crime and disorder 

• Prevention of public nuisance 

• Prevention of harm to children 

• Public Safety 
 
Premises found to be disregarding their responsibilities are brought to account by 
licensing review whereby suspension or withdrawal of the licence is possible. 
 
Smoke Free 
 
Reducing smoking rates, especially amongst lower socioeconomic groups, are vital 
to reducing health inequalities. A combination of regulation and health promotion are 
key tools in encouraging those who smoke to give-up, or preventing young people 
from taking it up. The frontline regulatory and enforcement role of WRS is an 
essential part of the public health system.  
 
WRS enforces compliance with the smoke free legislation under the Health Act 2006. 
Together, the restrictions on the display of tobacco and prohibitions on smoking in 
enclosed workplaces and public places discourage to uptake of smoking and prevent 
second hand smoke damaging health.  
 
WRS also sits on the County Tobacco Alliance Group and contributes to strategic 
initiatives along with Public Health colleagues such the Health Improvement Co-
ordinators. 
 
 
HEALTH PROTECTION 
 
The quality of the environment that surrounds us all has a major impact on our ability 
to maintain a good standard of health and protect ourselves from harm. 
Communicable diseases and the possible pollution of our air, land and water 
continues to cause public health concerns into the 21st century. Protecting residents 
and local businesses from hazardous conditions in the environment is therefore one 
of the cornerstones of public health offered by WRS. 
 
WRS provides essential interventions that protect communities from environmental 
hazards and also provide local intelligence to inform the health protection elements of 
the Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy.  WRS is a key partner in emergency planning 
and delivering comprehensive interagency plans to respond to major public health 
incidents in disease control and environmental contamination.  
 
Health Protection Powers 
 
A key health protection function of WRS is in the exercise of duties on behalf of the 
Districts under the Public Health (Control of Disease) Act 1984 and new Health 

Page 94



Protection legislation. Officers can investigate and take action on behalf of the 
Districts in circumstances where infection or contamination presents, or could 
present, a significant risk to human health. This includes preventing the spread of 
illness by excluding infected food handers or children from work or school, by 
requiring infected persons to attend medical examination such as in the case of TB or 
requiring the prohibition of certain activities such as operating a cooling tower when  
suspected as the source of a Legionella outbreak. 
 
Food Safety and Composition 
 
WRS officers inspect food businesses as well as investigate food incidents such as 
outbreaks of food-borne illness or the recent adulteration of ready meals by inclusion 
of horse meat. Such frontline services are vital to ensuring that all those that serve 
food to the public comply with safety and compositional requirements in that risks 
from food-borne diseases and food allergies are minimised and that the consumers 
purchase what is actually described on the label. 
 
The food safety work also assists consumers to make hygiene based decisions when 
choosing where to buy or eat food, by ranking business hygiene performance 
through the National Food Hygiene rating Scheme. The scheme also incentivises 
businesses to achieve and maintain good standards. Apart from inspection activities 
WRS officers play a key role in assisting businesses to meet their legal 
responsibilities and often provide cost saving advice.  
 
WRS has been developing new ways of working where enforcement has been better 
targeted on wilful non conformers and a greater focus given to improving business 
relationships to achieve a more effective service. Officers use their expertise to raise 
awareness of food safety in the community e.g. during food safety week; through 
work in schools or by working with vulnerable groups such as the elderly at 
community centres. 
 
 
Occupational Health and Safety  
 
Working is good for you; the benefits arise from the income that employment 
provides and from the psychological benefits that a job can bring. These include the 
social interactions, structure to daily life and sense of purpose that a job provides. 
However, having a low paid, insecure job where an individual has little control over 
their work can cause stress and have a detrimental effect on health. 
 
Conversely the consequences of unemployment on health are significant. A person 
who is unemployed for more than a few months is more likely to experience 
depression. They are also more likely to have unhealthier lifestyles and are more 
prone to physical illness. Being unemployed can lead to poor health and poor health 
can lead to unemployment. 
 
WRS protect the health and safety of everyone in the workplace by providing 
adequate working conditions and ensures that welfare facilities are provided for 
people at work. WRS is also an active member of the Worcestershire Works Well 
multi-agency initiative which supports businesses to invest in the health and 
wellbeing of their workforce and reap the benefits in increased productivity and 
reduced sickness absence 
 
Outside the workplace WRS is also responsible for the licensing and safety of local 
public events which can range in size and complexity (e.g. concerts, sporting events 

Page 95



or community activities) where risks can be high if not suitably controlled. They also 
enforce the Sunbeds (Regulation) Act 2010 which prohibits the use of sunbeds by 
those aged under 18 to limit the escalating incidence of skin cancer in the most 
vulnerable groups. This work also involves the provision of advice to business 
operators on how to meet the standards. 
 
Product Safety 
  
WRS enforce an extensive range of product safety regulations including controls on 
fireworks, petroleum licensing and goods such as toys and electrical products to 
protect against injury and risks to health when used. This includes the sale of second 
hand goods which is particularly relevant to poorer and frequently more vulnerable 
communities who are at greater risk of suffering exposure to hazardous conditions. 
 
 Air Quality 
 
WRS supports the District partners discharge their statutory duty under the 
Environment Act 1995 to manage local air quality. This involves monitoring air quality 
and identifying areas where nationally prescribed objectives are at risk. Where they 
are not being met WRS declares Air Quality Management Areas and produces action 
plans to reduce pollution, working in partnership with all relevant stakeholders 
including County Highways. Air pollution is linked to respiratory ill health, due to 
nitrous oxide concentrations and particulate matter. 
 
Contaminated Land 
 
WRS discharges the responsibilities of Partners in respect of contaminated 
Land by ensuring remediation methods are adopted to prevent harmful effects on 
public health. Land that is contaminated contains substances in, on or under the land 
that, in the concentrations present, represent a significant possibility of causing 
particular harms to human health or the environment. Contamination can be both 
natural or as a result of human activity including past industrial activity. 
 
 
Private Water Supplies 
 
About 1% of the population – that’s over 200,000 homes – are not connected to 
mains water and rely instead on wells, boreholes and springs for their domestic water 
supplies, including for drinking. Many of these supplies are vulnerable to 
contamination by micro-organisms, particularly in spring and autumn and after rainfall 
and, not least where those consuming the water are not regular drinkers, or are very 
young or elderly or whose immune system has been compromised for some reason, 
when gastro-intestinal infection can result, occasionally with severe consequences. 
WRS Officers sample and assess the risks from these supplies; advising owners of 
the precautions to take against illness. Where such supplies are insufficient or where 
they serve more than one home or any commercial premises, they may take formal 
action to ensure proper treatment or replacement of the supply. 
 
 
Noise Control 
 
Noise may be an inevitable consequence of today’s society, whether from natural, or 
particularly, man-made sources; however there is increasing evidence that excessive 
noise can have damaging impacts on our health. On behalf of the District Partners, 
WRS discharges the duty made under the Environmental Protection Act 1990 to 

Page 96



investigate noise nuisance complaints to determine whether or not a Statutory 
Nuisance exists. Where it does, an abatement notice is served to control the noise 
WRS has been trailing new ways to deliver this service in order to improve outcomes 
but also reduce costs. 
 
Emergency Planning 
 
Under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004 partners have a number of responsibilities in 
relation to civil protection at the local level, including being Category 1 responders in 
the event of a local emergency. WRS supports partners in responding to 
emergencies such as situations that directly impact on public health, including human 
or animal disease control or environmental hazards arising from chemical spillages, 
fires involving industrial premises or processes and local flooding. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 97



Appendix 2     Worcestershire Regulatory Services – Contribution to H&WB 
 
 
HWB Strategy 
Outcomes 

 

WRS Activity Description  PH Outcomes 
Framework Indicator 

Health and Social 
Impacts 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Better economic 
circumstances 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wider Determinants 

Economic Development and Business Support 

Advice and 
Training 

Provide advice, support and training to businesses on 
consumer law, food and occupational safety to help them 
trade well and within the law and thus be more 
economically viable.  
Work with licensed premises to help them trade well and 
within the licensing objectives of :  

• the protection of children from harm 

• prevention of crime and disorder; 

• public safety; 

• the prevention of public nuisance 

 
 
 
 
 

• Children in poverty 

• 16-18 year olds not in 
education, employment or 
training 

• Employment for those 
with long term conditions 

• Sickness absence rates 

• Domestic abuse 

• Violent crime 

• Re-offending 

• Self reported wellbeing 

• Social contentedness 
 

Better economic 
circumstances help 
support business success 
and leads to greater 
employment opportunities 
and improved employee 
financial security and 
health outcomes. 
 
• Health choices in the 
long term unemployed, 
such as drinking, smoking 
and exercise are far worse 
than the employed; these 
effects can last for several 
years even after a person 
has found employment. 
 

• Young people (NEET) 
suffer more health 
problems and five times 
more likely to enter the 
criminal justice system. 
 

• Those suffering 
deprivation have higher 

Fair trade Investigate complaints about rogue traders and take 
appropriate enforcement action; this helps to promote a 
level playing field for legitimate businesses to survive in 
difficult economic environment, provides reassurance to 
consumers and reduces the fear of crime, thus 
supporting emotional and financial wellbeing. 

Staff Training / 
Education 

Provision of training in nutrition, food hygiene, health and 
safety, consumer protection laws – valuable skills which 
increase employment opportunities. 

Consumer advice and support 

Consumer rights Provide advice and assistance to consumers in relation 
to their consumer rights when availing themselves of 
goods and services and help empower them to become 

• Children in poverty 

• Pupil absence 

• Domestic abuse 

P
age 98



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Better economic 
circumstances 
 
 

confident consumers.   
The Trader Register is an online facility where 
consumers can make informed choices when selecting 
reputable builders and help protect themselves from 
poor workmanships and extortionate activities. 

• Violent crime 

• Re-offending 

• Statutory homelessness 

• Older people’s perception 
of community safety 

exposure to personal and 
environmental health risks 
and have less information 
on how to improve their 
heath. 
 

• People living in poorest 
areas die on average 7 
years earlier than those in 
richer areas and spend 17 
more years living with poor 
health. 
 

• The cost of treating illness 
and disease arising from 
health inequalities has been 
estimated at £5.5 billion per 
year. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Safer 
communities 

Community Safety and Preventing Consumer Detriment 

Illegal money 
lenders 

Credit check businesses offering financial loans. Tackle 
illegal money lenders thereby protecting families on low 
incomes from being victims of crime and violence. 
 

 
 

• Violent crime 

• Re-offending 

• Children in poverty 

• Domestic abuse 

• Fuel poverty  

• Excess winter deaths  

• Older people’s perception 
of community safety 

• Social contentedness 
 

 

• Childhood violence 
increases risk further 
violence wide range of 
health-damaging 
behaviours (e.g. 
substance use, risky 
sexual activity) and health 
conditions (e.g. cancers, 
heart disease) in later life. 
 
• 2.5 million violent 
incidents in England and 
Wales each year resulting 
in 300,000 A&E 

Doorstep crime Tackle rogue builders/doorstep crime - links to no cold 
calling zones to help reduce the fear of crime etc and 
support wellbeing. 

Business scams Tackle rogue traders who defraud consumers over 
contractual arrangements and selling counterfeit / 
unsafe goods including those in relation to  Government 
green energy initiatives and car boot sales etc. 

Underage sales Prevent the sale of age restricted products to reduce the 
prevalence of goods such as tobacco, alcohol and 
solvents, knives and fireworks to discourage use, 

• Violent crime 

• Domestic abuse 

• Pupil absence 

P
age 99



addiction, crime, antisocial behaviour and associated 
health effects. 
 

• Alcohol related 
admissions 

• Re-offending 

• First time entrants to the 
youth justice system 

• 16-18 year olds not in 
education, employment or 
training 

• Under 18 conceptions 

• Chlamydia diagnosis (15-
24 years) 

• Hospital admissions – 
unintentional injury 

• Smoking prevalence – 15 
year olds 

• Killed / road casualties 
 

attendances and 35,000 
emergency admissions  
 
• Violence is greatest 
inequalities gradient with 
emergency hospital 
admission rates for 
violence five times higher 
in the most deprived 
communities than most 
affluent. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Improve overall 
health 

Health and Planning 

Planning 
applications 

The provision of advice on the environmental merits of 
individual applications and on local and city wide 
strategies. Avoids land use conflict, safeguards local 
environments and promotes sustainable development. 

• Self reported wellbeing 

• Utilisation of green space 
for exercise/health 
reasons 

• Social contentedness 

• Air quality 

• Population affected by 
noise 

Estimated 61% of adults 
and a third of children are 
now overweight or obese 
– higher than almost all 
other developed nations. 
 
• Obesity costs the NHS 
£5.1bn, potentially rising 
to £6.4bn in 2015 and 
£9.7bn in 2050. 
 

• Just 16.5% of those 
aged over 16 meet 
recommended weekly 
guidelines for physical 
activity. 
 

Obeseogenic 
environment 

Work with Planning Departments to develop policies 
around the obeseogenic environment – controlling 
advertising of unhealthy foods near to schools, 
restricting location of fast food outlets, improving the 
environment and safe routes to encourage increased 
pedestrian traffic and less reliance on the car. 
 

• Diet 

• Excess weight in children 
and adults 

• Physically active adults 

• Recorded diabetes 

• Deaths from 
cardiovascular disease 
(including heart disease 

P
age 100



and stroke), cancer and 
liver disease 

• Self reported wellbeing 
 

• Regular physical activity 
can help prevent and 
manage over 20 chronic 
conditions, including 
coronary heart disease, 
stroke, type 2 diabetes, 
cancer, obesity, and 
musculoskeletal 
conditions. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Healthier 
Lifestyles 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Health Improvement 

Alcohol 

Alcohol strategy  Work with licensed premises to prevent the misuse of 
alcohol, promote responsible drinking, prevent 
underage sales, control public safety and nuisance and 
reduce cases of violent crime and domestic abuse 
arising from such premises 

 

• killed or seriously 
injured on roads 

• hospital admissions - 
alcohol 

• falls and injuries (over-
65s) 

• deaths from 
cardiovascular disease 
(including heart disease 
and stroke), cancer and 
liver disease 

• low birth weight babies 

• violent crimes (incl 
sexual violence) and 
domestic abuse  

• pupil absences 

• Chlamydia diagnoses  
(15–24 years) 

 

 
 Alcohol is now the third 
biggest lifestyle risk factor 
for disease and death 
in the UK.24 
• Half a million children in 
England between the 
ages of 11 and 15 will 
have been drunk in the 
past 4 weeks.25 
• Nearly 7 million adults 
are drinking at levels that 
increase the risk of 
harming their health and 
just over 1.5 million adults 
show some signs 
of alcohol dependence.26 
• The excessive 
consumption of alcohol 
causes 1 million crimes & 
1.2 million hospital 
admissions per year and 
costs the NHS at an 

P
age 101



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Healthier 
Lifestyles 

estimated £3.5bn a 
year.27 
 

Tobacco 

Smoke free places 
and workplaces 
 

Reduce health effects from second hand smoke to 
communities and workers through regulating smoke free 
places and workplaces. 
 

• sickness absence 

• number of children in 
poverty 

• number of low birth 
weight babies 

• number of pregnant 
women smoking at time 
of delivery 

• smoking prevalence rates 
in adults and children 

• infant mortality 

• all-cause preventable 
mortality 

• mortality from 
cardiovascular disease, 
cancer, respiratory 
disease 

• preventable sight loss 

• One in five adults still 
smokes. 

• Smoking causes 
approximately 80,000 
deaths per year. 

• Half of smokers can 
expect to die 
prematurely if they do 
not quit. 

•  Approximately one-fifth 
of all deaths in middle 
age are attributed to 
smoking. 

• Exposed children are at 
much greater risk of cot 
death, meningitis, lung 
infections and ear 
disease. 

 

Shisha 
 

Health choice messages and compliance to reduce the 
supply of such products to young people. 
 

Tobacco display 
Prevent access to illegal / counterfeit cigarettes and 
ensure compliance with legislation on tobacco displays 

 

Healthy Eating 

Healthy choices Truckers Tucker and Canny Catering projects support 
catering businesses to provide healthy options alongside 
their normal menus to contribute towards the reduction 
of obesity and related ill health conditions of customers. 
Supports work of the Responsibility Deal and 
Change4life programme. 

• sickness absence 

• low birth weight babies 

• infant mortality 

• all-cause preventable 
mortality 

• mortality from 
cardiovascular disease, 
cancer, respiratory 
disease 

• Excess weight -children 

 
 
 
 
 
• Estimated 61% of adults 
and a third of children are 
now overweight or obese 
– higher than almost all 
other developed nations. 

Access to fruit and 
veg 

Increased access to fresh fruit and vegetables in 
communities where transport to other outlets is an issue. 
 

Nutritional labelling Sandwich shop project to support small businesses 
correctly label their products thereby helping the 

P
age 102



consumer to make informed choices and adults 

• Diet 

• Child development 

• Recorded diabetes 

 

 
• Obesity costs the NHS 
£5.1bn, potentially rising 
to £6.4bn in 2015 and 
£9.7bn in 2050. 
 
 
. 
 

Nutritional 
standards 

Previously contributed to the development of nutritional 
standards for nurseries to encourage the consumption 
of healthier and more nutritious foods, giving children 
the best start in life 

 

Nutritional training Offer CIEH nutrition and special diets courses to catering 
businesses to support healthier catering methods 

 
 
A Safe and 
Supportive Home 
Environment 

Nutritional support 
for domiciliary 
carers  

Development and roll out of a nutritional training tool for 
domiciliary carers to support the elderly stay well at 
home. 

• Diet 
•  Health-related quality of 

life for older people  
• Falls and injuries (over-

65s) 
• Emergency 

readmissions  

• Mortality from 
preventable causes  

• Excess winter deaths 

Residential care  Prevent accidents in settings provided for the vulnerable 
particularly relating to scalding and falls 

 
 
 
 
 
Healthier 
Lifestyles 

Workplace Health and Wellbeing 

Healthy 
Workplaces 

Encouraging and supporting businesses to invest in the 
health and wellbeing of the workforce thereby reducing 
sickness absence, increasing motivation and 
productivity. Delivered via Worcestershire Works Well 
Partnership. 

• Employment for those 
with a long-term health 
condition   

• Sickness absence rates  

• Excess weight in adults. 

• Reducing the proportion 
of physically inactive 
adults. 

• Reducing smoking 
prevalence among 
adults 

• Self-reported wellbeing  

• Mortality from 
cardiovascular 

 
Health inequalities cost 
£31-33bn per year from 
productivity losses. 
 
1.1 million working people 
suffering work-related 
illness. 
 
27 million working days 
lost in 2010/11 due to 
work-related ill-health. 
 
Workplace injuries and ill 
health cost society an 

P
age 103



diseases, cancer and 
respiratory diseases. 

estimated £13.4 billion in 
2010/11. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Effective 
protection and 
safeguarding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Health Protection 

Alcohol 

 Investigate complaints about irresponsible drinks 
promotion, underage sales, unlicensed venues, taking 
appropriate enforcement action and facilitate review of 
licence. 

• People killed or seriously 
injured on England's 
roads 

• Alcohol-related 
admissions to hospital 

• Falls and injuries among 
the over-65s 

• Deaths from 
cardiovascular disease 
(including heart disease 
and stroke), cancer and 
liver disease 

• Low birth weight babies 

• Violent crimes (including 
sexual violence) and 
domestic abuse  

• Pupil absences 

• Chlamydia diagnoses 
among young people 
aged 15–24 years. 

 
• Half a million children 
(11-15) in England have 
been drunk in the past 4 
weeks. 
 
• 7 million adults at risk of 
harming health from 
drinking at levels and 1.5 
million adults show signs 
of alcohol dependence. 
 
• Excessive consumption 
of alcohol causes 1 million 
crimes & 1.2 million 
hospital admissions per 
year and costs the NHS at 
an estimated £3.5bn a 
year.  

Tobacco Control 

Illicit tobacco  
 

Control of counterfeit, smuggled, shisha (not labelled - 
and underage aspect), novel tobacco (warning notices 
etc and supply) to reduce availability help prevent the 
uptake of smoking in addition to protecting people from 
the harmful effects of potential contaminants. 

• Sickness absence rates 

• Deaths from 
cardiovascular disease 
(including heart disease 
and stroke),  

• Mortality from cancer  

• Pupil absences 

• Smoking causes 
approximately 80,000 
deaths per year. 

• Half of smokers will die 
prematurely if they do 
not quit. 

•  Approximately one-fifth 

P
age 104



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Effective 
protection and 
safeguarding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• smoking prevalence 
rates in adults and 
children 

of all deaths in middle 
age are attributed to 
smoking. 

• Exposed children are at 
much greater risk of cot 
death, meningitis, lung 
infections and ear 
disease. 

 

Food Safety / Standards 

Safe, 
unadulterated 
food 

Inspections of businesses where food is manufactured, 
prepared, sold or distributed including nurseries, 
schools, caterers and manufacturers to ensure food is 
safe to eat, correctly labelled and of the correct 
composition. 

• Sickness absence rates 

• Mortality from 
communicable 
diseases 

• Diet  

• Deaths from 
cardiovascular disease 
(including heart disease 
and stroke) and cancer 

 
Each year around a million 
people suffer a food-borne 
illness, causing 500 
deaths and costing an 
estimated £1.5bn. 

Infection control 

Control spread of 
communicable 
disease 

Use Health Protection powers to enforce control 
measures relating to infection control 

 

 

 

• Mortality from 
communicable 
diseases  

• Mortality from causes 
considered preventable 

• Child development at 2 - 

 
 
 
 
 
Each year around a million 
people suffer a food-borne 
illness, causing 
500 deaths and costing an 
estimated £1.5bn. 
 
• Whilst infectious 
diseases now account for 
1 in 50 deaths per year, 

Catering 
establishments, 
workplaces, 
cooling towers 
and farm parks 

Investigate reported cases of infectious disease and 
proactive inspection of commercial premises advising on 
control measures relating to food poisoning, water 
supplies, legionella and environmental E.coli 
contamination to prevent illness within the community. 

Tattooing, skin 
piercing and 
beauty parlours 

Regulation of tattooists and beauty parlours to minimise 
risk of infection between clients 

Spa baths, 
swimming pools 
and water features 

Advice, sampling and enforcement of water standards to 
reduce risk of infection. 

P
age 105



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Effective 
protection and 
safeguarding 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Drinking water 
supplies 

Work with water companies to ensure provision of safe 
drinking water. Sample and advise on safe standards for 
private water supplies 

2.5 years 

• Hospital admissions by 
unintentional injuries 
(under 18’s 

• Sickness absence 

 

cases of tuberculosis and 
STIs are rising, pandemic 
flu, foot and mouth and 
other emerging diseases 
remain a threat. 
 

Animal health Work with the farming community to control animal 
movements and welfare and thus control spread of 
infection from animal to animal and animal to human. 

Health and Safety 

General workplace 
safety. 
 

Health and safety inspections of workplaces, both from a 
physical and management perspective, to ensure safe 
practices for employees and customers. Prevention of 
occupational diseases such as asbestosis, 
Legionellosis, asthma, dermatitis in addition to accidents 

• Employment for those 
with long term health 
conditions 

• Sickness absence rates 

• Hospital admissions – 
unintentional injury 
(under 18’s) 

• Deaths from 
cardiovascular disease 
(including heart disease 
and stroke) and cancer 

• Mortality from respiratory 
diseases 

• Mortality from 
communicable 
diseases 

• Preventable sight loss 

• Children in poverty 

• Physically active adults 

• Self reported wellbeing 

 
 

Health inequalities cost 
£31-33bn per year from 
productivity losses. 
 
Health choices in the long 
term unemployed, far 
worse than employed;  
 
Young people (NEET) 
suffer more health 
problems and five times 
more likely to enter the 
criminal justice system. 

 
1.1 million working people 
suffering work-related 
illness. 
 
27 million  working days 
lost in 2010/11 due to 
work-related ill-health. 
 
Workplace injuries and ill 
health cost society an 
estimated £13.4 billion in 

Residential care 
and nurseries 

Prevent accidents and ill health in settings provided for 
the vulnerable particularly relating to scalding, falls and 
communicable disease. 

• Falls and injuries in over 
65’s 

• Health-related quality of 
life for older people  

• Hip fractures in over 65s 

P
age 106



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Effective 
protection and 
safeguarding 

• Excess winter deaths 

• Dementia and its 
impacts  

• Mortality from 
communicable 
diseases 

• Infant mortality 

• Child development 2 – 
2.5 years 

• Excess weight in 4 - 5 
years 

2010/11. 
 

Sun bed safety Regulate use of sun beds to prevent under 18’s access 
and responsible use by adults thus reducing the 
incidence of melanomas. 
 

• Hospital admissions 
from unintentional 
injuries (under 18’s) 

• Mortality from cancer 

Product Safety 

General product 
safety 

Inspections, advice and enforcement to ensure goods 
supplied by business are safe; this especially helps 
protect children and more vulnerable adults from 
dangerous products and thus helps reduce accidents. 
 

• Hospital admissions from 
unintentional injuries 
(under 18’s) 

• Preventable sight loss 

• Sickness absence 

• Deaths from 
cardiovascular disease 
(including heart disease 
and stroke) and cancer 

• Those suffering 
deprivation have higher 
exposure to personal and 
environmental health risks 
and have less information 
on how to improve their 
heath 
 

• The cost of treating  
illness and disease arising 
from health inequalities has 
been estimated at £5.5 
billion per year. 
 

Products aimed at 
children 

Seizure of unsafe products likely to harm infants, 
children and unborn babies, as well as the provision of 
health messages to parents and pregnant women e.g. 
the removal of contaminated baby foods and products 
aimed at children. 
 

• Low birth weight babies 

• Child development at 2 - 
2.5 years 

• Infant mortality 

• Hospital admissions – 
unintentional injury (under 
18’s) 

P
age 107



• Mortality from cancer 

Cosmetics safety Remove unsafe cosmetics that have serious impacts on 
health i.e. heavy metals in products/banned substances 
 

• Preventable sight loss 
• Mortality from cancer 

Environmental Issues 

Noise and 
Nuisance 

Investigate complaints relating to noise, odour, effluent 
and accumulations in order to remove stressors from the 
home environment; originating from either domestic or 
commercial premises 

 
 
 
 

• Population affected by 
noise 

• Mortality from cancer 

• Mortality from respiratory 
diseases 

• Utilization of green space 

• Social contentedness 

• Older persons perception 
of community safety 

• Those suffering 
deprivation have higher 
exposure to personal and 
environmental health risks 
and have less information 
on how to improve their 
heath 
 

• Poor air quality reduces 
life expectancy by an 
average of seven to eight 
months. 
 

• Contamination of land can 
pose a threat to the 
environment and the 
health of humans, animals 
and plants. 
 

Contaminated Land 
 

To identify, categorise and prioritise land considered to be 
potentially contaminated and to provide for the safe 
remediation of any land classified as contaminated. 

Air Quality  
 

The monitoring and identification of areas of poor air 
quality and the production of plans to improve air quality. 

Environmental 
Permitting  

 

The regulation of industrial installations to prevent or 
minimise emissions of pollutants to atmosphere and 
ensuring that processes are managed in such a way as 
to minimise pollution which could impact on health of 
employees and local residents. 

Managing Waste 
Disposal  

 

Ensuring companies have proper trade waste contracts / 
site waste management plans to promote proper trade 
waste disposal and reduce instances of fly tipping and to 
ensure that businesses do not have a competitive 
advantage from not having waste contracts. 

Emergency 
planning and 
response 

Contribute to the development of and response to 
emergency plans in relation to flooding, pollution 
incidents, infectious diseases, animal health 

Comprehensive, agreed 
interagency plans for 
responding to 
public health incidents 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 108



REFERENCES 

 
1. H Sigerist.  1933 Bulletin of the History of Medicine 
2. G Rose. Rose’s Strategy of Preventive Medicine Oxford 
3. Worcestershire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy, Worcestershire County Council 
4. The Marmot Review. Fair Society, Healthy Lives (2010)  
5. Lin CC, Rogot E, Johnson NJ, Sorlie PD, Arias E. A further study of life expectancy by socioeconomic factors in the National 

Longitudinal Mortality Study. Ethnicity and Disease [2003,13(2):240-7] 
6. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, Worcestershire County Council, http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/cms/pdf/JSNA-Summary-

2012.pdf 
7. Improving Outcomes and Supporting Transparency Part 1: A Public Health Outcomes Framework for England 2013-16 

8. District Action on Public, Health District Council Network 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the meeting of the Worcestershire Shared Services Joint Committee held on 21st February 2013
	6 Worcester City Pilot for revised Service Delivery
	7 Worcestershire Regulatory Services Budget Monitoring April 2012 - March 2013
	Appendix 1 - WRS Revenue Monitoring Outturn 12-13
	Appendix 2 - WRS Annual Return For Year Ended 31 03 13
	Appendix 3 - WRS JC Annual Statement Reconciliation 12-13
	Appendix 4 - WRS JC Audit Opinion Report 2012-2013
	Appendix 5 - WRS JC Regulatory Services  Project April - Mar'13

	8 Worcestershire Regulatory Services Annual Report 2013 / 2014
	WRS Annual Report 2013-14

	9 Worcestershire LEP/WRS Charter Action Plan
	WLEP Business  Regulators Action Plan-Final
	WLEP Regulatory and Business Charter FINAL

	10 Worcestershire Regulatory Services Contribution to Worcestershire Health and Well Being Strategy
	WRS Contribution to Worcs Health and Well Being Strategy


